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          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Good morning.  I

          3  am Council Member Stanley Michels, the Chair of the

          4  Committee on Environmental Protection. Today we will

          5  hear testimony on Resolution 1721, by Gifford Miller

          6  and myself, a resolution that expresses support for

          7  the US Environmental Protection Agency's plan to

          8  implement a dredging plan to remove PCBs from the

          9  Hudson River.

         10                 This resolution has drawn strong

         11  praise from the environmental community and

         12  criticism from the General Electric Company and some

         13  Upstate communities. Both sides believe they have

         14  science on their side, and both sides argue their

         15  positions with passion.  We will hear some of that

         16  passion today in today's testimony.

         17                 And on behalf of the Committee, I

         18  welcome all of you who have come here today to speak

         19  on this important issue, and I extend a special

         20  greeting to those who have traveled from Upstate New

         21  York to attend this hearing.  As usual, this

         22  Committee will keep an open mind and we will listen

         23  to all who wish to testify today. We will consider

         24  all views before acting on this important

         25  resolution.
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          2                 While this Committee is committed to

          3  doing everything it can to promote a cleaner Hudson

          4  River for this and successive generations, we're

          5  just as committed to a fair open process that grants

          6  equal perspective attention to both sides of this

          7  issue.

          8                 We look forward to today's testimony

          9  knowing that we all will learn a great deal about

         10  this important matter.  And I will now call our

         11  first witness, will be the United States

         12  Environmental Protection Agency, William McCabe with

         13  the EPA.  Mr. McCabe, welcome.

         14                 We will be joined from time to time

         15  because there is a lot of things going on with other

         16  members of the Committee, but right now with me is

         17  Gifford Miller and staff, Jim Gennaro to my left and

         18  Allison Sacks to my right, the Counsel to the

         19  Committee.

         20                 Mr. McCabe, welcome.  We do not have

         21  a court reporter or a reporter here, so in order to

         22  identify your voice, we need you to state who you

         23  are, even though we know who you are, we have said

         24  Mr. McCabe a number of times.  Welcome, I think this

         25  is the first opportunity you have had before this
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          2  Committee, so I welcome you.

          3                 MR. MCCABE:  Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  EPA has been

          5  here often.

          6                 MR. MCCABE:  How is that?  Much

          7  better, okay.  Okay, let me start again.  Good

          8  morning.  My name is Bill McCabe.  I'm the Deputy

          9  Director of the Emergency and Remedial Response

         10  Division, also known as Superfund, at EPA's Region 2

         11  Office here in New York.  I'm also the Chair of the

         12  Hudson River Oversight Committee.

         13                 In December of 2000, EPA announced

         14  its proposed plan to clean up the PCB- contaminated

         15  sediments in the Upper Hudson River, north of Troy.

         16  Two hundred miles of the Hudson River, from Hudson

         17  Falls in Washington County to the Battery in New

         18  York City, have been declared a Superfund site due

         19  to PCB contamination that has negatively impacted

         20  this precious natural resource and the people who

         21  live along its banks.  After ten years of intensive,

         22  scientific study, Peer Review, and public scrutiny,

         23  EPA has concluded the following about PCBs in the

         24  Hudson River:

         25                 PCBs released between Hudson Falls
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          2  and the Federal Dam at Troy, New York are

          3  responsible for more than 75 percent of the PCB

          4  contamination in the sediments of the freshwater

          5  Hudson and about 50 percent of the PCBs found in New

          6  York Harbor sediments.

          7                 PCBS are not being buried by clean

          8  sediment, they are moving downstream.  PCBs from the

          9  sediments have been fingerprinted and are the

         10  dominant source of PCBs in the water of the Hudson

         11  River all the way to Kingston, New York, about 100

         12  river miles from their source in the Upper Hudson.

         13                 The River is not cleaning itself.

         14  While PCBs do degrade to some degree over time, they

         15  only break down to another kind of PCB.  PCBs,

         16  regardless of type, are toxic, they probably cause

         17  cancer in people and cause serious non-cancer health

         18  effects such as learning disabilities, low birth

         19  weight and negative impacts to the thyroid and

         20  immune systems.

         21                 Today, PCB levels in fish and water

         22  are similar to what they were in the late 1980s.

         23                 Cancer risks to people who eat

         24  contaminated fish from the Upper Hudson are 1,000

         25  times higher than EPA's goal of protection, and
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          2  non-cancer hazards have been found to be 65 times

          3  greater than EPA's level of concern for adults, and

          4  100 times greater for children.  Although risks from

          5  eating contaminated fish decline as one moves south

          6  down the River, the risks are still great enough for

          7  the New York State Department of Health to issue

          8  this advisory for the entire Hudson River site from

          9  Glens Falls to the Battery: Women of childbearing

         10  age and children under fifteen should eat no fish

         11  from the Hudson River.

         12                 Based on these and other significant

         13  scientific conclusions, EPA has proposed the

         14  targeted removal of about 2.65 million cubic yards

         15  of PCB- contaminated sediment from the upper Hudson

         16  River, encompassing an area of about 500 acres,

         17  which is about 12 or 13 percent of the total acreage

         18  evaluated.  The sediment would be dewatered,

         19  stabilized, and shipped by rail to an existing

         20  permitted facility outside the Hudson Valley.  No

         21  new landfill would be created.  We believe that by

         22  removing the contaminated sediments from the Upper

         23  Hudson, we are removing the primary source of PCBs

         24  to the food chain.  This cleanup will be protective

         25  of human health and the environment and will allow
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          2  the State of New York to relax the fish consumption

          3  advisories a generation or two sooner than if the

          4  PCBs are left in place.  EPA is presently taking

          5  public comment on the proposal and will continue to

          6  do so until April 17th, 2001.  Thank you for your

          7  kind attention.  I will be happy to answer any

          8  questions you may have.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Yes, thank you

         10  very much for coming and for the work you have done

         11  on this.  This is extremely important to us.

         12                 Just listening to your statement, you

         13  say that the PCBs are moving downstream, and of

         14  course, we are concerned and what is going on

         15  Upstate New York, we are one State and one Country,

         16  so we're concerned with what happens in Upstate

         17  communities as well as what happens down here.  But

         18  it is important for us to understand the nature,

         19  because people have said to us, well, why are you

         20  having a hearing here, after all, the PCBs are up

         21  in, they're 300 miles away or 250 miles away, up in

         22  the Hudson and Fort Edward and everything like that.

         23    So the question really is to you, is it just a

         24  matter of time before the PCBs come down here other

         25  than just by way of the fish that we consume?
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          2                 MR. MCCABE:  Well the PCBs have been

          3  coming down here for quite a long time.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Are they coming

          5  down by reason of the water flow?

          6                 MR. MCCABE: Right, by approximately

          7  500 pounds per year are coming over the Troy Dam.  I

          8  cannot tell you an exact number that gets all the

          9  rest of the way down here, 160 miles. However, we

         10  have estimated over the years that about 50 percent

         11  of the PCBs found in New York Harbor sediments come

         12  from the upstream source.  Now that, of course, is

         13  over time.  That doesn't mean that currently that is

         14  what it is, but that is what we found, that includes

         15  all of the discharges and releases and what have you

         16  from the GE Hudson Falls and Fort Edward facilities,

         17  as well as the sediments in the Upper Hudson River.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Now, you state

         19  that there is a danger from eating the fish and

         20  there is a ban on fish, as you have just

         21  annunciated.  What about other recreational uses,

         22  swimming, is there a problem with swimming with

         23  PCBs?

         24                 MR. MCCABE:  We have not found any

         25  other significant risks due to the PCBs in the
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          2  sediment.  The fish consumption is, these are what

          3  we're concerned about.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And the fish

          5  consumption not only by human beings, but by other

          6  wildlife.

          7                 MR. MCCABE:  There is a risk not only

          8  to - -

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Some species

         10  like eagles and other animals.

         11                 MR. MCCABE:  I'm sorry, yes.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Mammals and

         13  other animals as well.

         14                 MR. MCCABE:  Yes, there is a risk not

         15  only to human health, but also to the environment.

         16  We have evaluated other species, such as mink, river

         17  otter and the like, bald eagle.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Vast various

         19  fishes.

         20                 MR. MCCABE:  Well the fish

         21  definitely.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Okay.  Any

         23  questions?  Go ahead.  In order to identify, some of

         24  the other Council members have arrived, Council

         25  Member Quinn from Manhattan and Council Member

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            13

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  Carrion from the Bronx, are here, and Council Member

          3  Leffler from Queens.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  Thank you,

          5  Mr. McCabe for coming to testify here today.  I

          6  guess I have a number of questions, can you tell us

          7  a little more specifically how your preferred

          8  Proposed Alternative 4, differs from in terms of PCB

          9  levels and in terms of remediation for the River

         10  from, simply, the source control proposal, which,

         11  I'm not sure it's a proposal that GE is making,

         12  since it is an agreement that they're going to do it

         13  regardless of whether there is dredging or not, but

         14  a sort of, how does Proposed Alternative 4 differs

         15  from no Proposed Alternative 4 in terms the benefit

         16  to the communities, and to the River and to everyone

         17  who uses it, in terms of time?

         18                 MR. MCCABE: Right.  We have compared

         19  our alternative as well as other alternatives to

         20  both doing nothing in the River and also to doing

         21  what you just considered, which is the source

         22  control.  We have recognized through our modeling

         23  program and other analyses that both measures are

         24  necessary that being source control as well as

         25  remediation of the sediments.
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          2                 We have calculated some numbers for

          3  just those comparisons.  For instance, and you will

          4  see in your, there is a lot more detail in the

          5  packets that you have hear, but I will just give you

          6  some numbers, compared to just taking the source

          7  control we have calculated a reduction in the cancer

          8  risk of approximately 58 to 86 percent; non- cancer

          9  risk reduction of approximately 67 to 82 percent,

         10  and similar numbers of the ecological risk

         11  assessment. So it is a significant reduction in the

         12  risk, which of course is not only important in the

         13  long- term, but also very important in the short-

         14  term, because as most people recognize there are

         15  folks fishing in the River and eating the fish.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  And GE

         17  contends that essentially everybody is going to get

         18  to the same place one way or the other, it is just a

         19  question of how to get there.  But that the River is

         20  cleaning itself and that, you know, at best this

         21  remediation will accelerate that process, but they

         22  have raised a lot of arguments about resuspension.

         23  But before we get to the resuspension question, can

         24  you just say, you know, is it true, is it the EPA's

         25  view that, you know, eventually the River will clean
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          2  itself, but this is a problem that is a question of

          3  how quickly it should clean itself?

          4                 MR. MCCABE:  That is probably more

          5  difficult to answer than it might sound from the

          6  question, but let me just give you some idea of some

          7  numbers.  It depends on what level you use for the

          8  fish contamination.  For instance, the number we

          9  typically use, which is called our RME number, our

         10  Reasonable Maximum Exposure number that which is

         11  meant to be not the maximum, but a reasonable

         12  approximation of that, that number in the fish is

         13   .05 parts per million.  The FDA number for

         14  reference, the tolerance level for the FDA is two

         15  parts per million, so .05 is quite a bit different.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  Why is there

         17  such a difference?

         18                 MR. MCCABE:  Well that is equivalent

         19  to a half a pound fish meal a week.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  The .05 is?

         21                 MR. MCCABE:  The .05 is, right.  And

         22  that number, .05 in our modeling we do not project

         23  to meet under any circumstance, the modeling runs

         24  out about 67 years.  So that number will be

         25  extremely hard to meet.  Of course, our modeling
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          2  only projects that under, with source control that

          3  is not 100 percent effective.  General Electric, I

          4  know is attempting and we certainly hope that they

          5  will reach 100 percent effectiveness in cutting off

          6  the source, but our modeling to date has assumed

          7  there would be a slight residual from that.  The

          8  more that is removed, the more likely it is that we

          9  will meet any of those numbers.

         10                 However, there is also some other

         11  numbers, for instance, the Central Tendency, or the

         12  average fish consumer. Average fish consumer is a

         13  half a pound for every two months, and these are all

         14  based upon surveys, fishing surveys.  Everyone can,

         15  obviously, say, well I eat more than that or I eat

         16  less than that. That number we're talking about,

         17  from our alternative, will meet in about 20 years

         18  versus anywhere from 34 to 67 years under the source

         19  control alternative.  So you're talking, that is

         20  where we get a generation or two sooner.  And,

         21  again, it depends on how much of the source is

         22  removed.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  Could you

         24  explain why the EPA has a different standard for the

         25  fish than the FDA?
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          2                 MR. MCCABE:  The difference between

          3  the two approaches is we assume that the people who

          4  are fishing the River will be getting their, will be

          5  consuming their fish, their entire exposure will be

          6  from the River.  The FDA uses what is known as a

          7  market basket approach, which means that you get all

          8  sorts of fish from all sorts of sources.  So you

          9  kind of mix them all together, and the assumption is

         10  that then 2PPM for this one would, or for any

         11  particular river would be fine because you're going

         12  to be mixing uncontaminated with contaminated.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  Right,

         14  because you be eating Artic Char instead of just

         15  fish from the Hudson.

         16                 MR. MCCABE:  Right, exactly.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  That is why

         18  there is a greater concern in terms of trying to

         19  remediate the River here so that people can fish in

         20  the River because people do fish in the River and

         21  there is, from your surveys there are people who do

         22  subsistence fishing on the River, isn't that

         23  correct?

         24                 MR. MCCABE:  And that is the most

         25  important point that it is for the people who
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          2  subsist on fish from the River, exactly.  There are

          3  surveys, well, there is a lot of surveys, there was

          4  one in 1996, I believe it is, from the Department of

          5  Health, which said, I believe, it was one in eight

          6  people that they surveyed kept the fish, and I think

          7  one in ten had more than one fish.  So, yes, I think

          8  it is a very safe assumption and there is plenty of

          9  reports, and I'm sure people here will tell you more

         10  eyewitness wise of people who are fishing the River

         11  and eating the fish and bringing it home to their

         12  families, and that is a major concern.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  Let's talk

         14  about the, you said that the EPA feels that there is

         15  about 500 pounds of PCBs going over the Troy River

         16  Dam at, in each year, right?

         17                 MR. MCCABE:  Right.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  How much of

         19  that is coming from the plants, and which would

         20  theoretically be addressed by, well, not

         21  theoretically, but hopefully will be addressed by a

         22  source control efforts?

         23                 MR. MCCABE:  The estimates that we

         24  have used are about five to six ounces a day from

         25  the General Electric Plant versus, as it goes over
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          2  the water column, the Thompson Island Pool is the

          3  most contaminated area, adding about a pound to a

          4  pound and a half.  So we're generally talking about

          5  a 3:1 ratio from the sediments.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  The source

          7  control can only address, and GE has said, told me,

          8  at least, that they feel that three ounces a day

          9  come in.

         10                 MR. MCCABE:  Right.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  But source

         12  control can only address either those three ounces

         13  or those five ounces that are seeping from the plant

         14  area, and the other pound or so is not going to be

         15  addressed under source control.  And that might be

         16  addressed by resedimentation, GE feels, but you guys

         17  feel that you need the dredging in order to

         18  ultimately address the majority.  How much of that

         19  other pound do you think you can address by this

         20  proposal alternative?

         21                 MR. MCCABE:  We don't, yes, we don't

         22  agree, as you mentioned, that the River is cleaning

         23  itself or that burial is going to take care of the

         24  problem.  We, in fact, the conclusion of the report,

         25  which was validated by our Peer Review, was that
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          2  there is not, widespread burial is not happening in

          3  the River.  The sediment cores that we did, you

          4  know, taking samples from the River as it goes down

          5  with depth, have shown, I think, more than half of

          6  the cores showed a loss from that particular core

          7  versus burial. And about 60 percent of the core is

          8  the maximum contamination level in that core, is in

          9  the top nine inches, again, showing that it is

         10  closer to the surface.

         11                 We're looking at remediating about,

         12  we assume, well, we assume, we figure there is about

         13  200,000 pounds in this area of the River and we're

         14  remediating about 100,000 pounds.  There is a lot of

         15  confusion over those kinds of numbers since it has

         16  been reported and these are, I would say, rough

         17  estimates that over a million pounds were released

         18  at some point in time from the GE facilities.

         19  Obviously, a lot of that has gone down river.  The

         20  500 pounds of that I mentioned now, is the current

         21  figure, it was well more than that in the past,

         22  obviously, so a lot, most of it has gone down river.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  And where do

         24  they go?

         25                 MR. MCCABE:  It settles out as it
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          2  goes further down river.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  So it just

          4  sort of, it's more interspersed, and in other words,

          5  there are a lot of PCBs that are still down river,

          6  but the amount of contamination in the soil is not

          7  nearly as high a rate as it is in the Upper River?

          8                 MR. MCCABE:  Right.  We have, based

          9  upon, I think it was in the mid- seventies, New York

         10  State Department of Environmental Conservation

         11  conducted their studies and they came up 40 hotspots

         12  in the upper 40 miles of the River.  And we have, in

         13  our evaluations and using also data from the State

         14  and from General Electric, we pretty much validated

         15  those same areas as being the areas of concerns.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  Let's talk a

         17  little bit about the independence of the analysis

         18  and the Peer Review and how you got to your

         19  conclusions.  First off, it's been GE's contention

         20  that there has not really been any independent study

         21  of this, that the EPA was sort of committed from the

         22  beginning to, I guess, to sticking it to GE and to

         23  penalizing them.  Can you tell us where was the EPA

         24  when it undertook the beginning of this analysis,

         25  and how would you defend this sort of independent

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            22

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  survey analysis?

          3                 MR. MCCABE:  Well that is an

          4  interesting observation from General Electric.  We

          5  have said from day one that we're open to whatever

          6  the scientific analyses says to us, wherever it

          7  brings us versus General Electric, which has said

          8  pretty much from day one and has put it in most of

          9  their letters that they do not believe that dredging

         10  is appropriate and that was before the data was

         11  collected, before any of the new data analyses,

         12  before the modeling was done, before the risk

         13  assessments were done, before an awful lot of

         14  information was out there.  Of course, they have

         15  restated it and here is another reason why we

         16  believe that the River should not be dredged, but

         17  they have been saying pretty much from day one.

         18                 So for them to turn that around and

         19  say that we're the ones who are saying that it

         20  should be dredged is, as I said, an interesting

         21  observation.

         22                 We have done Peer Review, a very

         23  extensive Peer Review.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  What is that?

         25                 MR. MCCABE:  Independent scientific
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          2  experts and they were pretty much from around the

          3  world, we had a number of experts from Canada, a

          4  number from Europe, the reason for that is because

          5  it's somewhat difficult to find people who do not

          6  have a connection or a conflict of interest with

          7  either EPA or GE.  So these people are respected

          8  scientist from around the world, they're

          9  independent, they analyze the reports, we had five

         10  separate sessions, or five separate Peer Reviews I

         11  should say, on six different documents, and they, we

         12  were pleased by the results.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  They were

         14  given full access to the figures and the appropriate

         15  time to review the process?

         16                 MR. MCCABE:  Well they had all the

         17  information that we had.  They did mention on

         18  several occasions they wished they had more time, I

         19  think most scientists feel that way on any issue

         20  that they would like to have some more time.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  How much time

         22  did they have?

         23                 MR. MCCABE:  I'm trying to remember,

         24  I believe it was about 60 days for their complete

         25  review.  There is a lot of information and I don't
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          2  doubt that they could have used even more time, but

          3  this was the way it was set up, we thought that that

          4  was a fair amount of time, and the results we were

          5  pleased with.  I'm not going to say they were

          6  perfect, I'm not going to tell you it was easy

          7  sitting in the audience and hearing people making

          8  any criticism of your work, but that is the purpose

          9  of the work to see how valid it is and whether or

         10  not you can improve it in some way. So that is what

         11  we did.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Just let me

         13  interject if I can, Council member?  The fact of the

         14  matter is the commentary period is not up until

         15  April 17th itself, and they have all the data and

         16  everything available to them now, GE.  And whatever

         17  disagreements they have now with you they can still

         18  submit them to you before April 17th when you are

         19  going to make your decision.

         20                 MR. MCCABE: Well actually the way - -

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Nobody can be

         22  foreclosed from giving any information, there is so

         23  much time here, so I do not understand what the

         24  complaint is about not having sufficient time?

         25                 MR. MCCABE: Well that was
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          2  specifically for the Peer Reviewers, there were

          3  separate sessions on each report, and we gave them

          4  60 days to come up with their conclusions and

          5  recommendations. Obviously, anyone can still comment

          6  on it, a very unique - -

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  They can still

          8  do the same thing now, can't they?

          9                 MR. MCCABE:  Sure, but a very unique

         10  aspect of this whole community interaction process

         11  was the way we handled the public comment.  Normally

         12  a standard Superfund project you produce a remedial

         13  investigation, a feasibility study, the document

         14  that we produced.  And then you have a public

         15  meeting and you take comments and you come up with a

         16  response and a summary with the record of decision,

         17  which is the final document that gives our decision.

         18

         19                 In this case we did not do that, on

         20  every document, including scopes of work, when we

         21  did a scope of work for let's say we're going to do

         22  a geophysical investigation, that scope of work

         23  document was sent to the public, and of course,

         24  General Electric as part of the public, and comments

         25  were taken on that.  A response and summary was
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          2  developed on that document and those responses were

          3  incorporated into the actual work itself.  Then that

          4  document, let's say the geophysical work was

          5  submitted for public comment, and we did a response

          6  and summary on that document, and then on and on and

          7  on.  So for all six documents we followed that kind

          8  of a process, unprecedented in Superfund.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  I think you

         10  were there -             CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Why

         11  did you go through this process now and not any time

         12  before, why did you do it this time?

         13                 MR. MCCABE: Well we felt that this

         14  was a unique project, it was a 25, it ended up

         15  being, well it's still going, but about a $25

         16  million study over a ten- year period of time.  We

         17  knew the public was very interested and concerned,

         18  we wanted to get them as involved as we could

         19  possibly do, given the constraints of our laws and

         20  regulations, of course.  And we thought it was the

         21  appropriate, just the right thing to do.  I mean, we

         22  tailored the community program to the site, which is

         23  what always try to do.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  So you were

         25  bending over backwards to be fair, would you say?
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          2                 MR. MCCABE:  We believe so.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  Although, I

          4  mean, GE told, I have been told by GE that they did

          5  not have any access to the study with you.  I mean,

          6  they did not have an opportunity, they got three

          7  minutes with you or something like that, is what

          8  they said.

          9                 MR. MCCABE:  That probably refers to

         10  the time they spoke before the Peer Reviewers, but

         11  they can clarify that for you later, they, on the

         12  other hand, had in our estimation plenty of access

         13  to us, our reports and our consultants.  What they

         14  did not have was whenever they wanted a meeting and

         15  said, we would like a meeting today or, you know,

         16  next week, we did not just automatically jump and

         17  say, oh, sure, whatever you want.  We felt there

         18  were appropriate times for meetings, sometimes

         19  you're ready, sometimes your not.  You put a report

         20  out, you want to make sure you're ready to discuss

         21  it or maybe you have not even put the report out

         22  yet, and you're preparing information.

         23                 So there certainly could be a debate

         24  about how much access they had, whether they liked

         25  it or not, but we think they had, let me put it this
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          2  way, they certainly had more than any responsible

          3  party that I ever dealt with on a Superfund site.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Wasn't the

          5  original comment supposed to end in February?

          6                 MR. MCCABE:  Yes, there was a two-

          7  month, we initially came up with a two- month

          8  comment period, and we extended based upon a number

          9  of comments from the public to another two months

         10  until April 17th.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Is that

         12  unusual?

         13                 MR. MCCABE:  It's unusual, I wouldn't

         14  say it is unprecedented, I don't know about four

         15  months.  I know, I think I can recall another one we

         16  have done at least three months, but it's very

         17  unusual, yes.  This is an unusual site.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Is anyone

         19  engaging in any sort of dilatory tactic to delay the

         20  report, the final decision?

         21                 MR. MCCABE:  Not yet, I hope not.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  During the

         23  course of this whole period here?

         24                 MR. MCCABE:  Well let me just say we

         25  have an enormous number of comments already and we
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          2  still have some time to go.  We have 20,000 emails,

          3  20,000, we have, now of course a lot of these are

          4  standard, so it's not like we have to enter every

          5  one individually, but still, 20,000 is a lot.  We

          6  have about, I don't know, 11 or 12 cartons of paper

          7  that we received on it.  I mean every day I look at

          8  the front desk and I just see stacks and stacks of

          9  mail on the Hudson River.  So there is a lot of work

         10  to be done on the comments.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  People sending

         12  emails is the period, the comment period is over.

         13  And how long will it take for you to render your

         14  decision?

         15                 MR. MCCABE:  Well, we have scheduled

         16  a record of decision in August, and we certainly

         17  hope and expect that that is what we will be able to

         18  meet.  It is a little tough to sit here and say to

         19  you, after I just told you we had 20,000 emails and

         20  eleven boxes, and we don't even have General

         21  Electric's comments yet, that- -

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Did they tell

         23  you when you can expect to receive their comments?

         24                 MR. MCCABE: Oh, I expect towards the

         25  end of the comment period.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Do you

          3  anticipate a request for an extension of time to put

          4  in their comments?

          5                 MR. MCCABE:  We don't, we have had

          6  other requests for further extensions, but we have

          7  not granted any.  The comment period will end on

          8  April 17th.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Just on this

         10  subject, then I will stop and give you back to

         11  Gifford.  Do you regard time as the essence here in

         12  completing the work that has to be done here to

         13  preserve this River and to save the ecology of this

         14  River?

         15                 MR. MCCABE:  Well we believe that the

         16  sooner the better, obviously.  Some people have said

         17  what is taking you so long, it has been ten years,

         18  and other people are saying, why don't you wait a

         19  while, what is the rush to judgement here?  So we're

         20  getting that on both sides, which I guess is normal

         21  for every project.  But we think the time is right,

         22  we think we have more than enough information to

         23  make the decision and we would like to go forward.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  This time to do

         25  the remediation, is that important that we should do
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          2  it as soon as possible?

          3                 MR. MCCABE:  Sure.  I mean the more,

          4  the sooner you can get the PCBs out of the sediment,

          5  the sooner they can stop impacting the fish, the

          6  sooner you can limit the releases down river.  So

          7  absolutely, the sooner you can do it, the better off

          8  the River and the fish will be.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Then the danger

         10  and the risks that are involved here, you want to

         11  remediate that as soon as possible, because there

         12  are human beings possibly involved.

         13                 MR. MCCABE:  Absolutely, we know

         14  there are people, we know there are subsistence

         15  fisherman, so there is just no question about that.

         16  And any amount of risk, which we believe is

         17  substantial that we're dealing with here, but

         18  whatever the amount of risks that it finally reduces

         19  is still important.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Right, okay,

         21  thank you.  I want to say that we have been joined

         22  by some other Council members, Council Member Fiala

         23  from Staten Island just arrived; we have Council

         24  Member Victor Robles from Brooklyn, and that is it,

         25  right now.  Okay, continue, I'm sorry, Gifford,
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          2  please, continue.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  Let's talk

          4  about especially since you just mentioned it,

          5  getting the sediment out of the River, and as I

          6  understand it, the principal objection that GE and

          7  other opponents are raising about this, at this

          8  point now, is the notion of resuspension, whether or

          9  not this can be done in a safe and effective way.

         10  Can you kind of give us a little bit of a discussion

         11  about what the EPA's experienced has been in terms

         12  of dredging safely in other areas, and then, what

         13  you expect in terms of resuspension of PCBs as this

         14  process is undertaken?

         15                 MR. MCCABE: Yes, it's probably the

         16  most difficult issue on the table right now.  There

         17  is a lot of projects with a lot of different

         18  results, however, those are, of course, a lot of

         19  different river settings, every project is

         20  different.  I mean, I could give you an example,

         21  which you will say, but that won't fit here, the

         22  General Motor site.  I mean it's a site that we did

         23  in Region 2 up on the St. Lawrence River.  Now they

         24  use sheet piling there, we don't intend to use sheet

         25  piling here.
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          2                 The point is though that the project

          3  removed, and General Motor's estimation, about 99.8

          4  percent of the PCB mass. The Canadian, the Tribe,

          5  the St. Regis Mohawk Tribe, which is right down

          6  river from it, were all very pleased with the

          7  effort.  There was heavy monitoring and nothing

          8  really escaped, there was no problem.

          9                 Here, of course, we would be using

         10  silt curtains wherever possible.  We have hired

         11  dredging consultants specifically for this, they

         12  have estimated the amount of PCBs that will be

         13  remobilized.  That is in, there is some contention

         14  about that, that is part of the public comment

         15  process when we initially came out with our numbers,

         16  we said it was about 20 pounds per year, which is

         17  really 100 pounds over five years, comes out to 20

         18  pounds per year. Now we have revised the

         19  calculations based upon some other information that

         20  we have received and it's about 38 pounds a year.

         21  That all has to be thought of or considered in

         22  conjunction with what is currently going on, which

         23  is again, the 500 pounds, approximately that is

         24  going over the Troy Dam.

         25                 So, and this is a short- term issue,
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          2  of course, it is during the dredging period and it

          3  is a localized effect.  So there is a lot of issues

          4  here and there is a lot of ways to, oh, sort of

          5  muddy them up a bit, if you really want to, but

          6  really the bottom line is that it is going to be a

          7  significant reduction in the amount that is going

          8  down river from what is currently there, it is

          9  localized, and we would expect a pretty rapid

         10  recovery of the river bottom.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  I mean - -

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Gifford, let me

         13  interrupt for one second?

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  Yes, sure.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Is there a

         16  Mastofa Majud here, Mr. Majud, Mastofa Majud?  If he

         17  is, speak to Elias, Sergeant- At Arms, Elias, if you

         18  are here.

         19                 Okay, I'm sorry, continue.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  I'm sure that

         21  when GE comes to testify they're going to say

         22  something similar to what they said to me and to the

         23  Chairman before, which is the average of

         24  resuspension and point particularly to this report

         25  of the National Academy of Sciences, which just came
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          2  out.  Could you address the report and what kind of

          3  an average of resuspension rate you guys are

          4  figuring in, in terms of the 38 pound estimate or

          5  what that means?

          6                 MR. MCCABE:  Ours would be

          7  significantly less than what they have used.  I, of

          8  course, have read the report, I'm not going to

          9  attempt to give you a national answer, obviously,

         10  because that is going to come out of our

         11  Headquarter's Office concerning that.  I know they

         12  referenced certain studies, I think one was in the

         13  eighties, you know, I don't know what kind of

         14  dredging was used there.

         15                 But the bottom line is it depends on

         16  what kind of dredging equipment you're using and how

         17  careful you are with respect to the use of that

         18  equipment.  You could do a sloppy job, obviously,

         19  that is not our, we have no intention of doing that

         20  here, we are going to be as careful as possible.  We

         21  will be using environmental dredges whether that is

         22  hydraulically or mechanically operated that is to be

         23  decided at a later date.  They both work, they both

         24  have different pluses and minuses, different

         25  resuspension rates.
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          2                 So we're looking at that, we're

          3  looking at various studies, other rivers, the Fox

          4  River, USGS Study, there is a lot of information out

          5  there, and again, that is what part of the comment

          6  period is for, to get this information and to

          7  improve your study as best you can.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  And what, but

          9  regardless of what method you undertook, there would

         10  be real time monitoring that would be undertaken,

         11  and if there was considerable resuspension that was

         12  being caused, you would, obviously, suspend the

         13  activity, right?

         14                 MR. MCCABE:  Absolutely.  There are a

         15  number of concerns that the community has raised

         16  already, and we're looking into them, and we're

         17  going to address them as best we can.  For instance,

         18  the first thing that the community raised quite some

         19  time ago is that they did not want to have any part

         20  of a local landfill because of the impact that would

         21  have on the dairy farms and just in general.  Let's

         22  face it, nobody wants a landfill near them.  We said

         23  fine, we recognized that and we have eliminated that

         24  from consideration, which is rather unusual in the

         25  Superfund process that you have eliminated something
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          2  that is generally considered viable and is done

          3  elsewhere.  We said it won't go into the Hudson

          4  Valley, there won't be any new landfill put in

          5  there.

          6                 They have mentioned truck traffic,

          7  you know, geez, you're going to have a dewatering

          8  facility that is going to be taking, you know,

          9  umpteen thousand trucks through our community that

         10  is really going to be disruptive.  We said, good

         11  point, we're going to do as much as possible to

         12  limit, minimize truck usage by using rail and

         13  barges, so that is another example.

         14                 The community has mentioned the water

         15  supplies, there are downstream water supplies, of

         16  course, we're going to try, we're going to do our

         17  best to protect those, and there would be a

         18  contingency plan in place in case anything does

         19  happen there, but we, again, don't expect that to be

         20  an issue.  I know in Cumberland Bay, New York State

         21  had a water supply right near by and there wasn't a

         22  problem.  But, again, I don't want to, every river,

         23  every setting is different, so it is a little

         24  difficult to automatically compare things.

         25                 They're worried about noise and odor
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          2  and things like that, again, these are things that

          3  we're looking into right now and we're going to do

          4  our best to address the community concerns.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  I will ask

          6  one more question and then have other people ask

          7  questions.  The, I just completely forgot what my

          8  final question was.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  You can have

         10  another round. Mr. Carrion.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Thank you,

         12  Mr. Chairman. First, let me say that I'm glad to be

         13  a signatory to this resolution, and some of us grew

         14  up interacting with the River in camps and boating

         15  and fishing and all that good stuff, and I have a

         16  lot of fond memories of the Hudson River.

         17                 One of the issues with dredging the

         18  River is, of course, the ripping up of the river bed

         19  and the balance, the impacts on the balance of the

         20  river bed's life and ecological, you know, balance.

         21  Have you looked at comparable river dredging

         22  projects in your analysis, in your studies, because

         23  this is a 40 mile stretch, right?  Alternative 4

         24  says let's dredge 40 miles of the Hudson River.

         25                 MR. MCCABE:  It's a 40- mile stretch,
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          2  the first six miles, which is the Thompson Island

          3  Pool, which is the most contaminated area, that is

          4  about 60 percent of the dredging.  The next five

          5  mile stretch is about another 20 percent, so the

          6  last 29 miles is really only about 20 percent.  So

          7  even though, yes, it is 40 miles, but in the upper

          8  11, about 11 miles about 80 percent of the dredging

          9  would be done, because that is where most of the

         10  hotspots are.

         11                 So yes, we, have we looked at other

         12  rivers?  Yes. Has anyone else done 2.56 million

         13  cubic yards?  No.  But that doesn't mean that it

         14  cannot be done or that we cannot scale up what

         15  everyone else has done.   We have looked at the

         16  production rates, we feel confident that it can be

         17  handled.

         18                 We have looked at, you know, a lot of

         19  the issues that are coming up in the Hudson River

         20  were not of that great concern elsewhere.  People,

         21  rightfully so, are becoming more and more interested

         22  in these kinds of projects.  I mean when we did the

         23  St. Lawrence River I wish we had video cameras out

         24  there to really document a lot more of what was

         25  going on, but we did not.  We did do a video up
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          2  there after three years of the river bottom to see

          3  how it recovered and it is quite lush actually.  How

          4  much was in one or two years, I cannot tell you

          5  because we just did not do video back then, or I

          6  guess it was GE that actually did it, but it is

          7  quite lush, and in that area we did not put a foot

          8  of backfill, which we're talking about here.

          9                 Here we're talking about dredging and

         10  then, of course, not in the channels, but elsewhere,

         11  putting down a foot of backfill to deal with any

         12  residual contamination and also for habitat

         13  restoration.  So we're pretty confident, as well as

         14  the trustee organizations are pretty confident, the

         15  Fish and Wildlife, Noah, New York State

         16  organizations, they're all pretty confident too.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  What happens

         18  to all that river life when you go into the River to

         19  dredge, the otters, the mink, et cetera, all these

         20  animals that are river dependent, do they just move

         21  down river?

         22                 MR. MCCABE:  Yes, they're going to

         23  move.  Just like if you go in the river and if there

         24  were fish around there, they're not going to swam

         25  towards you, they're going to move away from you.
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          2  Obviously, those, the life that is in the sediments

          3  is removed.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Right.

          5                 MR. MCCABE:  But anything else is

          6  going to move away.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  How do you

          8  respond to GE's contention that this is worse

          9  because of the resuspension that my colleague was

         10  talking about, why don't we just leave it alone, and

         11  you know, maybe in a thousand years it will be okay?

         12                 MR. MCCABE:  Well we believe that

         13  there an unacceptable risk currently, we believe we

         14  could do something about that risk with this

         15  dredging project.  We do agree that you need to

         16  control the source, everyone agrees with that, every

         17  Superfund project you get rid of the source.  That

         18  source was really discovered through this project,

         19  by the way, with that Allen Mill Event, I should say

         20  the severity of it, it certainly was in existence.

         21  There was an event where there was a major release

         22  which really complicated our entire effort,

         23  including the modeling efforts in the early

         24  nineties, and which was, in a way, was good because

         25  it led us to a better understanding of what the
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          2  problem was up there, and now they're taking care of

          3  it under order with New York State.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER CARRION:  Thank you.

          5  Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Evidently the

          7  use of PCBs was declared whatever the EPA declares

          8  it in 1976, was it?

          9                 MR. MCCABE:  Yes, I think it started

         10  in the beginning of 1977, something like that, yes.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: And outlawed its

         12  use, which was used by GE in 1977.

         13                 MR. MCCABE:  They stopped their

         14  discharge and my understanding was in 1977, yes.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  They no longer

         16  use PCBs in their operation.

         17                 MR. MCCABE:  Right, but there is a

         18  problem on the plant site, which there again,

         19  they're addressing, they have been addressing with

         20  New York State for a number of years, they spent,

         21  they will tell you how much, a great deal of money,

         22  I don't know, fifty, a hundred million dollars,

         23  whatever, cleaning up their plant site.  There is

         24  continuing discharge and that is what this current

         25  proposal is to eliminate.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  But my point is

          3  that the fact that it just did not happen

          4  automatically overnight that we outlawed the use of

          5  PCBs.  When did we first start determining there was

          6  a problem with PCBs, when did the government or any

          7  scientific knowledge come to the fact that PCBs were

          8  causing problems?

          9                 MR. MCCABE:  I could not give you an

         10  exact number or year.  I mean, I know that - -

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Approximately

         12  how many years?

         13                 MR. MCCABE:  Well probably passed in

         14  1977, I don't know, Marion, do you have any idea?

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Why don't you

         16  come up here and give us your name?

         17                 MR. MCCABE:  Marion Olsen is the

         18  toxicologist assigned to the site.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  That is exactly

         20  what I want to hear.

         21                 MR. MCCABE:  She is more conversed in

         22  this than I am.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  She is exactly

         24  the person I would like to have some questions for?

         25  Just identify yourself, Marion.  My question to you
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          2  is for how long have we known that PCBs is a problem

          3  and there is a risk of PCBs both to animal and human

          4  beings?

          5                 MS. OLSEN:  There has been an amount

          6  of evidence. In the 1950s there was some evidence,

          7  and then in the 1970s, there were animal studies

          8  that showed PCBs cause cancer in animals, these were

          9  done in the early 1970s.  In addition to which the

         10  National Institute of Occupational Safety and Health

         11  in 1976, identified them as a health problem for

         12  carcinogenicity.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Do you have any

         14  knowledge or whether or not GE knew about these

         15  studies that were being done, was it widespread

         16  known in the industrial community that there was a

         17  problem, and there was a potential problem with

         18  PCBs?

         19                 MS. OLSEN:  The study that I referred

         20  to, the 1970, I think it was 1975 or 1976, was

         21  published in the literature.  I think they should

         22  address when they knew about it specifically.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Your agency

         24  probably, who was using PCBs at this time, which

         25  what they were used for, PCBs were used for; is that
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          2  correct?

          3                 MS. OLSEN:  I'm sorry?

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Your agency

          5  knew who was using PCBs to do various functions,

          6  such as the functions being - -

          7                 MR. MCCABE:  No, we know the kinds of

          8  industries that were using them.  I don't think we

          9  would say specifically we knew exactly which

         10  particular facilities were using them, but in

         11  general.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  What I'm trying

         13  to find out is to what knowledge do you have that GE

         14  had knowledge prior to 1977 that PCBs constituted a

         15  danger to life, health and safety?

         16                 MR. MCCABE:  That is something I

         17  really couldn't answer.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  But you do know

         19  that the materials, the studies that you refer to

         20  were published, were out there, and if somebody was

         21  interested in finding out, they would know about it?

         22                 MS. OLSEN:  Yes, the study that I'm

         23  referring to was in the 1970s and basically that was

         24  part of the basis for EPA's decision to generally

         25  ban PCBs in 1977.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And did you go

          3  through a whole Peer Review before you actually came

          4  out with the ban?

          5                 MS. OLSEN:  It went through

          6  regulations through the Toxic Substances' Control

          7  Act.

          8                 MR. MCCABE:  Now to be fair I have to

          9  acknowledge that GE did have a permit for a couple

         10  of years leading up to 1977, I think it was about

         11  1975 through 1977.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  A permit to do

         13  what?

         14                 MR. MCCABE:  To discharge a certain

         15  level of PCBs through their outfall, so they did

         16  have a permit for that.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I understand

         18  that, but did you, was the permit granted by the EPA

         19  or granted by DEC, New York DEC?

         20                 MR. MCCABE:  I assume at that time it

         21  was EPA's permit, but if it wasn't, it would have

         22  been under the authority of the EPA through DEC, so

         23  either way.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  But

         25  nevertheless there was a body of knowledge out there
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          2  that said PCBs was a danger.

          3                 MR. MCCABE:  There was information,

          4  yes.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  But there was

          6  knowledge, they knew or should have known that PCBs

          7  constituted a danger and there was a problem there

          8  with it, and I intend to ask them what they did when

          9  they learned about it and how long they knew about

         10  it, that is the reason I'm asking this question.

         11                 MR. MCCABE:  It probably is best to

         12  ask them, yes.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Council Member

         14  Quinn.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Thank you.  In

         16  your testimony you talk about the increase, I think

         17  it was a thousand times higher, increased risk of

         18  cancer for people who eat contaminated fish.  You

         19  could just elaborate a little bit more on the health

         20  impacts of the present situation, as it relates to

         21  the River, and what the EPA's perspective is on how

         22  the plan you all have put forward will impact the

         23  risk of cancer and other health situations versus,

         24  you know, the other ideas that have been put forward

         25  of waiting and letting the River, you know, clean
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          2  itself?

          3                 MR. MCCABE:  I have just the person

          4  that can do that for you.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Oh, there we

          6  go, perfect, timing is everything.

          7                 MS. OLSEN:  The way in which the

          8  agency evaluated the potential cancer impacts and

          9  non- cancer health effects from exposure to PCBs in

         10  the River, is that we looked at information about

         11  how much fish is ingested and we used the Statewide

         12  Survey of Licensed Anglers, we looked at all of the

         13  information within that survey, and we came up with

         14  an amount for 90 percent of the people, Licensed

         15  Anglers, 90 percent were consuming 51 meals per year

         16  or less, and 10 percent were actually ingesting more

         17  than that amount.

         18                 We used that information along with

         19  information from the models that looked at the

         20  concentration of PCBs over time, and we came up with

         21  a calculation of what would the risk be to an

         22  individual who consumed fish over a 40- year period

         23  of time.  Now this included young children,

         24  adolescents and adults, and the total risk for all

         25  of those populations is 1 in 1,000, and as Bill
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          2  mentioned, that is about 1,000 times higher than our

          3  goal of protection for cancer effects.

          4                 There has also been significant

          5  literature, lately, about the non- cancer health

          6  effects of PCBs.  There have been a number of

          7  studies in the United States and also in other

          8  countries internationally, that have looked at the

          9  effects, especially in children of mothers who

         10  consumed contaminated fish.  Now this provides us

         11  with another type of information about non- cancer

         12  health effects and Bill has mentioned those.

         13                 In the risk assessment we evaluated

         14  the non- cancer health effects as well, and the way

         15  in which the agency does this is that we use

         16  information on what is called a reference dose. This

         17  is similar to a safe level, and we're looking at, if

         18  someone consumes fish how much higher are they than

         19  that reference level. For young children it is 100

         20  times higher, for adolescents it was about 71 times

         21  higher, and for adults 65 times.  So similar to it

         22  like a level and you're above it, we would have

         23  increased concern about non- cancer health effects.

         24                 And, again, this information was

         25  externally Peer Reviewed, the information about the
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          2  toxicity PCBs has gone through external Peer Review,

          3  as well by the agency, and these are the standard

          4  toxicity factors that we use at all Superfund sites

          5  around the country.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  In the non-

          7  cancer health effects, the negative impacts to

          8  thyroid and immune systems, what are, can you just

          9  elaborate a little bit, a little more detail of what

         10  some of those are?

         11                 MS. OLSEN:  Okay, they have done a

         12  number of studies and our reference doses are

         13  actually based on studies that were conducted in

         14  monkeys.  And basically it is the ability of the

         15  animal to fight an infection, and PCBs are

         16  interfering with those abilities.  There have been

         17  other studies that have looked at thyroid levels, so

         18  there are certain ranges of thyroid levels that are

         19  appropriate, and what has happened with PCBs is that

         20  those levels are no longer within the normal range,

         21  and in some cases they have found higher levels, and

         22  in other cases they have found lower levels.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  The folks who

         24  looked at, who were the Anglers, et cetera, who are

         25  catching and eating the fish, how, what was the area
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          2  that those people were catching and they could eat

          3  whatever they wanted, I guess, was where they caught

          4  it is what matters?

          5                 MS. OLSEN:  Okay.  The surveys, there

          6  are two sets of surveys.  The survey that we based

          7  our risk assessment was a Statewide Survey of

          8  Licensed Anglers.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Okay.

         10                 MS. OLSEN:  What Bill had mentioned

         11  earlier was that New York State Department of Health

         12  conducted a survey in 1996 and essentially that

         13  survey looked specifically at Anglers in various

         14  sections of the River, including the Upper Hudson.

         15  The Upper Hudson from the Federal Dam of Troy up to

         16  Hudson Falls, there is a catchment release program

         17  currently in place, but the recommendations are to

         18  eat none.  But when they went out and did the

         19  survey, they actually found people with fish in

         20  their possession, and the assumption would be that

         21  they would consume those fish.  Because mostly

         22  you're supposed to release the fish back into the

         23  River, not keep it.

         24                 They also looked at other areas of

         25  the River, including the mid- Hudson, as well.  And
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          2  this built on an earlier study that was conducted in

          3  the early 1990s.  So they have a continuing set of

          4  data from 1990 and into 1996.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  So is it fair

          6  or accurate then to say that the impact of the PCBs

          7  in the fish is, could be felt really an area

          8  throughout the State, I mean, it isn't just in an

          9  isolated area?

         10                 MS. OLSEN:  Okay, when we did our

         11  risk assessment we looked at the Upper Hudson River

         12  and we calculated risks there.  We also looked at

         13  the Mid- Hudson, which was about Federal Dam of Troy

         14  to just south of Poughkeepsie, and again we found an

         15  unacceptable risk and hazards there.

         16                 And also keep in mind that New York

         17  State Department of Health has very specific

         18  recommendations for eating practices for fish in the

         19  Lower Hudson.  What they are recommending is not to

         20  consume more than so many meals per month of

         21  specific species based on the PCB contamination.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  What is your

         23  sense of the, so the risk at the moment is clearly,

         24  you know, unacceptable and above the agency's

         25  standards, what is your, or the agency's perspective
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          2  or position on what will happen if the dredging in

          3  your plan is put into practice, how will that lower

          4  the risk, up to what degree, how quickly versus the

          5  other idea that is out there?

          6                 MR. MCCABE:  There is a couple of

          7  different ways to look at it.  In terms of risk

          8  reduction you're talking versus doing nothing at all

          9  about, so about 80 to 90 percent reduction in the

         10  risk; versus just a source removal, you're talking

         11  about oh, about 60 to 85 percent reduction and those

         12  are for cancer.  For non cancer, it's, well, let's

         13  just say it's similar, similar numbers. In terms of

         14  the number of years it would depend upon which fish

         15  concentration you pick, again, that reasonable

         16  maximum exposure number that we, that Marion first

         17  referenced, the .05 number in fish versus the

         18  average number, which is a .4 parts per million in

         19  fish.

         20                 The .05 number, unless the source is

         21  completely cut off, which we didn't, we are looking

         22  at now, but we didn't look at previously, will not

         23  be met in the model of the future.  The modeling was

         24  about 67 years.

         25                 The .4 number, however, under our
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          2  alternative would be met, again, now that is the

          3  average consumer, a half a pound every two months,

          4  would be met in approximately 20 years, versus no

          5  action greater than 67 years, so in other words,

          6  outside of the modeling period, or the source

          7  control 34 to greater than 67 years.

          8                 So a great deal of difference in

          9  terms of meeting that number.  Well, what it really

         10  means is, because you could, you know everybody eats

         11  a different amount and you could pick a number and

         12  you could argue about a number what is right and

         13  what is wrong, but for those who are eating the fish

         14  now, regardless to the amount they eat, you're

         15  talking about a major risk reduction, and I think

         16  that is more of a take home message than, you know,

         17  exactly how much you're eating and trying to figure

         18  out a number.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Are there

         20  particular types of cancer that are most associated

         21  with PCB exposure?

         22                 MS. OLSEN:  In our analysis when EPA

         23  evaluates chemicals for carcinogenicity, we don't

         24  specify a specific type of cancer.  They have seen,

         25  there have been several occupational studies that
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          2  have looked at different types of cancer, but we are

          3  not predicting the actual type of cancer associated

          4  with this.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  So, but

          6  really, the bottom line is that the EPA believes the

          7  risk now is unacceptable and far too high, and that

          8  exactly how quickly and to what level is hard to say

          9  specifically, but your plan will have an impact on

         10  decreasing it as opposed to if we leave things the

         11  way they are.  It's hard to know.

         12                 MR. MCCABE:  Absolutely.  You can

         13  argue over exact numbers, you have got to remember

         14  all this is done through mathematical modeling.  And

         15  as the Peer Reviewers said, your model looks, and we

         16  have had a couple of Peer Reviews on our modeling,

         17  your model looks great for, you know, it was

         18  calibrated really well, meaning, you can approximate

         19  the numbers that happened in the past, you know, up

         20  until the time of the model.  However, don't try and

         21  pin an exact number on the future.  And the reason

         22  they said that, and the NAS kind of said the same

         23  thing, and the NAS report was that there is a lot of

         24  assumptions and a lot of co- efficients that go into

         25  a model, so, yes, you can make those, it's
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          2  mathematics, you can make those work.  But that

          3  doesn't mean you pick the right one for each one, so

          4  that in the future that is exactly how it is going

          5  to happen.  What is tells you though is that

          6  comparing this one to that one, this is how much

          7  better that one is going to be, and really that is

          8  the best you can do with it, I think.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  My last

         10  question is, a thousand times higher is that, that

         11  seems like a staggering number to me, how does that

         12  extra risk compare to the extra risk that the agency

         13  sees around other Superfund sites, or is that not a

         14  question that you can really?

         15                 MS. OLSEN:  Well, within EPA's, the

         16  Superfund Law we have a risk range, and it ranges

         17  from 1 in 10,000 to 1 in 1,000,000, so what we're

         18  telling you is it's 1,000 times the goal of

         19  protection which is 1 in 1,000,000.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Okay.

         21                 MS. OLSEN:  And it is 10 times higher

         22  than 1 in 10,000, which is our other portion of that

         23  range.  And at all Superfund sites, this is the

         24  general criteria that is used to determine whether

         25  remedial action is appropriate and necessary.  So if
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          2  the risk was 1 in 10,000,000 for example, there may

          3  be no remediation, but again, we're 1,000 times

          4  higher the goal of protection and the highest level

          5  that is allowable.

          6                 MR. MCCABE:  And to put into a little

          7  bit of perspective, we have under the Safe Drinking

          8  Water Act maximum contaminate levels, which is what

          9  you're drinking or what the most you can drink, a

         10  lot of those numbers, I think the goal for all those

         11  numbers was 10 to the- 6, the 1 in 1,000,000.

         12  However, a lot of those numbers are not at that 10

         13  to the- 6 number.  A lot of them because of cost

         14  factors and technology and the like are actually set

         15  at lower numbers, some of them even in the 10 to the

         16  4 or 1 in 10,000 range.  So I'm not trying to

         17  minimize the impact of what we're saying here, but

         18  I'm just trying to put it into a little bit of

         19  perspective that there are a variety of risks out

         20  there that we currently deal with.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  I just want to

         22  say, you know, with the, to just focus again on this

         23  issue of 1,000 times higher, this actually isn't a

         24  question, but more of a statement, is, so it's 1,000

         25  times higher than the EPA's standards, which some

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            58

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  have said in the past that EPA's standards could or

          3  perhaps even should be even stricter than are.  So

          4  we should, just as we look at this, remember that.

          5  No disrespect, in particular, to the agency, but

          6  these standards come out of - -

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  There is

          8  another issue here, and that is those people with

          9  immune deficiency.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER QUINN:  Absolutely.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  There are some

         12  people, because you're not considering with immune

         13  deficiency, you're just considering the average

         14  person, and the risk to the average person, not

         15  every person has an immune deficiency.

         16                 MS. OLSEN:  We are looking at what

         17  would be considered a reasonably, maximally exposed

         18  individual.  But that safe level that I talked about

         19  earlier is designed to be protective.  We put in

         20  special factors that are to protect various

         21  populations within, various human populations that

         22  may be exposed, including people with existing

         23  health conditions and things of that nature.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  There is AIDS.

         25                 MS. OLSEN:  It's looked at as part of
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          2  the process, so they look at a number of different,

          3  they have different factors to be protected for

          4  different health effects, not specifically for

          5  specific diseases, but in general.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Yes, thank you.

          7    What I wanted to ask you about is the issue of

          8  siting.  We have a number of people from Upstate New

          9  York who have come down here.  And you did testify

         10  that you are going to do dewatering of the dredge

         11  material, stabilize it and ship it by rail.  Where

         12  is the dewatering going to take place, and the

         13  stabilization going to take place before you ship it

         14  out by rail or truck?

         15                 MR. MCCABE:  In the study what we

         16  have done for costing purposes is locate a couple of

         17  facilities that are feasible.  We have not selected

         18  a facility, we do not do that at this stage of the

         19  game.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Already

         21  existing facilities or facilities that have to be

         22  built?

         23                 MR. MCCABE:  Oh, no, I'm sorry, they

         24  would have to be built, but this is on existing,

         25  commercial industrial property. So for the purposes

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            60

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  of, because you know you have to come up with a cost

          3  to figure out what makes sense, so for the purposes

          4  of the analysis we figured one in the Albany area

          5  and the other in the Moreau area, in other words,

          6  one on the south side of it and one on the north

          7  side of the project.  We do not have a specific

          8  facility, you know you have to go through a lot of

          9  legal work there, access to the facility, what have

         10  you, but we do believe there are available

         11  locations, particularly in the Albany area, there is

         12  a fairly good number of locations that are

         13  available.

         14                 And those facilities are necessary,

         15  it depends on whether you use mechanical or

         16  hydraulic dredging has to how large they would be,

         17  for the amount of dewatering that would be

         18  necessary.  Of course, you need to have them near a

         19  railhead.  So we're going to be taking the dewatered

         20  sediments away, and those would be, again for

         21  costing purposes.  We looked at facilities around

         22  the country both for the TSCA regulated PCBs and

         23  those that are non- TSCA, in other words over, above

         24  50 and below 50 is really the TSCA number.  And for

         25  costing purposes, again, we assume to place a TSCA
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          2  facility in Texas, and a non- TSCA facility in the

          3  Niagara Falls area.

          4                 But, again, these would be bid on,

          5  this is commerce, people actually want this stuff.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  We know we're

          7  having the same thing with respect to our garbage in

          8  the City.  We're going through the same thing, so

          9  it's probably very comparable.

         10                 MR. MCCABE:  Yes, I have heard.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:   Let me ask you

         12  this, so far from what you have heard not only

         13  today, but you have had at other hearings that you

         14  have had, and the documents that you have in front

         15  of you, have you heard anything that would cause you

         16  to readjust your thinking with respect to the use of

         17  Alternative Number 4, in naming the dredging, the

         18  Alternative 4 being the dredging of the 500 and so

         19  far acres?

         20                 MR. MCCABE:  To be honest with you,

         21  all I can say is that we have 20,000 - -

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Hopefully, I

         23  assume you are being honest with me.

         24                 MR. MCCABE:  Well we have 20,000

         25  emails, and as I said, in 11 or 12 boxes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I'm not talking

          3  about those things that you haven't heard or those

          4  things haven't read.  From what you have heard, what

          5  you have read, is there anything that makes you

          6  think that your preferred alternative of dredging is

          7  something that you shouldn't be doing?

          8                 MR. MCCABE:  The alternative, itself,

          9  I think we're still confident of what we have heard

         10  is adjustments to the alternatives, things that I

         11  have mentioned already.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Fine tuning.

         13                 MR. MCCABE:  Fine tuning it, but

         14  again, all the returns are not in.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Right.  And I

         16  hope for one of them, because when we get a

         17  transcript of this hearing, I don't know if you're

         18  going to be here, we will make sure that you have it

         19  so you have the benefit of the testimony today,

         20  which is one of the reasons we're having this

         21  hearing.

         22                 Mr. Miller.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  If I could

         24  just sort of return to one point, which I think is

         25  going to be important because I imagine it causes a
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          2  lot of discussion here, on the suspension, the

          3  resuspension data of the PCBs.  You said you

          4  assumed, you're now assuming 38 pounds a year, as a

          5  result of the dredging efforts.

          6                 MR. MCCABE:  Right.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  And how long

          8  will the dredging take?

          9                 MR. MCCABE:  Five years.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  Five years,

         11  and so what, can you give us that as a percentage,

         12  because this is what we're going to be, I'm sure,

         13  discussing here?

         14                 MR. MCCABE:  I guess, let's see that

         15  is about 190 pounds and we're talking about 100,000

         16  so that is what about .2 percent.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  It's .2

         18  percent.

         19                 MR. MCCABE:  Something like that

         20  unless I did the math wrong.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  And then just

         22  on the dewatering thing, that involves, that would

         23  involve pipes running from, how exactly, you know,

         24  there has been, you know, you're going to try to

         25  avoid the truck traffic, does that involve piping a
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          2  lot of this material, does it involve barging a lot

          3  of this material?

          4                 MR. MCCABE:  No, we would expect to

          5  take the dewatered sediment out by rail.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  By rail.

          7  Okay, so you're not going to be running pipes with

          8  PCB contaminated material down the Hudson?

          9                 MR. MCCABE:  If, let me be clear on

         10  the different aspect of it, as far as that goes, no.

         11    If hydraulic dredging were selected you need to

         12  have a pipeline to the facility to take as the

         13  dredge moves along it goes through a pipeline to the

         14  dewatering facility, so that would be in the River.

         15                 If it is mechanically dredged, you

         16  would use barges to take it to this facility.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  Okay, and

         18  finally, could you just go over for us what the next

         19  process here is?  You're going to have a record of

         20  decision that will occur as a result of this. Does

         21  that mean that this is it, this is the remediation

         22  and now we can move to the compensatory part of the

         23  Superfund process or what?

         24                 MR. MCCABE:  Usually people figure

         25  well that is the end of the process, we're home
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          2  free.  Unfortunately, in this case I think that is

          3  the beginning of the process.  In August we

          4  anticipate signing a record of decision, that is the

          5  agency's final decision.  We would then offer it to

          6  the responsible parties, in this case General

          7  Electric, as to whether or not they would be

          8  interested in conducting that design and

          9  construction.  We could also, if they declined our

         10  offer, order them to do it, what is known as a

         11  Unilateral Order, and if they decline that,

         12  obviously, we could either go to court or implement

         13  it ourself and go after them later in cost recovery.

         14                 The design itself, that process

         15  depending upon the response of General Electric

         16  could take a few months to six months, I mean, it

         17  really depends on what they say.  Then it has to be

         18  designed, we're talking about approximately a three-

         19  year design. There would have to be more sampling

         20  done during design to really refine the areas that

         21  you're going to dredge a little more carefully, and

         22  then the construction is a five- year period.

         23                 Now there are varying ways that you

         24  can combine these things, and we're looking at every

         25  possible contracting mechanism to see what is the
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          2  best way to handle this, but just generally stating

          3  three years for design and fiver years for

          4  construction.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  And then once

          6  that record of decision is done, then the

          7  compensatory part of the Superfund process can move

          8  forward?

          9                 MR. MCCABE:  I'm not sure

         10  compensatory is a legal process, anyway, where we

         11  look to General Electric or any responsible party to

         12  conduct the work, and if they don't conduct it, we

         13  would do it, and then after the decision likely, I'm

         14  sorry, after we have taken the action and expended

         15  all the costs, we would then go after them for the

         16  damages, in the case of Unilateral Order, the law

         17  allows us to collect up to troubled damages, three

         18  times that.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Thank you very

         21  much, to be continued and we're very pleased that

         22  you were here today, thank both of you for being

         23  here.

         24                 MR. MCCABE:  Thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Our next
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          2  witness is Gordon J. Johnson, Assistant to New York

          3  State Attorney General Eliot Spitzer, welcome.

          4                 We have also been joined by Council

          5  Member John Sabini of Queens.

          6                 MR. JOHNSON:  Good morning.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Good morning,

          8  identify yourself and then we would like to hear

          9  your testimony.  We have got a lot of witnesses, we

         10  just want to make sure you're heard.

         11                 MR. JOHNSON:  My name is Gordon

         12  Johnson.  I'm the Deputy Bureau Chief of the

         13  Attorney General's Environmental Protection Bureau.

         14  Sitting with me is John Davis, who is an

         15  environmental scientist in my office who serves on

         16  the Scientific and Technical Advisory Committee for

         17  EPA's Hudson River Studies. He has been serving on

         18  that Committee for approximately the last 10 years.

         19                 I want to thank the Committee for the

         20  opportunity to appear and speak on behalf of Eliot

         21  Spitzer, the Attorney General of New York, who was

         22  not able to attend today in person.  The Attorney

         23  General strongly supports the United States

         24  Environmental Protection Agency's decision to dredge

         25  sediments from the most contaminated areas of the
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          2  Hudson River.

          3                 Fish throughout the Hudson River from

          4  Hudson Falls to the Battery are contaminated with

          5  PCBs, wildlife is contaminated and humans are

          6  exposed and also have been contaminated with PCBs.

          7  It is time to address the problem.

          8                 Congress made a decision twenty years

          9  ago and has repeatedly reaffirmed it since then,

         10  there is a compelling need to clean up toxic waste

         11  sites.  Companies responsible for those contaminates

         12  must clean them up, preferably by removing them.

         13  States around the country, including New York, have

         14  made similar judgements and passed similar laws.

         15                 The Hudson River after decades of

         16  study is long overdue for a clean up.  Based on the

         17  extensive record, EPA's Technical and Scientific

         18  Staff have made four critical determinations, which

         19  the New York State Department of Environmental

         20  Conservation's Technical Staff agree with.  These

         21  four points justify, in our view, EPA's proposed

         22  remedy, according to the EPA:

         23                 1.  PCBs cause harm to humans and

         24  wildlife, including harm to the immune,

         25  reproductive, nervous, and endocrine systems.  PCBs
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          2  are also probable human carcinogens.

          3                 2.  PCBs in the Hudson River

          4  sediments are available to fish and other animals,

          5  and from there can be ingested by humans.  We know

          6  that people are eating contaminated fish from the

          7  Hudson River.  Indeed, the impacts on New York City

          8  residents, in particular, with respect to the

          9  consumption of fish are particularly acute.

         10                 The New York State Department of

         11  Health advises that children and women of

         12  childbearing age eat no fish from the Hudson River,

         13  and that others seriously restrict their consumption

         14  because the fish are contaminated.  However, recent

         15  studies show that recreational Anglers regularly eat

         16  fish from the River and that many share the fish

         17  with family members.  This activity increases with

         18  the distance down the River.  Downstate Anglers are

         19  more likely to eat the fish than their Upstate

         20  comrades.  Members of minority groups are also more

         21  likely to consume the fish.  A 1992 study found, for

         22  instance, that while only 40 percent of whites ate

         23  the fish they caught from the Hudson River, 77

         24  percent of Blacks and 94 percent of Hispanics

         25  consume the contaminated fish. Further, the study
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          2  showed that approximately 50 percent of Downstate

          3  Anglers reported sharing Hudson River fish with the

          4  most at risk population women and children.  So

          5  there is a serious concern here for residents of New

          6  York City with respect to the consumption of fish.

          7                 3.  The Hudson River is not cleaning

          8  itself, and that PCB levels in the fish will remain

          9  essentially flat for the next umpteen years absent

         10  to remedy, and they have remained flat for the most

         11  part for the last 10 years.

         12                 4.  Finally, EPA concluded that

         13  dredging hotspots would remove large quantities of

         14  PCBs.  This will dramatically decrease human health

         15  risks, it will cut almost by half the amount of PCBs

         16  going over the Troy Dam, assisting significantly in

         17  the recovery of the 150 miles of the Lower Hudson

         18  River.  These long term benefits far outweighed the

         19  short- term impacts that may result from dredging.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Let me ask you

         21  a question, if I can interrupt you for a second, and

         22  that is, are we doing enough to stop people from

         23  eating fish, do we have any signs up in known

         24  fishing areas telling them don't eat this fish?

         25                 MR. JOHNSON:  I think that in
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          2  government we always know that we can probably do a

          3  better job.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I give that

          5  same answer, but are we doing enough?  We always say

          6  that, I say the same thing.

          7                 MR. JOHNSON:  Personally, we would

          8  like to have more done.  The problem that we have is

          9  that the populations that eat the fish are generally

         10  populations that rely on fish for a great deal of

         11  protein in their diets.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And they're

         13  people who cannot afford to go to the store and buy

         14  it.

         15                 MR. JOHNSON:  And they cannot afford

         16  to go to the store, and they - -

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  But the fact is

         18  they also cannot afford the hospital costs and the

         19  medical costs that are going be involved with if

         20  they develop some of these diseases and get cancer.

         21  But I just think we should, we know, and when I pass

         22  by and I see people fishing off various piers into

         23  the Hudson River, and I say, what are they doing,

         24  what is wrong with them? And Upstate New York the

         25  same thing, which is even closer up is probably more

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            72

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  fish involved with PCBs.  I just feel we should be

          3  doing a lot more and tell people this is a dangerous

          4  situation. EPA, the State, everyone said do not eat

          5  the fish from this River, it is going to cause

          6  health risks to you.

          7                 MR. JOHNSON:  I agree that it would

          8  be good to do more.  I think though that our

          9  experience is that given the needs of the population

         10  that are engaged in the fishing and the eating of

         11  the fish, in particular, we are still going to have

         12  a significant exposure of these populations to fish

         13  whatever we do.  And that is why it is very

         14  important - -

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Is that a

         16  reason for not to do anymore, just say we should be

         17  doing, I don't know if this is the jurisdiction of

         18  the Attorney General, but to have somebody put up

         19  signs, or the State Department of Environmental

         20  Conservation, but somebody should be out there

         21  putting up signs and don't fish here. We know where

         22  the fishing happens, why shouldn't there be signs up

         23  there telling them.   We have signs on every

         24  cigarette pack saying it's dangerous, why shouldn't

         25  we have signs where the people are eating this fish?
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          2                 MR. JOHNSON:  It is my understanding

          3  that the Department of Health and DEC do post

          4  stretches of the River with signs to indicate to

          5  people that they should not consume the fish.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I have never

          7  seen one, I just hope, maybe you could look into it,

          8  I would really appreciate it. Thank you, continue,

          9  I'm sorry to interrupt you.

         10                 MR. JOHNSON:  Just one further point,

         11  contrary to the common misperception GE's discharges

         12  were not always permitted or legal.  Indeed, GE had

         13  no permit whatsoever for its discharges for most of

         14  the period of time that it was discharging.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  What period of

         16  time would that be?

         17                 MR. JOHNSON:  GE's own records show

         18  that they discharged PCBs from the Fort Edward Plant

         19  beginning in about 1947, and from its Hudson Falls

         20  Plant in 1951.  But in the 1960s, many courts,

         21  including the United States Supreme Court had

         22  interpreted Federal Law to prohibit these types of

         23  unpermitted releases.  Yet, GE first sought a water

         24  quality certification from New York City in 1971,

         25  which was a step preliminary to getting a Federal
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          2  Permit. They did not apply for a Federal Permit

          3  until 1973 and did not obtain it until 1975.

          4                 Now, of course, GE has never received

          5  any permits whatsoever for the seepage of PCBs into

          6  the River from the bedrock and the soil beneath the

          7  Hudson Falls Plant.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Which continues

          9  to this day.

         10                 MR. JOHNSON: Which continues to this

         11  day, fortunately, at a more reduced level than

         12  before, but are continuing.

         13                 Also, I would note that in 1975 the

         14  Department of Environmental Conservation charged GE

         15  with illegally releasing PCBs from 1972 to 1975.

         16  After a full hearing, the Administrative Law Judge,

         17  Abraham Soffer, who later became a United States

         18  District Court Judge and later the legal advisor to

         19  the State Department, ruled that GE's discharges

         20  violated State law.  He found that, "the record in

         21  this case overwhelmingly demonstrates violations of

         22  (two sections of Environmental Law) within the

         23  applicable period.  GE has discharged PCBs in

         24  quantities that have breached applicable standards

         25  of water quality."
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          2                 GE then settled the case by agreeing

          3  to stop using PCBs at its facilities and to stop the

          4  direct manufacturing discharges of PCBs into the

          5  Hudson River.  And a settlement agreement was

          6  reached from which GE did not admit liability.

          7                 Since 1977, GE has had a State Permit

          8  for discharges containing PCBs from its waste water

          9  treatment plants.  However, GE's discharges have

         10  exceeded the permit levels on numerous occasions,

         11  and of course, the underground seepages are not

         12  allowed by the permit whatsoever.  So that is,

         13  although, GE has had a PCB permit since 1975, it

         14  would be inaccurate to say that all the PCB charges

         15  since that date have been lawful.

         16                 The Attorney General said several

         17  years ago that the clean up of the Hudson River has

         18  been delayed too long.  We're thankful and we're

         19  pleased that a decision now, a preliminary decision

         20  is made by EPA.  Now, though, we think after all

         21  this study it is now time to deliver, it is time to

         22  start up the clean up.  And the Attorney General

         23  calls upon GE to join us in supporting this sound

         24  and fair remedy for the River.  Together we can make

         25  progress and leave our children and grandchildren a
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          2  legacy we could be proud of.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Was there ever

          4  an injunction obtained against GE to stop the

          5  release of PCBs into the River and to the seepage?

          6                 MR. JOHNSON:  No, no formal

          7  injunction was sought or obtained.  However, in the

          8  midst of the Administrative proceeding it was

          9  settled with GE agreeing to halt the discharges.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And that was in

         11  1977?

         12                 MR. JOHNSON:  The summon was in 1976

         13  and the halt in the discharges went into effect, I

         14  believe in early 1977.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And the

         16  settlement was it so ordered by Soffer, the Judge?

         17                 MR. JOHNSON:  It was agreed to by

         18  the, it was an Administrative settlement - -

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  By the

         20  Administrative Judge.

         21                 MR. JOHNSON:  Right.  Judge Soffer

         22  was a hearing officer, it was administratively and

         23  legally the way it works out is that an agreement

         24  and an order is, an agreement is issued, is executed

         25  between the parties, GE and the Department of
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          2  Environmental Conservation.  And the Commissioner

          3  then issued an order - -

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Pursuant to the

          5  agreement.

          6                 MR. JOHNSON: - -  pursuant to the

          7  agreement setting forth its pertinent terms.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Do we know if

          9  that order was ever complied with?

         10                 MR. JOHNSON:  Well the order was

         11  complied with to some extent.  As I indicated the

         12  order set limits for a new permit that allowed

         13  certain minimal discharges of one gram per day, a

         14  gram being approximately a thirtieth of that.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And who was to

         16  monitor that?

         17                 MR. JOHNSON:  Under this the State

         18  Pollution of Elimination Discharge Permit Program,

         19  the company is required, the discharger in this

         20  case, GE is required to take regular samples of

         21  their discharge, analyze it and provide those

         22  results to DEC.  And DEC from time to time will

         23  audit those results.

         24                 And what DEC has found from time to

         25  time is that there were excedents of those, of the
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          2  discharge limits at the plants on several occasions.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And has action

          4  been taken as a result of that, they violated the

          5  order?

          6                 MR. JOHNSON:  I don't know the exact

          7  actions that did occur, whether there were penalties

          8  imposed.  I know there were discussions between the

          9  company and DEC in how to improve their processes

         10  and prevent further discharge.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  What you're

         12  saying essentially is that way before, they agreed

         13  to suspend the PCBs, the discharges of PCBs, they

         14  knew that there was a problem with PCBs, because the

         15  water was an obvious issue, there was nothing that

         16  the PCBs were harmless, back in the early seventies

         17  or maybe even before that there was a problem with

         18  PCBs?

         19                 MR. JOHNSON:  The vast majority of

         20  the PCBs that were discharged from the Hudson River

         21  were discharged before 1975. Beginning in the late

         22  sixties and the early seventies, Masanto, which was

         23  a major manufacturer of PCBs informed its customers

         24  that PCBs may constitute an environmental hazard,

         25  and environmental contaminant.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Based on

          3  scientific studies and medical studies?

          4                 MR. JOHNSON:  It was based on some

          5  early scientific studies, for instance, in the late

          6  sixties there were studies in Japan of the effect of

          7  PCBs.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Do you know

          9  whether or not GE knew about those studies, or were

         10  privy to those, to that information?

         11                 MR. JOHNSON:  I cannot say for

         12  certain what GE knew, however, GE was then and is

         13  now a very sophisticated and well informed

         14  corporation, and I know from documents that we have

         15  viewed in the course of various litigations and

         16  discovery of documents that GE was aware that PCBs

         17  were suspect chemical by the early seventies.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  What date are

         19  those documents, do you know?

         20                 MR. JOHNSON:  In the early 1970s.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Early 1970s way

         22  before they agreed to suspend the discharge.

         23                 MR. JOHNSON:  In a period of five or

         24  six years.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  So in your
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          2  opinion do you think they knew or should have known

          3  that there was a danger and they should have

          4  suspended on their own before they had to be brought

          5  to Administrative procedures?

          6                 MR. JOHNSON:  I don't think that I'm

          7  really qualified to draw that conclusion based on

          8  the information that I have.  It was clear though by

          9  the early seventies that PCBs could be an

         10  environmental hazard.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  The literature

         12  existed, right?

         13                 MR. JOHNSON:  There was literature -

         14   -

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And anybody who

         16  dealt with a chemical such as PCBs should have been

         17  aware of the fact that there was literature saying

         18  they constituted a danger to the life, health and

         19  safety of the people who would be exposed to it.

         20  Isn't that correct?

         21                 MR. JOHNSON:  There was scientific

         22  information and evidence available by the early

         23  seventies that PCBs could be a problem and that they

         24  should definitely looked at.   I think that a

         25  responsible company would have taken the opportunity
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          2  to review its activities and determine whether - -

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  But instead

          4  they actually had to be brought to an Administrative

          5  procedure on it, they did not voluntarily stop using

          6  PCBs themselves.  And the alternative to using PCBs,

          7  which they use now; is that correct?

          8                 MR. JOHNSON:  The company did not

          9  voluntarily stop using PCBs that is correct.

         10  Although, they did reduce the amount of PCBs in

         11  their discharges, so that by 1975 they were

         12  discharging 30 pounds or less per day.

         13                 I would note, however, of course at

         14  30 pounds per day was a substantial amount of PCBs.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I have not read

         16  it but I have in front of me and I will give anybody

         17  who wants a copy of it, a letter that my advisor,

         18  Jim Gennaro says, is from the Donald Lowsen, from

         19  Masanto, Director of Sales, the Functional Foods

         20  Group of Masanto, dated February 18th, 1970 where it

         21  indicates, it's a letter to GE, is this?

         22                 MR. GENNARO:  I have not had a chance

         23  to review it.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Okay, but it

         25  was a letter with respect to the dangers of PCBs and
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          2  dated as far back as 1970.  And also 1975, there are

          3  letters, 1955.  But evidently there is a bundle of

          4  material out there to say there was a danger.

          5                 I mean, the point I'm making is now

          6  GE is going to be coming before us, and they're

          7  going to say, look, this is expensive, we should not

          8  have to do this, and this and that.  They do not

          9  necessarily come in, as we say, inequity in the law,

         10  they're not necessarily coming in with necessarily

         11  clean hands.

         12                 MR. JOHNSON:  There is no inequity in

         13  the law.  The Superfund Law, which has been in

         14  existence since 1920, requires any company that has

         15  discharged hazardous substances, which include PCBs,

         16  to address those discharges and to pay for remedial

         17  actions designed to protect the public, as a result

         18  of those discharges.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  So the question

         20  is really, how long has PCBs been delineated a

         21  hazardous substance.

         22                 MR. JOHNSON:  Well they have been

         23  delineated a hazardous substance since the mid-

         24  1970s.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And do they
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          2  give any more dangerous things to do with PCBs, a

          3  hazardous substance than to dumping in the River or

          4  allow seepage into a River?

          5                 MR. JOHNSON:  That is certainly

          6  something that you do not want to allow to occur,

          7  and it has been occurring at the GE plants since the

          8  1970s, unfortunately.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Thank you very

         10  much.  Do you have a question?  Thank you very much.

         11                 You certainly can say more than one

         12  thing, you have been sitting there very nicely.

         13  Just identify yourself.

         14                 MR. DAVIS:  Okay, I have a couple of

         15  clarifying points to some of the things that EPA

         16  said, I don't want to take up too much time.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Please, do.

         18  Can you identify yourself?

         19                 MR. DAVIS:  My name is John Davis.  I

         20  am an Environmental Scientist at New York State

         21  Attorney General's Office, working on Hudson River

         22  issues.  And I'm sorry that Councilwoman Quinn isn't

         23  here for this one point, because - -

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Well we will

         25  make sure that she hears your testimony.
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          2                 MR. DAVIS:  The EPA, when the EPA

          3  developed its consumption assumptions for their

          4  modeling of risk assessment, when they came up with

          5  their estimates of how much fish various people eat

          6  they used the survey of Licensed Anglers in New York

          7  State.  I want to point out that if you fish in the

          8  Hudson River from Albany south, including all the

          9  waters around New York City, you don't need to

         10  obtain a license, it is considered Marine and

         11  Coastal Waters, so you do not need a license.  Most

         12  of the people you see out in Riverside Park and

         13  Battery Park fishing do not have a license, so they

         14  did not participate in that survey.  So these people

         15  may actually consume a lot more fish than the

         16  average licensed holder from Upstate who fishes in

         17  the Finger Lakes or the rivers of Upstate New York.

         18  And that, I guess, of concern to people who live in

         19  New York City more than it might be.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I assumed that

         21  the ones that they surveyed were people who fished

         22  in the Hudson River.  Are you saying it is not so?

         23                 MR. DAVIS:  No, the Statewide Anglers

         24  Survey is used just to figure out approximately how

         25  many people eat fish and how much fish from the
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          2  fresh waters of New York State.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And some people

          4  use it as a sport, other people use it as a

          5  necessity.

          6                 MR. DAVIS: That is correct, and I am

          7  a recreational Angler myself here in the Rockaways

          8  and the Hudson River.

          9                 And another point to be made is the

         10  distinction between the FDA level and the protective

         11  level, as was discussed. The FDA uses a market

         12  dilution effect of people who have obtained fish

         13  from various different areas.  But I can tell you as

         14  an Angler, if I catch a big striped bass, I'm going

         15  to eat that fish three days in a row, and I'm going

         16  to freeze it and eat it onto the winter, and that is

         17  one of the reasons why the protective levels happen

         18  to be lower than the FDA levels, because they assume

         19  more focused consumption of contaminated fish.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I think it is a

         21  very good point and thank you for adding to it.

         22                 The next witness is Stephen Ramsey

         23  and John Haggard, and Dr. Steven Hamilton of General

         24  Electric Company.

         25                 Gentlemen, good morning, it is still

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            86

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  good morning. We're very pleased to have you here.

          3  I think we have given you a good deal of material to

          4  talk about and to comment on.  It's our way of

          5  getting information, and we're still keeping an open

          6  mind.

          7                 MR. RAMSEY:  That is good.  Let me

          8  introduce myself, my name is Steve Ramsey.  I'm the

          9  Vice President for Corporate Environmental Programs

         10  at the General Electric Company.  I'm responsible

         11  globally for GE's Environmental Health and Safety

         12  Programs, which includes compliance, worker safety,

         13  a variety of other issues, and it also includes the

         14  overall management of the remedial program that the

         15  company is involved in.

         16                 To my left is John Haggard.  Mr.

         17  Haggard is the Manager of the Hudson River Project.

         18  Prior to coming to the General Electric Company, Mr.

         19  Haggard was a Project Manager in Region 8 of EPA,

         20  where he dealt with some of the largest Superfund

         21  sites in the United States.

         22                 To my right is Dr. Steven Hamilton,

         23  who has been with the company almost four years, and

         24  is probably more knowledgeable, or has knowledge

         25  about polychlorinated biphenyls as any person that
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          2  any of us are ever likely to meet.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Is he a medical

          4  doctor or is he?

          5                 MR. RAMSEY:  He has a Ph.D. in

          6  Chemistry.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Ph.D. in

          8  Chemistry.

          9                 MR. RAMSEY:  We have provided you

         10  with some materials that are before the panel, and

         11  obviously, we will respond to questions.

         12                 We have a map in the beginning, which

         13  I think defines the site, it has already been

         14  described by Mr. McCabe. The Superfund site, or the

         15  portion of the Superfund site where the work will be

         16  done, is north of Albany, New York, north of Troy.

         17  It is the 40 miles from the General Electric Plants

         18  at Fort Edward and Hudson Falls down to what is

         19  referred to as the Federal Dam at Troy.  None of

         20  this work will be done lower than that, none of the

         21  dredging will occur in the Lower River or in the

         22  Middle Hudson River.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  You're talking

         24  about the dredging proposed by Alternative 4 of the

         25  EPA?
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          2                 MR. RAMSEY:  That is correct.

          3                 I would like to speak a little bit

          4  about the background page, and given some of the

          5  testimony by others and some of the comments, we

          6  might spend a little more time on the background

          7  than we originally thought.

          8                 We didn't come today, as I told you

          9  yesterday, to talk about the toxicity of PCBs,

         10  because ultimately the answer here is whatever they

         11  are, they're there, and whatever they are, the

         12  question is, what is the best way to deal with them.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  So there is

         14  agreement that PCBs are toxic and they cause all of

         15  the things that people testified to?

         16                 MR. RAMSEY:  No, there is no

         17  agreement to that.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  What is your

         19  contention with respect to PCBs?

         20                 MR. RAMSEY:  Well, let me cover that

         21  as I can, Mr. Chairman.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Okay, fine.

         23                 MR. RAMSEY:  First, let me address

         24  the fact of the Hudson Falls in Fort Edward Plants

         25  and the use of PCBs.  As I think most of the people
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          2  who have testified previously know, but for the

          3  benefit of the Committee, the General Electric

          4  Company never manufactured polychlorinated

          5  biphenyls, Monsanto was the only other primary

          6  manufacturer of PCBs in the United States.

          7                 PCBs were used at our plants at

          8  Hudson Falls and Fort Edwards in electrical

          9  capacitors, they were used elsewhere in other

         10  electrical equipment, such as transformers.  But the

         11  PCBs at Fort Edward and Hudson Falls were of the

         12  kind that were used in capacitors.  PCBs were

         13  believed for almost four years to be, if you will,

         14  almost a miracle chemical, for several reasons.

         15                 One of the real problems in the early

         16  transmission of electricity was the capacitors and

         17  transformers and other things tended to catch fire,

         18  explode, and there were numerous deaths and lots of

         19  both personal damage, personal injury and property

         20  damages that result of the use of mineral spirits.

         21  When PCBs were developed and utilized in electrical

         22  equipment, they quickly became popular, they were

         23  mandated in some instances by local Building Codes,

         24  and they were encouraged by insurance companies

         25  because they reduced explosion and fire, and they
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          2  had the capacity to exceed mineral oil in

          3  transformers and electrical equipment in capacitors.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Could you put

          5  this in a time frame?

          6                 MR. RAMSEY:  This was in the

          7  thirties, forties, fifties and on into the sixties.

          8  And, in fact, there was a Task Force report at which

          9  during the seventies in which the banning of PCBs

         10  was considered, and the Federal Task Force that

         11  looked at it was concerned that banning PCBs,

         12  regardless of the environmental issues that were

         13  associated with them, might have dire consequences

         14  for electrical safety and for the safety of people

         15  who were near capacitors, near transformers.  This

         16  is roughly in the mid-seventies, okay?

         17                 Okay, we used PCBs legally at our

         18  facilities.  I don't think anybody has disputed that

         19  or will dispute it.  And with all due respect to the

         20  Attorney General's Office, when permits were

         21  required to be obtained by law and, and let's be

         22  candid here, were able to be obtained, we applied

         23  for permits and we received them and we operated

         24  under those permits.  There is no doubt that for a

         25  period of time prior to the seventies there was no
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          2  permitting program in this country.  But that is

          3  true not just for the two plants in Hudson Falls and

          4  Fort Edward, it is true for every water discharger

          5  into the United States at that time.

          6                 And before I did what I do now, and

          7  before I did what I did before that, for a period of

          8  six years I was the Chief of something called the

          9  Environmental Enforcement Section at the United

         10  States Department of Justice, where I supervised all

         11  of the litigation on behalf of the government to

         12  enforce the environmental laws of the United States.

         13  And with all due respect to the Attorney General,

         14  these laws have never been used as a substitute for

         15  the Permit Program.  So let me address, let me put

         16  that to rest.

         17                 The other thing I would point out is

         18  that in the 1970s, before the agreement in 1976,

         19  after the company had been notified by Monsanto that

         20  PCBs may accumulate in the environment, and that is

         21  when this information came about, in the early

         22  seventies, we notified our customers and we began

         23  and developed a plan to reduce the use of PCBs at

         24  all of our plants including Fort Edward and Hudson

         25  Falls.  So, despite the fact that we were authorized

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            92

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  to discharge up to 30 pounds a day of PCBs from our

          3  plants, by the time of the agreement in 1976, the

          4  company was discharging on the average of a pound

          5  and a half of PCBs.  And let me blunt, with all due

          6  respect to everyone, this company did exactly what

          7  people should expect responsible companies to do in

          8  this circumstance.  Although, it was legal to use

          9  PCBs, and although they were permitted by the State,

         10  and although they were recognized by any number of

         11  industrial organizations and safety organizations as

         12  being important, we began to make plans to reduce

         13  them.  Not abruptly, no, we didn't close the plants

         14  overnight, and I don't think anyone would have

         15  thought that would have been responsible.  I think

         16  if we had done that we would have been asking

         17  questions in Albany and elsewhere about why we had

         18  shut down our plants all of a sudden, but we did

         19  reduce dramatically the levels of PCBs.

         20                 I actually went back and did the

         21  math, and if you look at what we were authorized to

         22  discharge under our permits from the time we

         23  received them, we were authorized to discharge on

         24  the order of 30,000 to 35,000 pounds of PCBs.  If

         25  you look at our discharge monitoring reports --.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: This period?

          3                 MR. RAMSEY:  No, no, no.  Over the

          4  entire period.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  What period of

          6  time?

          7                 MR. RAMSEY:  It was the period of

          8  time from about 1973 or 1974, whenever we first

          9  received the authorization to go forward, our permit

         10  was actually issued in 1975, but we operated under

         11  an application, which was the state-of-the-art and

         12  the way things were done at that time.

         13                 Our actual discharges, as best I'm

         14  able to add them up, are no more than about 2,000

         15  pounds over the same period.  So although we were

         16  authorized to discharge up to 30,000 to 35,000

         17  pounds, our discharges were much less.  And, yes, on

         18  a handful of occasions there were violations of the

         19  permit after the 1976 agreement, but on, as I'm able

         20  to count, no more than a dozen occasions, and we're

         21  talking about, as Mr. Johnson pointed out, grams per

         22  day, and most of those violations would be

         23  considered by any regulatory or enforcement agency

         24  to be trivial in their nature.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Let me ask you
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          2  a question.

          3                 MR. RAMSEY: Yes.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Since you have

          5  done your homework, you have done the math on it,

          6  during the period of time that you used PCBs, when

          7  you started using it until the time you stopped

          8  using PCBs, how many tons of PCBs has been dumped in

          9  the Hudson?

         10                 MR. RAMSEY:  The answer is I don't

         11  know the answer to that because we did not have

         12  discharge monitoring records, and we did not have

         13  records of the amount of discharges into the River

         14  at that period.  The estimate of --

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  That is the

         16  only place it went to, the river, was it placed

         17  someplace else, PCBs, other than the River?

         18                 MR. RAMSEY: No, no, no, they were

         19  discharged as part of the process streaming into the

         20  River.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I'm just trying

         22  to get the facts.  So the only place that they were

         23  discharged was in the River, the PCBs?

         24                 MR. RAMSEY:  That is correct.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  The excess PCBs
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          2  which were not retained for the mechanism that you

          3  used it for were then discharged into the River?

          4                 MR. RAMSEY:  They were discharged

          5  under, through our process, for our process --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Yes, I

          7  understand that, I'm just trying -- and we have no

          8  idea of how many tons of PCBs eventually ended up in

          9  the River?

         10                 MR. RAMSEY:  I think that is right.

         11  I mean, I think the estimate that is normally --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Do you think

         13  you could make an estimate of some kind?

         14                 MR. RAMSEY:  The estimate that is

         15  normally used is a million pounds, and I think that

         16  is as good a guess, but I think most people if put

         17  to the test would say that is, at best, a gross

         18  estimate.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Okay.  But

         20  there is no record to indicate how much?

         21                 MR. RAMSEY:  I think that is correct.

         22                 There is record of usage, but not

         23  record of discharge part of the time that we had our

         24  discharge program.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Do you know how
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          2  many -- you do know how much PCBs you purchased from

          3  Monsanto?

          4                 MR. RAMSEY:  Yes, we do.  I don't,

          5  I'm sorry.  I would be glad to go back and try to

          6  put that together, but I mean that is not a figure

          7  that we looked at.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And you do know

          9  how much was used for the capacitors, right?

         10                 MR. RAMSEY:  It might be possible to

         11  reconstruct it. I mean, let's remember that we're

         12  talking about history that goes back almost 65 years

         13  at this point, and records that may or may not still

         14  exist.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  But you have

         16  not been using PCBs for 65 years?

         17                 MR. RAMSEY:  Well, no.  We first

         18  began using PCBs in the forties, we ceased using

         19  them at these plants, as the previous testimony has

         20  been, in the seventies.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I'm just trying

         22  to get a handle on how much we actually have in the

         23  River.

         24                 MR. RAMSEY:  I think the

         25  Environmental Protection Agency's estimate that
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          2  there are about 200,000 pounds in the upper 40 miles

          3  of the River is about as good an estimate as anybody

          4  has.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Okay.

          6                 MR. RAMSEY:  There was an action

          7  brought by the State of New York Department of

          8  Environmental Conservation in 1976, and Judge

          9  Soffer, who was at the time an Administrative Law

         10  Judge, did preside over it.  But I do think if we're

         11  going to talk about ancient history, we ought to

         12  talk about all of it.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Sure.

         14                 MR. RAMSEY:  There was no allegation

         15  ever, and Judge Soffer points out, that we violated

         16  the effluent discharge limits of our permits.  In

         17  other words, the amount per day that we were allowed

         18  to discharge, that wasn't the allegation.

         19                 The allegation was that there were

         20  water quality standards, which essentially say, thou

         21  shalt not discharge so much of a particular

         22  substance that it upsets the quality of the water.

         23  This lawsuit was brought as a result of some

         24  sampling that had been done in the lower Hudson

         25  River that for the first time revealed that there
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          2  were PCBs in the fish.  This led to an investigation

          3  by DEC, which led to the litigation in question.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Was PCBs

          5  delineated at that time as a hazardous substance?

          6                 MR. RAMSEY:  The answer to that I

          7  believe is no.  They were viewed as a waste. The

          8  Toxic Substances Control Act wasn't passed until

          9  1976, 1977. The Hazardous Waste Laws, the Research

         10  Conservation Recovery Act really didn't cover PCBs

         11  at that time, and certainly not until later.  They

         12  were a chemical, they were a chemical that was in

         13  use the way other chemicals were in use.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  There was

         15  literature out there citing some risks in the use of

         16  PCBs.

         17                 MR. RAMSEY:  Actually, and Dr.

         18  Hamilton can address this better than I, but let me

         19  tell you what I know about this.

         20                 There has been a lot of

         21  misinformation about this.  In 1974, a woman named

         22  Rhonada Kimbro, who was the Chief Scientist for some

         23  years at both the Center for Disease Control and the

         24  EPA with respect to things of this nature,

         25  discovered that PCBs caused tumors in laboratory
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          2  animals when fed at high doses.  And it is a

          3  peculiarity of the way EPA looks at these things

          4  that it is not whether they are malignant tumors,

          5  but whether they are any kind of tumors, benign or

          6  other, and if they cause, and if a substance causes

          7  tumors in laboratory animals, the EPA generally

          8  rates these substances to be possible or probable

          9  human carcinogens and a known animal carcinogen.

         10  I'm sorry.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Continue, I'm

         12  sorry.

         13                 MR. RAMSEY:  Excuse me.  Probable.

         14  Thank you, Doctor.

         15                 In 1976, we asked Doctor Irwin

         16  Sellakoff (phonetic), who was then at Mount Sinai

         17  Hospital, and Dr. Sellakoff is famous for having

         18  identified the risks associated with asbestos, to

         19  look at our workforce, and he did so.  And what he

         20  found was that there were no excess deaths from

         21  cancer, compared to the general population, nor

         22  other diseases at the time.  On four subsequent

         23  occasions our workers at Hudson Falls and Fort

         24  Edward had been studied by the New York State

         25  Department of Health, by the National Institutes of
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          2  Occupational Safety and Health, by a researcher from

          3  Harvard University, and finally, by Dr. Kimbro,

          4  herself, who, after she retired from the government,

          5  we asked to take a look at our workers and the

          6  health of our workers in the Hudson Falls and Fort

          7  Edward Plants.

          8                 On each of those occasions, the five

          9  independent studies and the one that, yes, the

         10  company funded, but was done by Dr. Kimbro, who is,

         11  I believe recognized as a very well respected

         12  authority in this area, the results were that in

         13  looking at the workers and the causes of mortality

         14  amongst our workers, and this is one of the largest

         15  mortality studies ever done, there are no

         16  statistically significant increases in death from

         17  cancer or other diseases, and there is no

         18  relationship that was found from exposure to PCBs or

         19  cancer, death by cancer in the workers. This same

         20  result has been seen in more than two dozen other

         21  studies, studies, again, done by independent

         22  researchers trying to look at breast cancer and the

         23  relationship between cancers and exposure to PCBs.

         24                 The bottom line here is, just to

         25  finish, and then I will be glad to answer your
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          2  question, is that what has been seen in animals in

          3  the laboratory with respect to cancer, has not been

          4  seen in human beings who were exposed at very high

          5  levels, higher than any environmental level that

          6  anybody will see in this room or who lives along the

          7  Hudson River, no so such findings have been seen

          8  amongst human beings.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  But do you

         10  include an exposure the eating of fish that have

         11  high levels of PCBs in their bodies?

         12                 MR. RAMSEY:  The workers at our

         13  plant, and some of them had more than a thousand

         14  parts per billion of PCBs in their blood, which are

         15  higher than any that would ever be seen through

         16  environmental ingestion of fish.

         17                 And let me ask Dr. Hamilton to

         18  address that.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  But what I'm

         20  saying to you, the reports that we're getting, the

         21  testimony we're getting is not that they were

         22  exposed to PCBs itself, except the day you come from

         23  eating fish that have been contaminated by PCBs.

         24                 MR. RAMSEY:  The Doctor can address

         25  that.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I'm just trying

          3  to get whether you dispute the linkage between

          4  eating fish with PCBs as a problem here as we're

          5  talking about?

          6                 The allegation is that the fish are

          7  getting contaminated with PCBs and that people who

          8  eat the fish are at a higher risk of cancer, of

          9  low-birth weight, and that is what I'm trying focus

         10  on because that is what the allegation is.

         11                 DR. HAMILTON:  Yes, we definitely

         12  dispute that. The levels of people that eat fish,

         13  for example, there was a study by Mount Sinai

         14  Hospital of people that eat fish along the Lower

         15  River down here, they reported average levels for

         16  those people around five or six parts per billion in

         17  the blood.  Workers from our plants had levels that

         18  were up above 2,000, an average level is around 300.

         19                 So there is, the difference in the

         20  exposure is just great, and you have to realize that

         21  the people in our plants that did not show any

         22  excess cancer as a result of very high exposures,

         23  were exposed to the same type of PCBs that went into

         24  the River.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Were they
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          2  exposed to eating a fish?

          3                 DR. HAMILTON:  No, they were not

          4  exposed through eating fish.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Well, that was

          6  the only point that I'm trying to make.

          7                 DR. HAMILTON:  But the ultimate

          8  measure is what is in your body, and these people

          9  had in their bodies far higher levels of PCBs than

         10  people from eating fish.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Okay, okay.

         12                 MR. RAMSEY:  The point here is, I

         13  don't think anyone would contend that it is the act

         14  of eating the fish that would somehow or other be a

         15  mechanism that would make PCBs harmful to you in a

         16  way that being exposed to them in the workplace and

         17  getting them into your body, it's how they get into

         18  the bloodstream.  I mean that is essentially all the

         19  -- I don't know of any science that would suggest

         20  otherwise.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Well EPA is,

         22  but that is what EPA has been testifying to, and

         23  that is what their documents say. I don't want to --

         24                 MR. RAMSEY:  I am sorry, I beg your

         25  pardon?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  We want to get

          3  to the issue of the cleanup.

          4                 MR. RAMSEY:  The other thing I would

          5  like to say about the litigation, which is what we

          6  were talking about that Judge Soffer presided over,

          7  is that he pointed out that the use of water quality

          8  standards, in this particular case, was the first

          9  time that it had ever been utilized in an

         10  enforcement action.  He commended both parties, the

         11  State and the General Electric Company, for settling

         12  the matter.  He said there was no evidence that the

         13  Company had intended to create a harm or any

         14  evidence that the violations were in some instance

         15  in bad faith.

         16                 The settlement was concluded by which

         17  the Company agreed to stop using PCBs, install a

         18  state-of-the-art waste water treatment plant, and

         19  put $4 million into a cleanup fund, all of which

         20  things the Company has done.  We have complied with

         21  that agreement and continue to comply with that

         22  agreement.

         23                 DEC released the Company from

         24  liability with respect to the PCBs that have been

         25  discharged into the River, agreed to match the money
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          2  in the cleanup fund, and to look for other sources

          3  of funding to undertake the cleanup.

          4                 Dredging has been rejected three

          5  times in the past 25 years.  Two State projects were

          6  rejected and in 1984, EPA rejected dredging the

          7  Hudson River, and when they did so they said, that a

          8  bank-to-bank dredging project of the type that is

          9  proposed for the Upper Hudson River could be

         10  devastating to the ecosystem.

         11                 Since 1976, the efforts of the

         12  General Electric Company working with DEC and with

         13  EPA, it resulted in our spending more than $200

         14  million to reduce the levels of PCBs in fish, and

         15  they have shown dramatic results.  Fish levels have

         16  declined more than 90 percent since 1977, 60 percent

         17  since 1984, and with all due respect to the folks

         18  who said they have plateaued, the National Academy

         19  of Sciences in a report issued Monday, pointed out

         20  that PCB levels in fish have declined an average of

         21  three percent per year in the last decade in the

         22  Upper River, and four percent per year in the last

         23  decade in the lower River.  And additional 30

         24  percent decline in the last 10 years.

         25                 Both EPA and GE models predict that
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          2  this decline will continue and that there will be

          3  another 50 percent decline over the course of the

          4  next 10 years.  EPA began its reassessment in 1990,

          5  and as Mr. McCabe pointed out, it has been 11 years

          6  undertaking this reassessment.

          7                 The basic question here is, what is

          8  the best way to reduce PCB levels in the fish in the

          9  Hudson River, is it a natural sedimentation plus

         10  stopping the source, or is it an unprecedented

         11  dredging program?  We think that the answer is not

         12  dredging, and we want to spend a few minutes telling

         13  you why.

         14                 First, we think it is important to

         15  understand how the River works, and the River works

         16  really in a pretty simple way. I think it is

         17  undisputed that the fish in the River get their PCBs

         18  from the food chain and that the surface sediments

         19  of the River, the top 10 centimeters, are important

         20  and the most important factor in what gets into the

         21  food chain, because both EPA's model and our model

         22  demonstrate that the buried sediments, below the 10

         23  centimeter level, are basically locked away.  It is

         24  from the surface sediments that PCBs get their fish,

         25  and where do the PCBs in the surface sediments come
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          2  from?  They come from the seeps that still occur

          3  from the bedrock underneath the plant and adjacent

          4  to the plant at Hudson Falls.

          5                 Seeps that we have worked with DEC

          6  over the past 15 years to address and reduce, and

          7  which have been reduced from five pounds per day,

          8  about -- excuse me, yes, five pounds per day to

          9  three ounces per day, and Mr. McCabe said five to

         10  six ounces per day, it's a matter of ounces however

         11  much that it is.

         12                 So we think that the source control

         13  program and the removal program that the Company has

         14  had underway with DEC and with EPA has shown

         15  dramatic and continued results, and that those

         16  results will continue.

         17                 We would point out that there are,

         18  since we're focusing on the lower River today, at

         19  least in part, that there are local sources of PCBs

         20  in the Metropolitan area that really overwhelm any

         21  contribution from the Upper River.  Approximately 80

         22  percent of the PCBs in the harbor area are from

         23  local sources, according to a Columbia University

         24  Study in 1996.  And New York City and New Jersey

         25  Water Treatment Plants have been identified by EPA
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          2  as the source of an estimated 700 pounds per year of

          3  PCBs which enter the harbor, again, a 1996 study.

          4  And that the New York City Water Treatment Plants

          5  alone have been identified as a source of about 260

          6  pounds per year of PCBs, which get into the harbor.

          7  And that is the New York City Track Down Program, a

          8  1998 study.  So there are, most of the PCBs sources

          9  in the lower River are from local sources and remain

         10  that way.

         11                 Let's talk for a moment then about

         12  the EPA proposal itself.  On page 8 of the charts,

         13  we talk about just the size and the scope, 2.65

         14  million cubic yards, 8 billion pounds of material to

         15  get at 100,000 pounds of PCBs.  I would point out

         16  that the GE Cleanup Program has already removed

         17  350,000 pounds of PCBs from the bedrock, the plant

         18  site and an adjacent area.  Basically, this figures

         19  out to be 80,000 PCBs of mud and sediment for every

         20  pound of PCB that is removed.  It is by 10 to 15

         21  times larger than any other program ever attempted

         22  by EPA or a State Environmental Agency, and it is by

         23  more than a million cubic yards larger than all

         24  environmental dredging projects that have ever been

         25  tried combined.
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          2                 As you will hear from some of the

          3  folks who live in the Upper River, one of the

          4  concerns about this is the logistics and the scope

          5  of this project.  EPA proposes to dredge or to have

          6  people on the River 24 hours a day dredging about 17

          7  hours of those days with dredging off of barges,

          8  about a fleet of about 40 to 50 boats, scows, tugs

          9  and otherwise of which this drilling, excuse me,

         10  this dredging will be done, up to 10 miles of

         11  underwater pipeline to carry any sort of slurry of

         12  PCBs and mud to the as yet unlocated hazardous waste

         13  storage and treatment facilities, two 15-acre

         14  dewatering plants.

         15                 I think we should point out that when

         16  EPA first announced that these plants would be

         17  located at the Port of Albany and at the Town of

         18  Moreau, the Mayor of Albany announced in the paper

         19  the next day that that would not happen, and the

         20  Town of Moreau has subsequently passed a resolution

         21  banning the siting of such facilities in the Town of

         22  Moreau.

         23                 It is a very real issue as to whether

         24  the kind of facilities that EPA needs to even

         25  undertake this program can ever be sited.  So
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          2  basically the folks of the Upper River face dredging

          3  on a six-day a week, 24-hour day, six-month a year

          4  basis, it will be as though there were a drilling

          5  rig in their backyard, kleig lights, the sorts of

          6  things we see associated with highway projects, the

          7  sorts of things you see associated with offshore

          8  drilling.

          9                 There are lots of risks that are

         10  associated with this.  During the public comment

         11  period EPA has held meetings along the River, they

         12  have been asked by people whether they have

         13  evaluated the risks to the people who will do the

         14  dredging, to the communities or the facilities that

         15  will treat this water will be located, and to the

         16  risks associated with undertaking this project all

         17  together.  The answer to those questions, at least,

         18  as we understand them is no, and in the 4,000-page

         19  document that EPA has released, there is no

         20  assessment of what risks may be associated with the

         21  kind of work, which is extremely risky and does

         22  carry with it a significant risk of accident and

         23  injury.

         24                 The National Academy Science's

         25  Report, which was issued on Monday about dredging
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          2  and PCBs, and EPA's own regulations require that all

          3  of those risks be evaluated before a decision should

          4  be made about a proposal, particularly a proposal of

          5  this type.

          6                 Among the things that one of the

          7  Council members asked about was the loss of critical

          8  habitat and the loss of what is called subaquatic

          9  vegetation in wetlands.

         10                 The EPA proposal acknowledges that up

         11  to 100 acres of subaquatic vegetation in wetlands on

         12  the shoreline will be destroyed.  That is no

         13  question, they will be destroyed when this dredging

         14  project goes forward.  So there is known negative

         15  ecological damage that will occur as a result of

         16  this project.

         17                 EPA has said that it will use two

         18  billion pounds of backfill material to attempt to

         19  restore the River.  The 4,000 page report carries

         20  with it no discussion of (a) how they would do this;

         21  (b) whether anything like this has ever been done;

         22  or, (c) the risks associated with trying to

         23  undertake such a project.

         24                 I would point out two examples:  In

         25  the Chesapeake Bay, Region 3 of EPA, which is
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          2  headquartered in Philadelphia, raised objections to

          3  a corps engineering project, which was going to

          4  destroy four acres of subaquatic vegetation, we're

          5  talking about almost 100 acres of that kind of

          6  habitat being destroyed here.

          7                 There is a project that has been

          8  tried on a relatively large scale of restoration of

          9  underwater habitat in Miami Bay and we would point

         10  out that that project did not succeed and was not a

         11  failure.  So, again, another unanswered question in

         12  addition to where are you going to take this stuff,

         13  which is not yet answered, where are you going to

         14  site the storage locations that are going to treat

         15  it and handle it, hasn't been answered, and can you

         16  even restore the River, a fundamental question we

         17  would suggest, is itself, open to question.

         18                 We think that the dredging provides

         19  not only no more benefit than source control, but

         20  carries with it both short-term and long-term

         21  disadvantages.  And here, if you don't mind, I'm

         22  going to allow John Haggard, the manager of our

         23  Hudson River Project, to address these issues.

         24                 MR. HAGGARD:  Great, thank you.

         25                 When we looked at the benefits of
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          2  this project, what we did, is, we got a copy of

          3  EPA's model of the Hudson River, as well as our own

          4  model, and what we have done is to use their model

          5  to simulate various options from doing nothing, no

          6  action, to doing source control, which they refer to

          7  as MNA, Monitor Natural Attenuation, to large scale

          8  dredging.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  They have five

         10  alternatives.

         11                 MR. HAGGARD:  Yes, option 4 is the

         12  one they proposed.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  That is right.

         14                 MR. HAGGARD:  So we used their model,

         15  as well as our model, to simulate those.  And the

         16  first thing we did is to be able to replicate using

         17  their model and what they found, and we have been

         18  able to do that.  And what you see when you do that

         19  and run the model is that we're seeing that the

         20  dredging is going to provide virtually no benefit in

         21  terms of achieving levels for relaxing the

         22  consumption advisories then you will get from no

         23  action, I'm sorry, from source control.  And that is

         24  assuming very fast dredging, five years

         25  unprecedented --
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          2                 MR. RAMSEY:  Get to these port

          3  charts.  We have five minutes; is that correct?  I'm

          4  sorry, I did not understand.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I'm going to

          6  give him more.

          7                 MR. HAGGARD:  Okay.

          8                 Well, let me go to chart number 10.

          9  When we take their model, and you look at risk, if

         10  you look at what the risks are, you can look at what

         11  average concentrations are for exposure potentially,

         12  and what we find is, if you look on the chart 10 at

         13  the top panel, the blue bar is if you do nothing.

         14  And this is Thompson Island Pool where most of the

         15  dredging will actually occur.  And then EPA's model

         16  shows that with no resuspension, no negative impacts

         17  what would happen is that the levels would go from

         18  about three part per million, three and one-half

         19  part per million, to about two part per million over

         20  a seven-year period and then they would, depending

         21  on the averaging period, you would see a less

         22  reduction.

         23                 But what happens is that when you

         24  factor in resuspension, the situation changes pretty

         25  dramatically.  And what we see is that dredging

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            115

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  will, in fact, remobilize PCBs, and it is going to

          3  result in higher PCB levels and a good portion of

          4  the River, short-term in some portions, and

          5  longer-term in other portions.  Now EPA, although

          6  they calculated 20 pounds, and now we're hearing

          7  something new, which is 38 pounds, which is not part

          8  of their record, in fact, when they did their

          9  benefits analysis, they assumed zero in their model.

         10  So EPA has no resuspension in their modeling

         11  calculations.

         12                 Now, not only has the National

         13  Academy of Sciences report come out indicating that

         14  resuspension is, in fact, a real significant issue

         15  for environmental dredging, and they come up with a

         16  range of values that suggests that anywhere from a

         17  half of percent to nine percent of the material

         18  trying to be dredged could be lost, the Academy did

         19  not have the information in front of them on two

         20  other projects that recently occurred in Wisconsin,

         21  in which environmental dredging was undertaken.

         22  This is the type of dredging that you will probably

         23  see a video of from some of the groups coming up

         24  next, and this was done behind silt curtains.  And

         25  what these two projects done, one was published, of
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          2  course, by the United States Geological Survey,

          3  showed that anywhere from 2.2 percent to up to 10

          4  percent of the PCBs they were taking out of the

          5  River, this is Fox River in Wisconsin, were lost

          6  outside of the area being dredged and outside of the

          7  silt curtains, using the best technology available,

          8  as being as careful as possible.

          9                 Now, when you put that into the EPA

         10  model, they're claiming 100,000 pounds, and if you

         11  assume near the low end that they're going to remove

         12  100,000 pounds, and we assume 2.5 percent loss, that

         13  is 2,500 pounds of PCBs mobilized.  And when we put

         14  that into the EPA model, what we see is that in the

         15  Thompson Island Pool any benefits that theoretically

         16  would occur with dredging really become washed out,

         17  and, in fact, in the shorter period, we see that

         18  increased risk in terms of fish concentration

         19  actually occurs.

         20                 Very importantly, in the section

         21  downstream of the River, in the largest portion of

         22  the River, PCB levels in fish are actually increased

         23  significantly, and not only increased for a short

         24  period of time, but there is a sustained increase in

         25  concentrations.
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          2                 If you look at page 11, what you see

          3  is if you have a five-year dredging program, this

          4  would be right before the upper, or this is right at

          5  the Troy, Albany area, where the Lower River starts,

          6  and what we see is in that area where EPA's model

          7  stops, is that the fish are actually increased for

          8  approximately a 15-year period.  Now that is not a

          9  short-term impact and that is not a benefit.  PCB

         10  levels are actually increased if you get this kind

         11  of resuspension, which the most current studies

         12  demonstrate will happen.

         13                 And when we look at page 12, and this

         14  is a modified chart taken from the EPA reports --

         15                 MR. RAMSEY:  Let me say one thing,

         16  the chart on page 11 covers 70 percent of the

         17  geographic area, the Superfund site, and it shows

         18  two things:  First, that there is virtually no

         19  difference between the source control program we

         20  have proposed and EPA's dredging program, assuming

         21  no resuspension.  And it shows, as John just said,

         22  with any, even a minimal amount of resuspension, you

         23  overwhelm any benefit and actually increase

         24  significantly the interim risk to people, if the

         25  interim risk EPA is concerned about is people eating
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          2  fish with PCBs in them.

          3                 Go ahead.

          4                 MR. HAGGARD:  And then if you look at

          5  the time to achieve these targets in which

          6  advisories can be, starting to be relaxed, what we

          7  see is when you add in resuspension, in fact, for a

          8  good portion of the River any benefits or any

          9  acceleration of time to achieve these relaxed

         10  advisories gets washed away by resuspension.  And as

         11  Stephen mentioned, a good portion of the River, the

         12  largest portion of the River, there is actually a

         13  slowing of the relaxation of the advisories.

         14                 Last, I would like to talk about what

         15  happens to the Lower River down in New York Harbor.

         16  EPA doesn't have a model of this part of the River,

         17  but what they have done is calculate how much PCB

         18  would come over the dam.  You have heard the number

         19  500 pounds per year compared to three ounces.  In

         20  fact, the number coming over the dam in most recent

         21  times is not 500 pounds, it's more in the order of

         22  350 pounds.  But the issue is, is EPA telling you

         23  that the 16 or 18 ounces a day is going to be zero

         24  when they're done?  If we take their model and you

         25  look at these bar chart on page 13, what we find is
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          2  that PCB levels over, if you integrate over a long

          3  period of time, there will be about 5,000 kilograms

          4  of PCBs if nothing is done coming into the Lower

          5  River from the Upper River.  If we do source

          6  control, if we stop that last small amount of PCBs,

          7  that three ounces of PCBs, that number will be

          8  reduced to approximately 3,000 kilograms.  If you do

          9  dredging with no resuspension, you get a very small

         10  reduction beyond source control, very small.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  Put that in

         12  pounds, because we just switched from, we were just

         13  talking about pounds all along, all of a sudden we

         14  went to kilograms.

         15                 MR. HAGGARD: Two point two pounds.

         16  The conversion is 2.2 pounds to go from kilograms to

         17  pounds.  So this would be about 3,000 kilograms,

         18  about 60 (sic) pounds.

         19                 MR. RAMSEY:  About 600 pounds.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: But let me just

         21  ask you a basic question?

         22                 MR. HAGGARD:  But let me finish just

         23  one last point.

         24                 What we see then with resuspension.

         25                 MR. RAMSEY:  Let him ask the
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          2  question.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  But everyone

          4  agrees there has to be a source control, right?

          5                 MR. HAGGARD:  Correct.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  All of the

          7  alternatives, all the five alternatives presuppose

          8  there is going to be source control.  The dredging

          9  they're talking about is in addition to the source

         10  control.

         11                 MR. HAGGARD:  Correct.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Okay.

         13                 MR. HAGGARD:  And the question is,

         14  what benefit do you get by that additional work

         15  given the impacts that it causes? And what you're

         16  seeing when you take a realistic look at what the

         17  technology's capabilities are with the reality of

         18  resuspension, that dredging will increase the amount

         19  of PCBs sent to the lower River beyond what will

         20  happen if you do source control.  So the benefit is

         21  not there, it is a negative impact to the Lower

         22  Hudson River. So why undertake a project that has

         23  the impacts to the communities upriver, to the

         24  ecology upriver, when there is no benefit?  This is

         25  not going to allow the removal of any advisories
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          2  downriver.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Anything else?

          4                 MR. RAMSEY:  Thank you, John.

          5                 We have only a few more short

          6  remarks, and then we will be glad to either answer

          7  questions or go sit down, whatever your pleasure is.

          8                 We have talked previously about the

          9  material on the next few pages about risk to

         10  workers, risks from the ecosystem, destruction that

         11  is guaranteed to occur, and the disruption and the

         12  risk to the community, which again, have not been

         13  calculated.  And the point I'm trying to make --

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  These are

         15  allegations you're talking about?

         16                 MR. RAMSEY:  No, actually, Chairman

         17  Michels, it is not an allegation.  It is in EPA's

         18  report that the habitat in the River and the

         19  wetlands along the banks --

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I'm just trying

         21  to get -- but you dispute that?

         22                 MR. RAMSEY:  No, we think that there

         23  will be environmental destruction and environmental,

         24  and that the habitat will be destroyed and have to

         25  be restored.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: As a result of

          3  the dredging?

          4                 MR. RAMSEY:  As the result of the

          5  dredging.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Excuse me,

          7  please.  Continue, I'm sorry.

          8                 MR. RAMSEY:  That is all right.

          9                 What we think has not happened, and I

         10  think what is clear from the EPA report, is that

         11  there has been no attempt to try to quantify the

         12  risk to workers, the risk to the communities, et

         13  cetera.  I covered that earlier, I will not go back

         14  over it again, it is in the material.

         15                 There are things --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  But you do

         17  dispute the fact -- you don't think there is a risk

         18  to workers?

         19                 MR. RAMSEY:  No, we do think there is

         20  a risk to the workers.  We think that --

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I'm talking

         22  about from PCBs, you don't --

         23                 MR. RAMSEY:  No, no, we're talking

         24  about from doing the dredging.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Doing the
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          2  dredging, itself, I understand.

          3                 MR. RAMSEY:  Doing the dredging,

          4  itself, it's a marine activity.  Part of what I do

          5  for a living, as well as this --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Any

          7  construction has certain amounts.

          8                 MR. RAMSEY:  That is exactly right.

          9  And that has not been evaluated as part of the

         10  project, at least, not in the material that was made

         11  available to the public, and not in what has been

         12  discussed in the public comment period.

         13                 We think that our source control

         14  program that we have proposed to the State of New

         15  York, and I'm now on page 17, provides all the

         16  benefits that dredging will provide and none of the

         17  negatives.  And essentially what you end up with is

         18  the same benefits, and close to the same amount of

         19  time, with none of the negative aspects.

         20                 And as we have, I think said before

         21  in our meeting yesterday, the Company is proposing

         22  that we would build a 1,500 foot tunnel in the

         23  bedrock below the level of the River to capture the

         24  remaining seeps of PCBs and shut off the source to

         25  the Upper River.  The pages on page 19 and 20 point
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          2  out how that would be done in a diagram.  We would

          3  also show, we would also, after we have built the

          4  passive system, use a neutral palimer (phonetic) to

          5  flood the bedrock to push the remaining PCBs out

          6  into the capture system, and thus remove the PCBs

          7  that are captured in the bedrock under and adjacent

          8  to our area.

          9                 The last thing I would like to really

         10  cover before we stop is that there is enormous

         11  public opposition to this program.  In polls that we

         12  have conducted in the upper River in which we have

         13  asked people, do you prefer dredging the River to

         14  remove PCBs or cutting off the source of PCBs to

         15  allow the River to recover naturally thereafter?  By

         16  more than two to one people favor source control and

         17  recovery as opposed to dredging.

         18                 You heard some discussion of e-mails

         19  and other comments, on page 21 is a list of

         20  postcards, petitions, telegrams, signatures on

         21  petitions and otherwise, and on the right-hand side,

         22  a summary of the fact that almost all of the Upper

         23  River and Mid-Hudson communities are on record as

         24  opposing dredging.  The people where this work is

         25  going to be done are opposed to it, you will hear
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          2  from some of them later, I don't intend to speak for

          3  them, but I will say on two occasions in the last 25

          4  years, these people have banded together to fight,

          5  first the State, and then EPA, to oppose

          6  successfully dredging projects.

          7                 I guess I would close by saying there

          8  is good news for the River.  PCB levels are coming

          9  down.  They're going to continue to come down.  The

         10  Company is going to continue to spend whatever it

         11  takes to remove the source of PCBs into the Hudson

         12  River.  We think that the source control proposal

         13  that we have pending with the State of New York is

         14  the right answer, we don't think that the really

         15  trying to destroy the River to save it is the

         16  correct answer.

         17                 We also thank you for the opportunity

         18  to be here. I would point out, just in passing, that

         19  this is really the first time we have had an

         20  opportunity in the same place, at the same time to

         21  be able to have an extended discussion or to state

         22  our views with EPA, and we're grateful for the

         23  opportunity to do that.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Well, you're

         25  welcome.  I'm very glad that you were here.  But I
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          2  have got a very basic question and it is sitting in

          3  my head ever since I started asking questions in the

          4  very beginning.  And that is, we have gone through

          5  all of this discussion about how we, to dredge or

          6  not to dredge, what have you, but I think, Mr.

          7  Haggard, when I questioned you -- John Haggard,

          8  right?

          9                 DR. HAMILTON: Stephen Hamilton.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Oh, Stephen

         11  Hamilton, I'm sorry.  We should have labels in front

         12  of you, like we have labels in front of us.

         13                 But you indicated to me, and I'm just

         14  trying to figure out, that as far as your concerned,

         15  that there doesn't seem to be any danger to human

         16  beings from PCBs.  Now is there, does PCBs

         17  constitute a danger to life, health and safety of

         18  human beings? Or else what are we doing here?  What

         19  are we doing here if there is no danger from PCBs,

         20  why are we spending all of this money, time and

         21  effort if there is nothing wrong with PCBs?

         22                 MR. RAMSEY:  Mr. Chairman, there are

         23  two parts to this answer.  The first part relates to

         24  the toxicity of PCBs and how people view them.  And

         25  Dr. Hamilton has stated our view about that.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Which is?  Can

          3  he repeat the view?  I would like to know his view

          4  again.

          5                 MR. RAMSEY:  Absolutely.  But before

          6  he does, let me say, even if one accepts for the

          7  purpose of argument that PCBs are as risky as EPA

          8  believes they are, you wouldn't do this project

          9  because it will increase the risk.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: I understand,

         11  but that is begging the question.

         12                 The question is, are PCBs dangerous

         13  to the life, health and safety of human beings?  And

         14  that is something I want to know.   I always thought

         15  they were, but I'm hearing for the first time

         16  indications that there is no danger here from PCBs.

         17                 DR. HAMILTON:  First, I would say

         18  that PCBs are toxic chemicals.  As defined by animal

         19  tests, they are toxic.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Right.

         21                 DR. HAMILTON:  And you have to

         22  understand that toxicity is really defined by dose.

         23  The toxicologists say every chemical is toxic at

         24  some dose, by the same token, every chemical is

         25  non-toxic at some dose, and so it's really the dose
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          2  that makes it poison.

          3                 We know from animal tests, from Dr.

          4  Kimbro's study in 1974, that PCBs are toxic in rats,

          5  given high doses of PCBs over the lifetime of the

          6  rats, which is about a two-year period, and they

          7  found increased --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I'm talking

          9  about human beings; is it toxic to human beings?  Is

         10  it a danger to human beings?

         11                 DR. HAMILTON:  Well, once we had that

         12  information about what happened in rats, our

         13  response was, let's find out what happens in human

         14  beings.  And we have workers that had worked for

         15  long periods of time with PCBs and had been heavily

         16  exposed to PCBs.  We cooperated with the National

         17  Institute for Occupational Safety and Health who did

         18  two studies of mortality of our workers. We invited

         19  in Dr. Sellakoff from Mount Sinai, they did studies,

         20  clinical studies of our workers, they did mortality

         21  studies of our workers, we did our own study of our

         22  workers, and New York State and Harvard University

         23  did studies of our workers.

         24                 And my point is that these studies of

         25  the workers that were exposed to PCBs that went into
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          2  the River did not show any serious toxic effects.

          3  What we did see with some of the workers was skin

          4  irritation, which was called contact dermatitis,

          5  that would go away when the worker was no longer

          6  exposed directly to liquid PCBs, and we saw some eye

          7  tearing, but --

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  No long-term

          9  effects, no dangerous ones?

         10                 DR. HAMILTON:  No long-term effects.

         11  Now --

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Is it the

         13  official position of GE that PCBs do not constitute

         14  a danger to the life, health, safety of human

         15  beings?

         16                 DR. HAMILTON:  Yes, I would say that,

         17  that is the position.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  That is the

         19  official position of GE?

         20                 DR. HAMILTON: Because people have

         21  been studied, people with the highest levels of

         22  exposure, that are higher by hundreds than what PCBs

         23  that people would being exposed to --

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And, therefore,

         25  the reason that it has been delineated a hazardous
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          2  material is because of its danger to animals?

          3                 MR. RAMSEY:  Let me say this, let me

          4  say this on behalf of the Company; and that is, that

          5  there is a legitimate and we believe principled,

          6  scientific dispute, about what the relative risk of

          7  PCBs are.  We did not make this up, there are more

          8  than two --

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I'm just trying

         10  to understand your position.

         11                 MR. RAMSEY:  I understand.  Let me

         12  read from a letter which I will leave with you.

         13                 When Dr. Kimbro did her study of our

         14  workers, Dr. James Cagliano at EPA wrote to several

         15  individuals that the agency regularly uses, who are

         16  independent of the agency, and certainly with whom

         17  we have no association, to ask their views of the

         18  study.  And one was sent to Dr. Thomas Mack, who was

         19  at the University of Southern California.  I won't

         20  read all the letter, but I will read some of it.

         21  They were asked, the people were asked who were sent

         22  the study, what do you think of it?  Was it well put

         23  together, and what do you conclude?   And he said,

         24   "as I indicated to you on the phone, I found the

         25  Kimbro Paper to be well designed, appropriately
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          2  analyzed and fairly interpreted.  The results are

          3  entirely consistent and show the expected social

          4  class effects," which means healthy worker.  He goes

          5  on to say, as he discusses, he goes back, "I looked

          6  at the previous studies," which were the ones on

          7  carcinogenicity in humans had been based, "I was not

          8  very impressed with the positive findings and not

          9  just because of the inconsistency.  The Silk and

         10  Bertaze (phonetic) papers," those studies, "in

         11  presenting the evidence for indications of risk for

         12  melanoma and lymphoma honestly describe the

         13  compatibility with chance but did not assess the

         14  differences according to education important to both

         15  of those outcomes."  He goes on to call "the

         16  evidence for the creation of these tumors is

         17  statistically very flimsy."  At the end of his

         18  letter, here is what he concludes," I guess my

         19  bottom line is that the summary statements in our

         20  study, "like any significant elevation adds

         21  important information and lack of consistent

         22  findings would suggest a lack in association in the

         23  paper are appropriate.  I think it is appropriate to

         24  downgrade the priority given to PCBs.  However,

         25  based on the animal studies and recognizing a
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          2  possibly limited relevance to man and the absence of

          3  any confirming of liver cancer in humans, and on

          4  this very small amount of information pointing to

          5  colorectal tumors, I don't think the potential

          6  carcinogenicity of PCBs can be completely dismissed.

          7  I recognize the flimsiness of the evidence and that

          8  a less conservative person could persuasively argue

          9  the other way."

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And that is the

         11  position of  --

         12                 MR. RAMSEY:  No, this is the opinion

         13  of a man I never met, that was asked by EPA what he

         14  thought.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: But you have

         16  looked at other studies and everything?

         17                 MR. RAMSEY:  Our view is that PCBs

         18  are not a human carcinogen, and that --

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And on the

         20  basis of that you no longer use PCBs and you're

         21  willing to spend 40 or $50 million to clean up the

         22  situation?

         23                 MR. RAMSEY:  Councilman Michels, PCBs

         24  were banned as a matter of law by the United States

         25  Congress. The Company doesn't not violate the law,

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            133

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  and the Company has spent, and the Superfund Statute

          3  was passed in 1980, and while we may disagree with

          4  it, and while we may have different views about

          5  things, the Company has spent almost a billion

          6  dollars at various sites around the country working

          7  cooperatively with EPA in the States to investigate

          8  and cleanup our sites.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And all the

         10  while disputing and not agreeing that PCBs

         11  constitutes a danger.

         12                 MR. RAMSEY:  That is correct.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  But you do

         14  agree that it causes a problem with fish?

         15                 MR. RAMSEY:  No, we agree that it

         16  causes tumors in laboratory animals, such as rats

         17  and mice.  The PCBs that are in the fish, the

         18  studies showed that the fish in the Hudson River are

         19  abundant, that they are appropriately represented at

         20  all ages of population, and really the health of the

         21  fish is not the issue, the issue, as I think Mr.

         22  McCabe said, is, the risk to human beings from

         23  eating large quantities of fish, a half of ton of

         24  fish over a 40-year period.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: Which you

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            134

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  dispute?

          3                 MR. RAMSEY:  Yes, we do.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Mr. Miller.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  You know, I

          6  would like to move off this subject, because while I

          7  think it's a -- you know, personally, if I'm asked

          8  to choose between the EPA, which has conducted

          9  studies on this that, says it's a probable human

         10  carcinogen, has not gotten involved in pumping

         11  millions or some number of pounds of this substance

         12  into a river, and the entity that actually did the

         13  pollution to determine, if I have to choose between

         14  the two of those opinions on which one I think is

         15  going to be greater weight, I'm going to go with the

         16  government and the independent peer analysis and all

         17  the rest of it.

         18                 But I actually don't want to get into

         19  that too much because it really is not at issue at

         20  this hearing.

         21                 MR. RAMSEY: That's correct.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: We're not here

         23  for this to determine whether or not what the exact

         24  toxicity level of PCBs are.  Everybody agrees that

         25  the point is that they need to be cleaned up and
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          2  they need to be cleaned up as best as is possible

          3  for the residents that surround the River, for the

          4  residents that are downriver, and for the

          5  environment in general, et cetera.

          6                 What I want to get to is just a

          7  little bit of a discussion of your analysis of the

          8  resuspension subject.  You're confident that your

          9  cleanups at the plant sites have been successful to

         10  this point, right?  They have been pretty good?  And

         11  the question then is, haven't you done some dredging

         12  at those plant sites, as well?  And what kind of

         13  dredging was it?  And were the resuspension levels

         14  that occurred there?

         15                 MR. HAGGARD:  That is a great

         16  question.  Yes, we have been very, very successful

         17  and the data proves that.  The work at the plant

         18  sites has resulted in the reductions in PCB levels

         19  in the River and fish.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  And have you

         21  done any dredging at those?

         22                 MR. HAGGARD:  Yes, and that is a

         23  great thing you bring up, because there was a small

         24  area near one of our outfalls at our Hudson Falls

         25  Plant site, and we were very concerned about doing a
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          2  removal of it because it is in the middle of the

          3  River. Nonetheless, under pressure from the State we

          4  did decide with them to remove this deposit as

          5  opposed to the remedy we had proposed, and we

          6  utilized hydraulic suction dredges with divers to

          7  slowly take out this material.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  Yes.

          9                 MR. HAGGARD:  During a high flow

         10  event PCBs were washed downstream and you can see

         11  the result in the data in 1997. Again, dredging

         12  resuspended material, PCB levels in fish went up.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  What was the

         14  rate?

         15                 MR. HAGGARD:  Pardon?

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  What was the

         17  rate of resuspension at that site, and was that the

         18  only dredging that you have done, or have you done

         19  other dredgings?  The only dredging that you have

         20  done is hydraulic dredging at that particular site?

         21                 MR. HAGGARD:  On the Hudson River

         22  that is the only dredging we have done, and it's

         23  really, it was more of a removal of debris and near

         24  outfall, but in the River, and we could see the

         25  impact of it.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  But as part

          3  of your efforts everywhere in New York State -- has

          4  GE undertaken anywhere any kind of dredging of PCB

          5  contaminated material?

          6                 MR. RAMSEY:  We have a consent decree

          7  with the United States Government in the State of

          8  Massachusetts to remove PCBs from a half mile

          9  stretch of the Housatonic (phonetic) River.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  Okay.

         11                 MR. RAMSEY:  We are not dredging, we

         12  have sheet piled off, dewatered the area, and are

         13  using backhoes in normal construction to remove the

         14  mud on the bottom of Housatonic, at that point,

         15  which is a much different, much narrower and much

         16  smaller river.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  Right.  So

         18  the only dredging that GE has ever undertaken, the

         19  only dredging that GE has ever undertaken was this

         20  one incident of the hydraulic dredging, and you said

         21  it did result under a flood condition of

         22  resuspension; how much resuspension?

         23                 MR. HAGGARD:  The exact amount we

         24  don't know, because the floods, of course, come very

         25  quickly and leave very quickly.  But we did see the
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          2  results in fish.  Now, we did do a removal of

          3  sediments by drying a pond out, called the Bay Row

          4  Pond in Northern New York, but again, there is not

          5   --

          6                 MR. RAMSEY:  That is done in the dry.

          7                 MR. HAGGARD:  Yes, that is not like

          8  the dredging contemplated by the agency, EPA for the

          9  Hudson River.

         10                 MR. RAMSEY:  I mean, to make the

         11  point, the National Academy of Sciences points out

         12  that resuspension technology is a real area of risk,

         13  and that using silt curtains, which is, as you heard

         14  from Mr. McCabe, how this work would be done,

         15  presents a real risk of resuspension.  The work that

         16  is done on resuspension in the report of the NAS is

         17  by the United States Geological Survey.  So, again,

         18   --

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  The report

         20  also suggest that sediments that contain PCBs pose a

         21  risk, as well, to the communities; doesn't it?

         22                 MR. RAMSEY:  They say it can and they

         23  also say, and there are a variety of things in the

         24  report, including that source control is the most

         25  important and the thing you should look to first.
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          2  It also says that mass removal of PCBs in sediment

          3  does not equal risk reduction.  It also says that

          4  one needs to be very careful as one removes

          5  sediments because of the risk of resuspension are

          6  quite real.

          7                 We believe that the NAS report

          8  supports most, if not all of the things, that we

          9  have been saying about the very real risks of

         10  undertaking this project.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  Let me just

         12  ask, with regard to, just as a matter of disclosure,

         13  how much has GE spent on advertising and lobbying

         14  campaigns in the New York State area and with regard

         15  to getting out the information, which GE feels is

         16  relevant to the community?

         17                 MR. RAMSEY:  We have historically not

         18  discussed the amount of money that we spend on

         19  advertising whether it be to sell our refrigerators

         20  and light bulbs or whether it be for this.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: So you would

         22  say that you would compare advertising concerning

         23  the proper removal and remediation efforts for PCBs

         24  in the Hudson River to selling refrigerators?

         25                 MR. RAMSEY:  No, that is not what I
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          2  said.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  It's not

          4  really a competitive situation, I mean like in terms

          5  of advertising where you spend it, I can understand

          6  it may be perhaps with refrigerators you don't want

          7  to tell.  I happen to own a GE refrigerator, and I

          8  should actually disclose that I own GE Stock, as

          9  well. I have a GE fridge, and a GE microwave, and a

         10  Thermodor cook top, so, I'm sorry.

         11                 But I can understand, in terms of

         12  advertising, an amount of money you want to spend on

         13  cook tops, you don't want to tell Thermodor that how

         14  much it is, but it is not really a competitive

         15  situation here.  So, why is it that you don't want

         16  to disclose the amount of money that you're spending

         17  for lobbying for advertising purposes?

         18                 MR. RAMSEY:  We just decided as a

         19  matter of policy that is an issue that we're not

         20  going to make public.  We followed all the laws with

         21  respect to filing lobbying reports both with

         22  Congress and elsewhere where they're required, we

         23  always do that.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER: So you're

         25  declining to say the reason why, you're just saying
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          2  you decided why?

          3                 MR. RAMSEY:  That is the reason.  The

          4  importance of the information campaign is so that

          5  there would be another view and not just one view

          6  about what the appropriate remedy is in the Upper

          7  River.  The issue is not how much money we're

          8  spending on that, the issue is whether or not at the

          9  end of the day dredging this River, ripping out 2.65

         10  million cubic yards of mud and destroying the

         11  ecology of the upper six miles of the Hudson River

         12  is a good idea, and that is what we think and hope

         13  the discussion will be --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  Well, that is

         15  true, but you know we're politicians up here and

         16  we're familiar with ad campaigns, so we find that

         17  sometimes, you know, somebody spends $60 million and

         18  some other person spends $2 million, it is sometimes

         19  hard for the debate to balance out.  And so the

         20  reason that I asked, in terms of getting to the

         21  truth, and this is why we're having, for example,

         22  this campaign finance reform discussion, because

         23  people are kind of concerned about whether or not

         24  truth is really being reached in campaigns in which

         25  you have some people spending huge amounts of money
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          2  and some people don't.  So I would respectfully,

          3  both as an elected official and as a GE stockholder,

          4  urge General Electric to reveal how much it is

          5  spending. It seems to me, in terms of having the

          6  opportunity to reach the truth, you know, it is

          7  always good to have truth.

          8                 Let me ask this, just as long as we

          9  got into this, are you saying that you would

         10  recommend to people that they ignore the

         11  recommendations not to eat a certain amount of fish

         12  because there is no evidence for how much fish to

         13  eat?

         14                 MR. RAMSEY:  Of course not, and we're

         15  on record repeatedly and repeatedly as telling

         16  people they should obey the law.  That I would obey

         17  the law and we would urge people to do the same.

         18  The law in the State of New York says consume

         19  certain amounts of fish and no more in certain

         20  areas.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  Well, would

         22  you like to see that law changed?  Would you like to

         23  see people be able to eat more fish?

         24                 MR. RAMSEY:  That, Councilman Miller,

         25  is a matter for the State Department of Health, the
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          2  State Department of Environmental Conservation.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  Something

          4  you're not going to take a position on then?  Do you

          5  have further questions, Stanley?  Or Helen?  Do you

          6  have further questions?

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Council Member

          8  Marshall.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL: Is he

         10  finished?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: No, he wants to

         12  think about it.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Obviously,

         14  the Attorney General has determined that we need to

         15  clean up the portion of the Hudson River which GE is

         16  affecting.  You are opposed to dredging.  I have an

         17  experience with Flushing Bay.  I know dredging only

         18  to remove things that need to be removed from the

         19  waters.  Certainly these companies are contracted

         20  they know what to do, they know how to preserve the

         21  life that we need to preserve in the water.  Why are

         22  you opposed to dredging?

         23                 MR. RAMSEY:  For the reasons that we

         24  have stated earlier and perhaps this --

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  I have
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          2  heard some of those reasons.  Okay, how else would

          3  you clean it up?

          4                 MR. RAMSEY:  We think that the

          5  appropriate method for dealing with the PCBs that

          6  are in the sediments in the upper River is to shut

          7  off the source.  There is a page in our --

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Are you the

          9  source?

         10                 MR. RAMSEY:  The PCBs that are in the

         11  upper Hudson River in the 40 miles of this area are

         12  almost exclusively from the discharges at our two

         13  plants.  There is apparently an additional source

         14  further upstream, but it appears to be minor and

         15  when compared to the --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Well, how

         17  are you proposing to clean up what you have caused?

         18                 MR. RAMSEY:  We would stop the source

         19  of PCBs that are still in the bedrock.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  How long

         21  would that take?

         22                 MR. RAMSEY:  We believe that the

         23  source, once approved by the State Department of

         24  Environmental Conservation, we believe that the

         25  program that is included in your charts at the end
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          2  of the presentation, could be accomplished in less

          3  than two years. So we believe that the source --

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Council Member

          5  Marshall, they did go over all of this.  I know you

          6  had another meeting, you couldn't be here.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  No, that is

          8  okay.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  We will fill

         10  you in on their testimony.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  All right.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  But they do go

         13  into extensively into what you're asking.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Well, I

         15  just wanted to hear, I mean, they're accepting their

         16  responsibility, that is key and important.

         17                 MR. RAMSEY:  Absolutely.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Okay.

         19                 MR. RAMSEY:  They're just disputing

         20  the method.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Exactly.

         22                 MR. RAMSEY:  That is correct.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARSHALL:  Exactly.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Any other

         25  questions?  Council Member Freed coming in for
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          2  questioning?  Council Member Freed has got a

          3  question.

          4                 MR. RAMSEY:  Okay.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  That will be

          6  the last person for questioning.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Thank you.  I

          8  apologize, there are like three things going on at

          9  the same time.  I had some questions about some of

         10  your original testimony because I was struck by the

         11  fact -- well, first, that you were saying that GE

         12  didn't, I guess, create the PCBs, it was Monsanto.

         13  But then you also testified that you had permits,

         14  that everything was done legally, and yet, I know

         15  that the Attorney General had testified just before

         16  you and in their statements contradicted that, and

         17  I'm wondering how you would respond to that,

         18  including the fact that they said your pre-'75

         19  discharges were many times higher than more recent

         20  discharges, and even though the actual PCB

         21  restraints were put in in like 1976, I believe, but

         22  prior to that time we did have a State law on the

         23  books that basically said any discharges that could

         24  pollute the streams or be dangerous to fish, you

         25  couldn't violate those.  So it would seem that there
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          2  was a question there.  They said that in 1973 your

          3  permit application, you were directly discharging an

          4  average of 30 pounds per day?  And pursuant to a

          5  latter sediment with the government GE agreed to

          6  reduce its facility discharges. But that you did not

          7  obtain permits for the seepage of PCBs into the

          8  River from the bedrock and soil beneath the Hudson

          9  Falls Plant, and those discharges you claim are

         10  significant sources of PCBs to the Hudson River

         11  fish.

         12                 So I guess I'm really trying to see

         13  how one works with the other.  How do you respond to

         14  that?

         15                 And then I also had a question --

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Let me just

         17  interrupt you for a second, because before you came

         18  in, in a rebuttal to the Attorney General's

         19  statement who testified vis-a-vis those issues was

         20  given by Mr. Ramsey.  Is there anything in addition

         21  you want to add to it?

         22                 MR. RAMSEY:  I think Council Member

         23  Freed raises an issue that I didn't address, and

         24  that is, the issue of the seeps and that we had no

         25  permits for them.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  Right.

          3                 MR. RAMSEY:  I would say it's a bit

          4  of a strawman issue.  We identified in the early

          5  nineties that PCBs were seeping into the Hudson from

          6  the bedrock and we notified the Department of

          7  Environmental Conservation and we notified EPA.  At

          8  the same time we notified them, we prepared action

          9  plans to deal with those seeps and to remove the

         10  PCBs in an abandoned hydro mill owned by NIMO.

         11  Niagara Mohawk, and to address in the context of the

         12  remedial program, which New York State Department of

         13  Environmental Conservation operates these seeps.  At

         14  that time the Department of Environmental

         15  Conservation, I believe advised by the Attorney

         16  General's Office, Mr. Johnson would know best, sent

         17  us what are called Notices of Violation that we were

         18  discharging without a permit.  We immediately called

         19  them on the phone and we wrote them letters and we

         20  asked them whether there were any additional steps

         21  that they wanted us to undertake, other than those

         22  which we were undertaking pursuant to our consent

         23  agreements with the Department of Environmental

         24  Conservation, and we were told, no, there weren't.

         25                 The truth of the matter, Councilwoman
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          2  Freed, you cannot get a permit for seeps like that.

          3  The Permit Program is not intended for it, and with

          4  all due respect to the Attorney General, they know

          5  that.

          6                 They also know that these kinds of

          7  issues are generally dealt with, if it is under

          8  Superfund, under a consent agreement or an

          9  Administrative Order with EPA, or as is the case,

         10  with these seeps at these plants under a series of

         11  Administrative Orders that we have entered into with

         12  DEC in every last bit of, which we have complied

         13  with and every commitment that we have made, we have

         14  kept.

         15                 So I think, I'm glad for the

         16  opportunity to explain the difference between a

         17  permitted discharge and a seep, which really is not

         18  subject to a permit and wouldn't ever be permitted,

         19  but is dealt with under the remedial program.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  All right.  I

         21  have to say the one, I guess, the one issue that I'm

         22  having trouble getting over is the legality versus,

         23  I suppose what I see as a real potential danger that

         24  the PCBs cause.  And I know I was here when you were

         25  saying, well, there is a whole question about what
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          2  level really causes something, and just because they

          3  cause carcinogens or they cause tumors in animals or

          4  fish, what does that mean to people? But I looked at

          5  and am looking at different letters as early as

          6  1955, when Monsanto, which was the only producer, I

          7  guess, of PCBs, basically said that they had found

          8  things to worry them about the impact on human

          9  beings and the problem of things like on the impact

         10  on liver with exposure, and that they said that they

         11  were going to notify the various customers of that.

         12  And I even have an open letter from GE to its

         13  utility customers talking about similar problems,

         14  recognizing that there have been some severe

         15  questions and that there is a real health risk with

         16  these PCBs.

         17                 So I guess my question is, whether

         18  you violated a permit, something that is permitted,

         19  or not, isn't there also a moral question about is

         20  it really right to continue to release the PCBs and

         21  not into water streams that can potentially impact

         22  wildlife, potentially impact human beings, and then

         23  the whole question about cleaning it up?

         24                 MR. RAMSEY:  Let me try to answer as

         25  best I can. The first letter, of which I'm aware of
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          2  and which I have seen that Monsanto sent GE is in

          3  the early seventies.  We, thereafter, notified our

          4  customers about the possible bio-accumulation of

          5  PCBs in aquatic life.  And as I think I testified

          6  earlier, immediately set about a plan to reduce our

          7  discharges of PCBs to the Hudson.  And by 1976, this

          8  is in a few short years, our discharges at the

          9  plant, although authorized at the 30 pound per day

         10  level, were down to around a pound and a half.

         11                 And as I said before, sometimes it is

         12  easy to apply 2001 hindsight to 1971

         13  state-of-the-art, but the plain fact of the matter

         14  is that the discharges were legal at the time, that

         15  we acted on information that was available to us,

         16  when we had it we reduced our discharges and we

         17  reached the agreement that we did with the State of

         18  New York, which continued to issue us permits here.

         19                 And I would also point out that, as

         20  you say, is there another issue, it goes to the

         21  bottom issue of the regulatory system in the United

         22  States.  And that may be a larger discussion for

         23  another day, but I have to say that the Company

         24  acted as it should.  I think the Company acted

         25  responsibly, we dealt with the information when we
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          2  had it, we passed it on to our customers, and we

          3  began immediately to reduce and phase out the use of

          4  PCBs.

          5                 At the same time that this

          6  information was becoming known, there was a Task

          7  Force in the Federal Government that was looking at

          8  whether to ban PCBs or not, and one of the major

          9  concerns that they had was that banning PCBs could

         10  increase fatality and injury from capacitor and

         11  transformer fires.  So there was, as there always

         12  is, a balancing of interests in a discussion that is

         13  going on at that time.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  Just a final

         15  philosophical question for you then.  What would you

         16  do in a case like this, because it is something that

         17  we continue to see, we see the same problem with

         18  asbestos, we see it with lead paint, you know,

         19  across the United States and probably across the

         20  globe, we continue to try to figure out what we do

         21  when sometimes science outstrips our actual

         22  knowledge of the impact, how would you see handling

         23  it? Because, obviously, our problem and one of the

         24  reasons we're here today is that there is a question

         25  of who bears the brunt of that, the question of
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          2  should the people, who should pay for it, should the

          3  people downstream pay for it, or in that area should

          4  the State pay for it, should the taxpayers pay for

          5  it, should the companies who committed it pay for

          6  it, should the companies who initially started the

          7  process pay for it, how would you see determining

          8  that, and what do you think would be the best way to

          9  handle that now and in the future?

         10                 MR. RAMSEY:  There is --

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  Realizing that

         12  you have an invested interest here.

         13                 MR. RAMSEY:  That is all right.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  With the

         15  understanding under the law you have to pay for it.

         16                 MR. RAMSEY:  As Councilman Michels

         17  points out, and as I'm sure Mr. McCabe would say or

         18  some other from EPA, if they had the chance, whether

         19  our discharges were legal or not, under the

         20  Superfund Law really does not make any difference.

         21  The way the law is situated, with certain

         22  exceptions, that which was completely legal and

         23  thought to be proper and okay and authorized when it

         24  was done, under Superfund one can still be required

         25  to clean up those substances and pay for the clean
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          2  up of those substances.  That is sort of the way the

          3  law is, we live in the world that we live in and

          4  that is the system in which we operate and in a

          5  system under which the General Electric Company has

          6  spent more than $800 million investigating and

          7  cleaning up a lot of sites around the country that

          8  are the result of being about 125 years old and

          9  having done business in just about every state and

         10  county that there is in the United States.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And even in the

         12  case where you believe PCBs are not harmful to life,

         13  health and safety of human beings.

         14                 MR. RAMSEY:  I'm sorry, I missed

         15  that.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  You're saying

         17  you still have to pay for it, you still have to do

         18  it because it is the law, even though you dispute

         19  the fact that the PCBs are not harmful to life,

         20  health and safety of human beings?

         21                 MR. RAMSEY:  That is correct.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Okay, anything

         23  else?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED:  No, thank you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Thank you very
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          2  much.

          3                 Gentlemen, we appreciate it.

          4                 MR. RAMSEY:  Thank you for your time.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Thank you very

          6  much for coming in, and I hope that you agree that

          7  we gave you a full and open hearing and an

          8  opportunity to be heard.

          9                 MR. RAMSEY:  As I said before, we

         10  appreciate it.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  We appreciate

         12  your being here. We appreciate keeping in touch with

         13  you.

         14                 Mr. Robert Elliott, the Mayor of the

         15  Croton-On-Hudson, New York.  Welcome, Mr. Mayor,

         16  sorry for keeping you waiting, but we appreciate

         17  your testimony.  And it is a pleasure to meet the

         18  Mayor of Croton, I used to know Croton as when we

         19  changed from diesel to electric.

         20                 MAYOR ELLIOTT:  That is exactly

         21  right, or some of us might remember steam to diesel

         22  and electric.

         23                 Mr. Chairman, Council members, thank

         24  you very much for not only listening to me today,

         25  but to listening to everybody else.  Other speakers
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          2  have and will address the science and dredging

          3  issues, as an elected official, I might have a

          4  slightly different perspective, and like you all,

          5  I'm concerned about the health of our residents and

          6  our economy, and of course, the environment.

          7                 From the experience we have had in

          8  our community, I can speak directly to PCBs and

          9  their clean up.  In our community we recognized that

         10  we had a health hazard in what we call the PCB

         11  lagoon, a small lake that was adjacent to the Hudson

         12  River and leeching into it.  And although we wanted

         13  it cleaned up, the residents were also concerned, as

         14  there are residents in other parts of this state,

         15  are concerned about our clean ups.  Homes were

         16  immediately adjacent to the site, a large park was

         17  immediately adjacent to the site and there were

         18  schools less than a mile away.

         19                 We saw twelve and a half million

         20  pounds of PCB laden material safely removed from out

         21  community without the slightest negative impact.

         22  The only impact that I could see was that property

         23  values rose.

         24                 Now one thing is certain - -

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  That is a
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          2  positive.

          3                 MAYOR ELLIOTT:  Positive, absolutely

          4  positive.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  How was it

          6  removed?

          7                 MAYOR ELLIOTT:  It was initially

          8  isolated from the River with sheet piling, it was

          9  dewatered on the site and removed by rail, it was

         10  highly toxic and was actually shipped by rail down

         11  to Port Arthur, Texas and incinerated.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  What was the

         13  source?

         14                 MAYOR ELLIOTT:  They were

         15  transformers originally from New York Central and

         16  later on Penn Central thoughtlessly dumping things

         17  into the yard, which accumulated into a small lake.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Continue, I'm

         19  sorry to interrupt you.

         20                 MAYOR ELLIOTT:  One thing is certain

         21  that PCBs are hazard to health and the continued

         22  migration of them down River is a danger to our

         23  citizens.  Right now, I think if you went out to the

         24  Hudson, you would fishermen out there, the striped

         25  bass, the stripers are now running, depending upon
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          2  various conditions, they might reach Croton this

          3  weekend, and if so, there will be hundreds of people

          4  lining the shores, including the nine- mile stretch

          5  of the Hudson River in Croton, and there will be

          6  many residents, including New York City residents

          7  fishing along the River both here and all the way up

          8  the River.  And many will eat those fish, as has

          9  been pointed out earlier, along with their families.

         10                 Now for generations we have had our

         11  backs to the River, and now we are all cleaning up

         12  our waterfronts and providing more access to the

         13  River for our residents and tourists.  My community

         14  in the last 10 years and numerous other communities

         15  have made great strides in reclaiming the

         16  waterfront, but nobody has made greater progress in

         17  reclaiming the waterfront than New York City.  You

         18  are to be congratulated for finding access to it for

         19  all of its residents.

         20                 Tourism is the State's second largest

         21  industry, and in the Hudson Valley it is driven by

         22  the River.  But how do we promote the Hudson River

         23  and the Hudson River Valley when it is the largest

         24  Superfund site in this country?  We can cite the

         25  economic impact that PCBs have on commercial
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          2  fishing, sport fishing, on tourism, but there is

          3  another consequence that the contaminants come down

          4  river and fowl the harbor, add dramatic costs to the

          5  dredging of the Port of New York.

          6                 A cubic yard of clean dredge costs

          7  about $5, I'm told to dispose of, and a contaminated

          8  cubic yard from the Harbor of New York City costs

          9  somewhere between twenty- nine and fifty dollars,

         10  and others will tell you it is as much as $200 a

         11  cubic yard.  You need only do the math, we're

         12  talking about hundreds of millions of dollars of

         13  adding cost to dredging the Harbor of New York.

         14                 We need to minimize the PCBs coming

         15  down the River and the EPA's recommendations work to

         16  that end to the benefit of our economy and the

         17  health of our residents.

         18                 We don't listen to the tobacco

         19  industry when they tell us smoking won't harm us.

         20  We have set up in this country the FDA, the FAA, the

         21  EPA and other agencies to review the facts and set

         22  policy.  And while it is a perfectly healthy thing

         23  for all levels of government and our residents to

         24  mistrust each other, here we have a situation, which

         25  has been reviewed for 10 years, and I would hope
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          2  that all of you, and I thank you for putting the

          3  resolution forth, support the Resolution 1721 in

          4  front of you.

          5                 Thank you for your time.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  That is

          7  wonderful, thank you for your testimony.  It really

          8  was, because I was sitting here making the analogy

          9  to the tobacco industry.  You may not know this but

         10  the Clean Indoor Air Act in 1987 was my legislation,

         11  and so much testimony is so reminiscent of the

         12  testimony when we had that in 1987 at the hearing.

         13  But thank you so much.

         14                 MAYOR ELLIOTT:  Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Could we get a

         16  copy of your testimony?

         17                 MAYOR ELLIOTT:  Yes, I will put it

         18  over here.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  We very much

         20  appreciate your being here, and thank you, again,

         21  and please give our best to the people of Croton and

         22  preserve the reservoir.

         23                 MAYOR ELLIOTT:  Thank you, Mr. Chair.

         24    You have the Riverkeeper here, we will go into the

         25  reservoir later.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And the

          3  wetlands and the whole area around the reservoir.

          4                 MAYOR ELLIOTT:  All right, thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  The next one we

          6  have, the next panel is Susan Holmes, Ned Sullivan,

          7  Andre Mele, Aaron Mair, I guess, and Alex

          8  Mattiessen, and Paul Mankiewicz.

          9                 MS. HOLMES:  I have to ask for

         10  chairs.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Oh, well,

         12  chairs.  As well as you talk one at a time, we're in

         13  good shape.

         14                 MS. HOLMES:  Okay, that is great,

         15  that is great. Actually, one additional person who

         16  needs to lead us.  Let me tell you who we have here.

         17    We have Ned Sullivan, who is the Executive

         18  Director of Scenic Hudson; Andre Mele, the Executive

         19  Director of the Hudson For Clear Water; Aaron Mair,

         20  who is the Chair of the Environmental Justice

         21  Committee of the Sierra Club, Atlantic Chapter; Alex

         22  Mattiessen, who is the Executive Director of the

         23  Hudson Riverkeeper.  We have Paul Mankiewicz, who is

         24  the Treasurer of New York City Soil and Water

         25  Conservation District, and also Kit Kennedy, Senior
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          2  Attorney with the Natural Resources Defense Council.

          3                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL:

          4  Actually everyone will, when they begin their

          5  testimony will have to repeat their name, for the

          6  record, anyway.  Okay.

          7                 MS. HOLMES:  Thank you very much, and

          8  my name is Susan Holmes, and I'm the Sierra Club's

          9  Senior Regional Representative in New York City.

         10  And I would just like to make a very brief statement

         11  and turn it over to my colleagues.  But first I

         12  would like to say on behalf of the 650,000 members

         13  of the Sierra Club, over 40,000 in New York State

         14  and 15,000 in New York City, we want to very much

         15  thank the City Council, particularly Council Members

         16  Gifford Miller and Stanley Michels, their staffs and

         17  the members of the Environmental Protection

         18  Committee for their leadership in bringing this

         19  important resolution in support of the Hudson River

         20  clean up before the Council and the people of New

         21  York City today.

         22                 On behalf of the over 75

         23  Environmental, Public Health, Labor, Religious and

         24  Citizens Organizations, many of whom are here today,

         25  we also want to thank you for this opportunity to
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          2  speak in support of Resolution 1721.

          3                 For 30 years, as you have heard,

          4  ending in 1977, the two GE Plants dumped an

          5  estimated 1.3 million pounds of polychlorinated

          6  biphenyls, PCBs, into the Hudson River.  GE's toxic

          7  legacy has all but destroyed the - -

          8                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL:  Ms.

          9  Holmes, could we ask you, I'm sorry to interrupt

         10  you, - -

         11                 MS. HOLMES: That is fine.

         12                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL: - -  but

         13  we have some very special guests being escorted in

         14  by our Speaker, who I think he would like to

         15  introduce to us.

         16                 SPEAKER VALLONE:  Thank you very

         17  much, Madam Chairperson.  I have the pleasure of

         18  introducing to you Mayor Demetrius Emanotalus

         19  (phonetic) from Athens, visiting here in City Hall,

         20  and this is a typical hearing that goes on in New

         21  York City. The Chairperson of the Committee is - -

         22                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL:  Is

         23  Stanley Michels, who just stepped out, he has been

         24  sitting here for three hours, he will be right back.

         25                 SPEAKER VALLONE:  Council Member
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          2  Marshall, who is now presiding - -

          3                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL:  I'm a

          4  member of the Committee.

          5                 SPEAKER VALLONE: - -  over the

          6  Environmental Protection Committee.  The

          7  Environmental Protection Committee is having a

          8  hearing, and testifying is?

          9                 MS. HOLMES:  Susan Holmes from the

         10  Sierra Club.

         11                 SPEAKER VALLONE:  The Sierra Club,

         12  which is very much an environmental club throughout

         13  the entire United States.

         14                 MR. GENNARO:  And if there is ever

         15  spilled PCBs in the Mediterranean, this is a hearing

         16  with regards to how to clean up, but more

         17  importantly, how the people should mobilize to hold

         18  corporations accountable for polluting water bodies.

         19                 SPEAKER VALLONE:  And that is a

         20  typical hearing.

         21                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL:   The

         22  hearing is really to clean up the PCBs caused by

         23  General Electric in our Hudson River.

         24                 SPEAKER VALLONE:  Thank you.  I

         25  wanted to show the Mayor a typical hearing, and
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          2  Council Member Marshall, thank you very much.

          3  Sorry, for the interruption.

          4                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL:  We're

          5  delighted, and welcome.

          6                 Okay, please proceed.

          7                 MS. HOLMES:  Thank you.  GE's toxic

          8  PCB legacy has all but destroyed the Hudson's once

          9  thriving commercial fishing industry and poses a

         10  significant threat to wildlife, and the many

         11  children and families in minority communities in New

         12  York City who rely on subsistence fishing for food.

         13                 And included with my testimony, I

         14  want to also point, well, something that I am

         15  distributing here today, which is an article in the

         16  Village Voice that cites a good example of the

         17  subsistence fishing, and that is a statistic that

         18  was determined by Mount Sinai Hospital that 10

         19  percent of women in East River on Public Assistance

         20  are eating more than one fish meal per week and

         21  feeding it to their children.  There are some

         22  excellent statistics and we will give that to you in

         23  our package.

         24                 It also prompted the EPA to declare

         25  200 miles of the River a Federal Superfund site,
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          2  making the Hudson, an American Heritage River, also

          3  the largest Superfund site in this country. EPA has

          4  determined that the PCB contamination in the River

          5  sediments poses an ongoing threat to the entire

          6  River ecosystem. Every day, one to three pounds from

          7  PCBs from the contaminated hotspots washed

          8  downstream are ingested by fish, wildlife and people

          9  who eat fish from the River.  Fifty percent of those

         10  sediments, over 250 pounds per year, end up in the

         11  New York City Harbor.  And in December 2000, after

         12  more than a decade of study, the EPA issued the

         13  recommendation that GE remove these contaminated

         14  sediments.

         15                 The final decision, EPA's final

         16  decision on the Hudson River PCB Superfund site will

         17  be one of the first major environmental decisions

         18  facing the new Bush Administration, and a

         19  significant test of its commitment to environmental

         20  clean- ups versus the influence of big business.  It

         21  is imperative that New York City stand with over

         22  fifty municipalities across New York State to send a

         23  message to the EPA, the Bush Administration and GE,

         24  the time has come to clean up the Hudson River now.

         25                 Without further ado, I would like to
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          2  turn it over to Ned Sullivan, the Executive Director

          3  of Scenic Hudson.

          4                 MR. SULLIVAN:  Thank you very much,

          5  Council members and thank you for bringing forth

          6  this very strong and important resolution.  I am Ned

          7  Sullivan, the Executive Director of Scenic Hudson, a

          8  37- year- old - -

          9                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL:  Mr.

         10  Sullivan, do we have your testimony in this packet?

         11                 MR. GENNARO:  It's right here.

         12                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL:  Oh, I'm

         13  sorry.

         14                 MR. SULLIVAN:  We have provided - -

         15                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON MARSHALL:  I have

         16  it, okay, thank you.

         17                 MR. SULLIVAN:  Scenic Hudson is a 37-

         18  year- old not for- profit environmental organization

         19  and separately incorporated land trust dedicated to

         20  enhancing the scenic, natural, historic and

         21  recreational treasures of the Hudson River Valley.

         22  We have created many parks and preserves along the

         23  Hudson, and as the Mayor of Croton said, we are no

         24  longer turning our backs to the Hudson, but we are

         25  all engaged in efforts from New York City on up the
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          2  Hudson to reconnect communities and individuals,

          3  children, families with the Hudson.  So I am

          4  speaking in favor of the resolution before you.

          5                 I also represent Friend of a Clean

          6  Hudson, a Coalition of over 10 national, state and

          7  regional organizations, and you are going to hear

          8  from other members of the Coalition today.  I won't

          9  read all of my testimony because you have heard many

         10  elements of it already, I will just emphasize that

         11  Congress has declared the entire Hudson River Valley

         12  a National Heritage Area, the President has declared

         13  the Hudson River an American Heritage River, and

         14  this is a time when communities and citizens from

         15  New York throughout the Capital District are trying

         16  to find ways to create a heritage trail along the

         17  Hudson and to open opportunities for recreation

         18  along the Hudson.  And the inability of people to

         19  catch and consume fish from the Hudson is really the

         20  last remaining obstacle to full enjoyment of the

         21  Hudson River in all its glory.

         22                 You have heard it explained and

         23  delineated by both members of the Council and people

         24  providing testimony that the Supefund Law is simple,

         25  the polluter pays, basically, whether it was legal
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          2  or illegal, the 200- mile stretch of the Hudson

          3  River, from Hudson Falls to the Battery is not the

          4  largest Supefund site, and it is really a question

          5  of who is responsible for it that is clear, and

          6  should the clean up be paid for by taxes or should

          7  GE, the party that discharged and has profited from

          8  the continued presence of the PCBs in the Hudson pay

          9  for it?  We believe that the responsible party, the

         10  corporate party who discharged the PCBs should pay.

         11                 And I should mention that in prior

         12  positions I have overseen many hazardous waste

         13  cleanups, I was a State Official in New York's

         14  Environmental Agency, responsible for the Hazardous

         15  Waste Cleanup Program, and I was Commissioner of the

         16  Main Department of Environmental Protection.  And

         17  what I have found in many, many cases is that

         18  cleanups move more quickly and are done more cost-

         19  effectively, if the responsible party steps up to

         20  the plate and cooperates with government in getting

         21  the job done.  The time involved is much quicker and

         22  they often are able to save costs by bringing their

         23  corporate expertise to bear.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MILLER:  Would you

         25  describe GE's behavior thus far as cooperative?
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          2                 MR. SULLIVAN:  GE has cooperated in

          3  the State cleanup effort that has been ordered.

          4  They have been ordered to perform the cleanup by New

          5  York State of the plant sites, and they have moved

          6  through that process in a relatively cooperative

          7  manner, but they have clearly not cooperated in the

          8  dredging of the Hudson and the sediment issue.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Yes, just to

         10  follow- up on that, now you know why, they don't

         11  believe there is anything wrong with PCBs.  They're

         12  just doing it because they're being dragged to doing

         13  it because of the law, this is in the law.

         14                 MR. SULLIVAN:  Well I think there is

         15   - -

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  They want to do

         17  as little as possible and as lower cost as possible,

         18  because they honestly believe that there is nothing

         19  wrong with PCBs.  I don't know, I don't think they

         20  believe it.

         21                 MR. SULLIVAN:  I think there is

         22  strong consensus in the scientific community that

         23  PCBs are toxic chemicals, and that people should be

         24  protected from exposure to them in a variety of

         25  settings.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I should ask

          3  you the same question that I asked them, do you

          4  think PCBs constitute a danger to life, health and

          5  safety of human beings?

          6                 MR. SULLIVAN:  Yes.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Thank you.

          8                 MR. SULLIVAN:  Without a doubt.  So

          9  we are concerned about human exposure.  PCBs are the

         10  primary root of exposure for humans in the Hudson

         11  Valley, and EPA has testified that the additional

         12  cancer risk and other risks ranges up to 1,000 times

         13  the level that they consider safe.  We consider it

         14  unacceptable that the Department of Health, we

         15  consider it appropriate, but an unacceptable

         16  situation that the Department of Health has issued

         17  these fish consumption advisories indicating that

         18  women of childbearing age and children should eat no

         19  fish from the Hudson. And General Electric has said

         20  in other context that they think there is really no

         21  issue here because there are these fish consumption

         22  advisories in effect.  So people are not going to

         23  eat the fish.

         24                 Well, I think that is flawed on two

         25  bases, one is that fish are a tremendous resource,
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          2  both recreational and commercial, and the people of

          3  the State of New York and from beyond should be able

          4  to fully enjoy that resource.  But as you have heard

          5  from others there are a great number of people who

          6  are catching and consuming the fish, despite the

          7  advisories, both from a range of sectors.  And we

          8  are concerned about people of color and people of

          9  lower income who are exposed, we think,

         10  disproportionately to this risk.

         11                 EPA has found in their studies that

         12  PCBs don't remain buried, that the River is not

         13  cleaning itself up, that significant quantities are

         14  being released from the sediments and that the

         15  sediments rather than the continued seeps from the

         16  plant sites are the source of the problem.

         17                 And General Electric has said in many

         18  contexts that both the level of PCBs in the water

         19  and in the fish has been reduced dramatically since

         20  1977.  And the data that we have shows that there

         21  was a dramatic, roughly 90 percent reduction after

         22  they were banned from discharging PCBs into the

         23  River, but that the level in the fish has been

         24  relatively constant and has remained above the safe

         25  thresholds established by the State Department of
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          2  Health over time.  And so the problem is really not

          3  going away, the River is not cleaning itself, the

          4  sediment is the primary source, and consumption

          5  continues to pose a health risk.

          6                 So the costs are significant, the

          7  Department of Health has had these warnings in

          8  effect since 1976, and they apply to virtually all

          9  locations along the Hudson River.  For the past 25

         10  years, the commercial striped bass fishery has been

         11  ended, ending a way of life for many along the

         12  River.

         13                 And as Mayor Elliott said, each year

         14  from New York Harbor four million cubic yards of

         15  sediment need to be removed, two- thirds of which is

         16  too contaminated for ocean disposal, and while there

         17  are a number of contaminants involved in that

         18  situation other than PCBs, PCBs are definitely part

         19  of the problem.  And it has been found that 50

         20  percent of the PCBs in New York Harbor sediment are,

         21  can be traced back to the GE plants.  There are

         22  particular ways of identifying the different strains

         23  of PCBs, and the PCBs in New York Harbor, many of

         24  them can be traced back to General Electric.

         25                 So we support EPA's proposed plan,
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          2  and we believe the River will remain - -

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Alternative 4.

          4                 MR. SULLIVAN:  Excuse me?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  The third plan,

          6  the Alternative 4 Plan.

          7                 MR. SULLIVAN:  Yes, exactly, the

          8  dredging proposal. The River will remain open under

          9  this plan, recreation can continue.  The long- term

         10  ecological and human health benefits greatly

         11  outweigh the short- term disruption.  We believe the

         12  Bentic communities and the other habitat can be

         13  restored, and we would not be supporting the

         14  dredging project, the environmental dredging

         15  project, if we didn't believe that in the long run

         16  there would be significant benefits to the

         17  ecological life of the River and to the people of

         18  the State of New York and all those who come to

         19  enjoy it.           We have studied other parts of

         20  the country where PCB dredging has occurred and we

         21  believe that the technology is proven and can be

         22  applied here, and the time is of the essence.

         23                 Thank you very much.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Well I'm glad

         25  you said time is of the essence, because that was
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          2  what I was trying to urge before, as you heard.  You

          3  were here, I guess, when I had urged that.  And I'm

          4  glad that you mentioned the striped bass, because

          5  we, in New York City, especially in Manhattan have a

          6  particular debt to the striped bass, because if it

          7  wasn't for the striped bass, they would have built

          8  what they called the Westway, a long time ago.

          9  We're blessed with an institutional memory, and the

         10  striped bass stopped it, so that the plan which we

         11  have is not perfect, but it is a lot better than it

         12  would have been, had we done the Westway.  So we

         13  really, we don't worship the striped bass, but we

         14  honor the striped bass.

         15                 MR. SULLIVAN:  Scenic Hudson is on

         16  the same side as you in that debate, so we agree

         17  with you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Right.  I hope

         19  we're on the same side in a lot of debates.

         20                 MR. SULLIVAN:  I think we are.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Next.

         22                 MS. HOLMES:  Next we have Paul

         23  Mankiewicz.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Susan, I'm

         25  sorry I wasn't here for your testimony, but I have
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          2  read it, and I approve of it and it is excellent

          3  testimony, and I appreciate your help, also, with

          4  the Committee.

          5                 MR. MANKIEWICZ:  Thank you.  My name

          6  is Paul Mankiewicz.  I'm the Treasurer of the New

          7  York City Soil and Water Conservation District, and

          8  I give these remarks on behalf of the Soil and Water

          9  District with my colleague who is a Professor at

         10  Queens College School, resident environmental

         11  engineer, School of Earth and Environmental Studies,

         12  at Queens College, Professor Mankiewicz, Julie

         13  Mankiewicz.

         14                 Let me just put some things in

         15  perspective, first off.  We, until very recent times

         16  dredged about six million cubic yards a year of

         17  materials out of New York Harbor, and we need to do

         18  that again, once we get a way around the judging

         19  crisis.  So two million yards in five years is

         20  actually not a huge dredging program, although it

         21  probably would do a fair amount to the economy, the

         22  Hudson all together in terms of job production.

         23                 Another critical thing should be put

         24  into perspective is that you can find adults of

         25  almost any species that are tolerant of toxic
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          2  chemicals, but the young are almost always the most

          3  sensitive, so the studies actually are deeply flawed

          4  because speaking to the developmental biologist, you

          5  have to look at the impact of the developing

          6  systems, and it has been found that a number of

          7  other toxic chemicals that the children at home

          8  actually have fathers who work in factories are ones

          9  who come down with different kind of skin lesions

         10  and the like, and not so much the adult organism

         11  that is much more adaptive.

         12                 Let me say this, the Soil and Water

         13  Conservation District is in support of this

         14  resolution, and in support of EPA's program to make

         15  this happen in the Hudson.  Sediments come from

         16  soils, and in general the sediments in New York

         17  Harbor are pretty clean.  The PCBs, of course, in

         18  very small amounts can reverse that equation.

         19                 The company, GE may be uniquely

         20  positioned to solve this problem because they were a

         21  fundamental importance in actually developing

         22  service chemistry and looking at such processes in

         23  lightbulbs and elsewhere, but they haven't yet,

         24  actually moved in this direction.  And they talked

         25  about the stability of the sediments, and that has
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          2  not been documented to date, in fact, the sediments

          3  seem to be quite mobile.  The sediments that are

          4  there are probably there since actually they were

          5  deposited from the GE plants themselves.

          6                 Rivers are dynamic, as weather

          7  systems become more dynamic we should expect more

          8  sedimentation mobilization from the Upper Harbor to

          9  the Lower Harbor.  This is both a matter of fact and

         10  a matter of measurement.

         11                 Let me say - -

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  You support

         13  this, the EPA's report on that.

         14                 MR. MANKIEWICZ:  And also DEC has

         15  done a, DEC together with Columbia's, the Mount

         16  Ardie Institute has looked at actually the stability

         17  of sediments and they found that some of them are

         18  stable over some tens of years, but with larger

         19  weather events you tend to have more mobilization.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Unless we

         21  remove it, we're going to find more of it down here.

         22                 MR. MANKIEWICZ:  Down here, that is

         23  for sure.  And 10 years ago I had suggested to Dr.

         24  Bandwit (phonetic) who was running the research

         25  program for GE at the time on PCBs, and I mentioned
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          2  a couple of simple ways to actually document, not

          3  model, but to measure the amount of PCBs that were

          4  broken down.  One simple way would be to look at

          5  chloride coming out of the sediment, because it

          6  would be released from PCBs, polychlorinated

          7  biphenyls with the chlorine would come into the

          8  water column.  GE never did it.

          9                 There are a number of tests that they

         10  could have looked at to see actually how to improve

         11  or increase the rate of breakdown, simple ones are,

         12  you can measure how the voltage, the charge in

         13  certain zones in the sediment, which has been

         14  documented by groups of the University of Texas and

         15  Louisiana, because most PCBs are broken down in very

         16  specific levels, and GE hasn't measured those.

         17                 Only fully anaerobic, methyogentic

         18  (phonetic) systems are actually able to fully

         19  breakdown PCBs, probably don't exist at the bottom

         20  of the Hudson, GE never actually looked at this,

         21  because actually a number of commercially available

         22  systems that had also been used to breakdown things

         23  kind of like PCBs, anodic/cathodic systems, and GE

         24  has not done this either.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  These are tried
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          2  and true and understood methods of evaluating the

          3  breakdown of PCBs?

          4                 MR. MANKIEWICZ:  That is right, some

          5  of them -                CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:

          6  Scientific community accepted.

          7                 MR. MANKIEWICZ:  That is right.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And do you have

          9  an opinion as to why they never measured them?

         10                 MR. MANKIEWICZ:  It's very hard to

         11  know, they had their facilities, they had many of

         12  those - -

         13                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  What is your

         14  opinion, why do you think they did not measure?

         15  Maybe they were afraid to find out what they would

         16  find out?

         17                 MR. MANKIEWICZ:  It could be.  I

         18  mean, basically they were looking at other kinds of

         19  questions, and not these questions.  So I think they

         20  were asking questions that were not directed towards

         21  actually finding - -

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Did anybody ask

         23  them why they did not do this measurement?

         24                 MR. MANKIEWICZ:  I have not since,

         25  no, but it would be worthwhile, I would like to
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          2  know.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I would love to

          4  ask them, if they were still here.

          5                 MR. MANKIEWICZ:  Yes.  There is

          6  another simple way to actually increase the rate of

          7  breakdown of something like polychlorinated

          8  biphenyls, you just add biphenyls to the system with

          9  nutrients, and you can actually see, they could have

         10  measured over the ten years or more that they were

         11  looking at this, if they added to the thing like

         12  polychlorinated biphenyls plus phosphorous and

         13  nitrogen, they may have seen increases in the

         14  breakdown. Again, hasn't been done.

         15                 So the problem is that GE, I don't

         16  think acted in the best interest of the citizens of

         17  New York State or New York City, and they had the

         18  resources to do this, and they now could, as my

         19  colleague from Scenic Hudson mentions, do this, at

         20  this point in time, with the dredging.  Again, there

         21  are many ways to actually stabilize and to increase

         22  the efficiency of silt screens, doubling them up,

         23  using actually pump and treat systems between silt

         24  screens, I'm having trouble today, but they're not

         25  recognizing this.  So I think EPA would do this in
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          2  their final determination.

          3                 And once they're removed, these PCBs

          4  are going to remain in the food chain and food web,

          5  probably in perpetuity, certainly for generations.

          6  The problem with them is their extreme stability,

          7  but the fact that we have localized exactly where

          8  they are, would mean that dredging would be the

          9  optimal way of removing them in this point in time.

         10                 Thank you for your attention.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Do you believe

         12  that there is ways of limiting the resuspension, the

         13  PCBs as a result of the dredging?

         14                 MR. MANKIEWICZ:  There certainly are,

         15  in fact, the Scenic Hudson years ago had, I don't

         16  remember how many now, actually had someone look at

         17  the technologies that were available then around the

         18  country and in the world, and silt screens is one,

         19  but you can actually utilize palimer coatings.

         20  There is ways to actually, if a storm is coming, you

         21  can stabilize the area where you're dredging, there

         22  is a fair number of technologies.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  The Mayor of

         24  Croton was just here, and as you know, he testified

         25  that the resuspension didn't exist.
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          2                 MR. MANKIEWICZ:  That was a simpler

          3  problem though, because they were able to use, you

          4  know, sheet pilings there and dewater, and that is a

          5  big issue.  The worst case scenario seems to be

          6  something like hydraulic dredging because you have a

          7  lot more water of convenience, so- to- speak for the

          8  dredging, and mechanical ways may be more effective.

          9    But I'm sure the EPA will come up this in their

         10  feasibility studies.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  All right,

         12  thank you.

         13                 MR. SULLIVAN:  I will leave you a

         14  copy of our most recent study of dredging

         15  technologies around the country.  My colleague - -

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Better still

         17  you should send it to GE.

         18                 MR. SULLIVAN:  Okay.  It shows

         19  dramatic -               CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  For

         20  that matter, get more than one copy.

         21                 MR. SULLIVAN:  It shows dramatic

         22  reductions in levels of fish, of PCBs in both the

         23  water and fish as a result of dredging around the

         24  country.  So we will leave you a copy of this.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Anyone else?
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          2                 MS. HOLMES:  I would like to pass it

          3  over to Alex Mattiessen of the Hudson River Keeper.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Wonderful,

          5  thank you.

          6                 MR. MATTIESSEN: Thank you very much.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Please give our

          8  best to Mr. Kennedy.

          9                 MR. MATTIESSEN:  Oh, I will, he is

         10  sorry he could not be here today.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I know, he has

         12  been in front of this Committee very often.

         13                 MR. MATTIESSEN:  And yes, I'm sure

         14  you know his sentiments are the same as Riverkeepers

         15  and as same as the Environmental community before

         16  you, he is adamantly in support of the dredging, EPA

         17  has recommended.

         18                 Okay.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  We welcome you.

         20                 MR. MATTIESSEN: Thank you very much.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  We're glad

         22  you're here.

         23                 MR. MATTIESSEN:  Thank you.  My name

         24  is Alex Mattiessen, and I'm the Hudson Riverkeeper.

         25  Riverkeeper is a member- supported, not- for- profit
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          2  environmental organization dedicated to safeguarding

          3  the ecological integrity of the Hudson River, its

          4  tributaries, and the New York City drinking water

          5  watershed, with a focus on enforcement of

          6  environmental laws. Riverkeeper and its predecessor

          7  organization, the Hudson River Fishermen's

          8  Association, have been fighting to restore and

          9  protect the health of the Hudson River and its

         10  fisheries since 1966.

         11                 Let me begin by thanking the

         12  Committee, in particular, Chairman Michels and our

         13  Councilman Miller, for giving me the opportunity to

         14  testify before you today on this very important

         15  issue.  As a member of a broad coalition of

         16  environmental groups working to bring about a PCB

         17  cleanup, I will focus my remarks today on the effect

         18  GE's PCB contamination has had on the Hudson River's

         19  commercial fishery.

         20                 If you would indulge me, I'm going to

         21  read a statement, because I'm really telling a story

         22  more than I am giving you facts and figures on the

         23  cleanup and so forth, which some of my environmental

         24  colleagues have done instead.

         25                 By the summer of 1975, it appeared
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          2  that a decade of Hudson River activism had paid off.

          3    Thanks to the successful efforts to stop the

          4  discharge of raw sewage and chemical pollutants into

          5  the river, the health of the Hudson River was

          6  rapidly improving.  The River was slowly beginning

          7  to shed its image as one of the dirtiest rivers in

          8  the country, the embarrassment of all New Yorkers.

          9  The commercial fishery at that time was in better

         10  shape than it had been in years.

         11                 But in February 1976, that sense of

         12  increasing optimism about the River's future was

         13  shattered.  After discovering high levels of PCBs in

         14  fish tissue throughout the Hudson River, the New

         15  York State Department of Enivronmental Conservation

         16  banned the commercial harvest of striped bass, eel,

         17  carp, catfish, and perched.  American shadow and

         18  sturgeon were exemption from the bans because they

         19  spend most of their lives at sea.  In addition,

         20  recreational fishing was banned for species in the

         21  Upper Hudson, from Fort Edward to the Federal Dam at

         22  Troy.

         23                 The ban on fishing resulted in

         24  closure of bait shops, motels, and boat rental

         25  operations, resulting in tens of millions of dollars
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          2  in lost economic activity up and down the Hudson.

          3  That figure is surely a great deal higher in today's

          4  dollars.  The public's original hopes for a fully

          5  restored River were replaced with a growing reality

          6  that the River was, in fact, a toxic waste site.

          7  Commercial fisherman were to bear the brunt of the

          8  PCB contamination.  For centuries they had lived a

          9  quiet and simple existence and earn an honest

         10  living.  They had endured the vagaries of weather,

         11  catch, market, price, even pollution, but PCBs

         12  proved too tough even for the notoriously tough

         13  commercial fishermen.  Before 1976, there were

         14  approximately two hundred river men making at least

         15  part of their living on the Hudson.  Today, there

         16  are an estimated thirteen.  Everett Nack, a

         17  commercial fisherman from Claverack, poignantly sums

         18  up what PCBs have done to the Hudson River fishing

         19  culture.  "My sons love the River just as much as I

         20  do," he said.  "They were looking forward to making

         21  a living off of it.  Thanks to GE's PCBs, now that's

         22  gone."  GE's discharge of PCBs into the Hudson was

         23  single- handedly responsible for destroying what was

         24  a centuries- old commercial fishing industry.

         25                 But the losses are not just economic
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          2  but cultural and human as well.  Parents can no

          3  longer take their children to fish on the banks of

          4  the River.  And an ancient fishery that enriched the

          5  culture, economy, and palate of the Hudson Valley

          6  from Troy to Battery Park is lost to generations of

          7  New Yorkers.  As a future father, whose own father

          8  taught me how to fish, this makes me mad as hell,

          9  and I'm sure many of the members of the Council feel

         10  similarly.  GE points to what they call a thriving

         11  catch- and release system on the River as evidence

         12  that the River and its surrounding communities are

         13  prospering.  However, the ability of people to catch

         14  and eat, as opposed to just catch and release the

         15  fish is a standard by which the health of the River

         16  should be determined.

         17                 New York State Law says that the

         18  people of New York State own the Waters and the fish

         19  in the Hudson.  In truth, General Electric now owns

         20  the fish in the Hudson, it liquidated them for cash

         21  and did so at the expense of the public trust.  GE

         22  has essentially stolen a vital resource that

         23  belonged to the public. I remember how my big

         24  sister, when I was a kind, would lick the spoon when

         25  she didn't want to share her ice cream, GE has
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          2  licked the spoon of the Hudson, thus depriving the

          3  rest of us of our ability to make full and unfetted

          4  use of what is rightfully ours.

          5                 I would like to draw your attention

          6  to recent articles in the New York Press to

          7  demonstrate the dangers that PCBs pose to New

          8  Yorkers.  A recent New York Times article included a

          9  photograph of a fish- cleaning table at the newly

         10  refurbished Pier I in Riverside Park South and

         11  stated that the presence of the fish table

         12  represents a "testament to the improving condition

         13  of the Hudson."

         14                 In another article in Time Out

         15  magazine the authority claims that this fish-

         16  cleaning table is a heartening reminder that the

         17  Department of Environmental Conservation has

         18  declared the River safe enough to eat from again.

         19  So if you can't get a reservation at Nobu, you can

         20  try harvesting a few striped bass from Pier I."

         21  While these articles are mildly amusing, the

         22  reporters clearly got their facts wrong.

         23  Unfortunately, there are many people here in New

         24  York and up and down the River who are not

         25  sufficiently aware of the hazards of eating River
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          2  fish.  We certainly look forward to the day when all

          3  fish caught in the Hudson River and New York Bay are

          4  perfectly safe to eat.  But until that day arrives

          5  we need to take the necessary steps to discourage

          6  the potentially harmful activity of eating

          7  contaminated fish caught in the Hudson River.

          8                 And by the way, I would like to take

          9  this opportunity to applaud the City Council for the

         10  work you have done on Hudson River Park.  It's a

         11  great, great think for New York City and it is a

         12  great way to give the citizens of New York City

         13  access to the River.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Thank the

         15  striped bass.

         16                 MR. MATTIESSEN:  Yes, and thank the

         17  striped bass.

         18                 Before I conclude, I just wanted to

         19  point out a couple of things about GE, and I'm sorry

         20  to be so blunt in here, but I just feel very

         21  strongly about this, and as I know, my colleagues

         22  do.  GE is no friend of the environment.  They're

         23  morally corrupt country, company, they're actually

         24  practically a country, in terms of their overall

         25  profits and their influence on our Congress and on
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          2  the world economy.  This is not a company to be

          3  trusted.  Someone made an earlier analogy to GE in

          4  terms of the tobacco companies, tobacco lies, is the

          5  phrase that has been used in the past.  I just want

          6  to remind you that this company that claims to care

          7  about the environment and claims to care about the

          8  communities, and in particular, the Upper Hudson

          9  communities, is also the company that has known

         10  about the dangers of PCBs as early as the 1950s.

         11                 Masanto the company - -

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  We have a copy

         13  of the letter.

         14                 MR. MATTIESSEN:  You have a copy of

         15  the letter.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Are we saying

         17  either knew or should have known?

         18                 MR. MATTIESSEN: Yes, they either knew

         19  and should have known, and it certainly, Masanto

         20  knew and they had shared that information with some

         21  of the customer companies.  I would be very

         22  surprised to learn if GE did not also know of the

         23  dangers as early as 1950s.

         24                 As early as 1970, we know that GE

         25  sent letters to its customers warning them of the
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          2  dangers of PCBs and advising them to - -

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Masanto sent

          4  letters.

          5                 MR. MATTIESSEN:  No, GE sent letters

          6  to its own customers that were buying their

          7  capacitors and transformers.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Do you have

          9  copies of those letters?

         10                 MR. MATTIESSEN:  They're with our

         11  packet.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Yes, I'm going

         13  to take a look at them.

         14                 MR. MATTIESSEN:  And in those

         15  letters, as early as 1970, they warned their own

         16  customers not to, to do whatever, take whatever

         17  steps were necessary to avoid disposing PCBs into

         18  the waterway and into the environment in general

         19  citing the toxic dangers of PCBs.  And yet, this

         20  company that knew that, at least as early as 1970,

         21  probably a lot longer, spent 30 years knowingly

         22  dumping these, you know, over 30 pounds of PCBs each

         23  day into the River, and they knew full well how

         24  dangerous these things were. So, and the fact

         25  remains the GE was illegal in its dumping at various
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          2  junctures.

          3                 But in addition to that they're

          4  absolutely morally responsible for what they have

          5  done.  They knew at least as early as 1970 these

          6  things were very dangerous, and yet, they continued

          7  to dump them knowingly into the River.  This is the

          8  same company, GE is the same company that threaten

          9  Hugh Carey back in the seventies and said, we will

         10  take our jobs right out of New York State if you

         11  force us to deal with this problem.  Is that a

         12  company that we want in our backyard, is that a

         13  company that we can see as a neighbor?  I don't

         14  think so.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Didn't Hugh

         16  Carey agree to drink a glass of water with PCBs in

         17  them?

         18                 MR. MATTIESSEN:  Yes.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And the

         20  building that they were going to build in

         21  Binghampton?

         22                 MR. MATTIESSEN:  Yes, I think he did.

         23    I'm not sure if that promise was every carried

         24  out, but that is correct.

         25                 But, you know, what kind of company
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          2  is that, I mean, here they laud themselves as an

          3  environmental responsible company, and I'm sorry,

          4  but a company that threatens to take jobs from the

          5  people of New York State, if they have to cleanup

          6  the mess that they made, I'm sorry, that is morally

          7  reprehensible as far as my own ethical code is

          8  concerned.

          9                 The GE, as far as I know, conducted a

         10  study to look into the health effects of PCBs and

         11  sat on that information for a long time before they

         12  finally revealed to the public, even when their own

         13  scientist had said, we agree with the conclusions

         14  that PCBs are dangerous to wildlife and the human

         15  environment.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  What did they

         17  say?

         18                 MR. MATTIESSEN:  What is that?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  As a result of

         20  that study, what did GE say?

         21                 MR. MATTIESSEN:  Well, I don't know.

         22  GE sat on the information for a long time.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  You were here

         24  when GE testified, weren't you?

         25                 MR. MATTIESSEN:  Yes.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And you heard

          3  them say that they still don't believe that PCBs are

          4  harmful?

          5                 MR. MATTIESSEN:  Well they don't

          6  despite their own scientist having said - -

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  They still

          8  maintain that position.

          9                 MR. MATTIESSEN:  Yes, and I don't

         10  understand it. The rest of the world seems to be in

         11  disagreement with GE on this point.

         12                 I also want to just remind the

         13  Council that GE is responsible for over 80 Superfund

         14  sites around the country, that is more than any

         15  other company in the country.  I don't know about

         16  you, but every time I open up a paper, I seem to be

         17  reading about, yet, another GE contaminated site and

         18  their efforts trying to avoid taking responsibility.

         19                 I also want to remind you that GE has

         20  17 highly paid lobbyist in Washington, D.C. Who are

         21  not just fighting this particular cleanup, but

         22  they're actually trying to challenge the bedrock and

         23  the Environmental Laws to protect human health and

         24  environment in this country.  The Clean Water Act,

         25  the Clean Air Act, you name it, Superfund, this
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          2  company is trying to undo those very laws that

          3  protect us.  This is not a company that is a friend

          4  of the environment.

          5                 They have made their profits on the

          6  backs of people, workers, and on the environment, at

          7  large.  And I'm sorry, I know that many in the

          8  corporate world laud this company as one of the

          9  greatest companies on earth.  But if they were truly

         10  a great company, they would make their profits

         11  honestly and not at the expense of human health and

         12  the environment.

         13                 And, you know, again, as Paul

         14  referred to earlier, this is a company that has got,

         15  it's one of the most technologically advanced

         16  companies in the world.  If they had just applied

         17  their own technological know how to try to solve

         18  this problem, we would have been rid of this problem

         19  a long time ago.

         20                 Let me just conclude by saying that

         21  on behalf of Riverkeeper - -

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Isn't their

         23  motto, GE brings the things to life?

         24                 MR. MATTIESSEN:  Yes, and that is the

         25  most ironic of corporate mottos, that is for sure.
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          2  And I assure you, we intend to illuminate that fact

          3  in coming months.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  They have

          5  probably copyrighted.

          6                 MR. MATTIESSEN:  Yes, yes, I have to

          7  be careful, I'm sure.

          8                 On behalf of Riverkeeper, I urge the

          9  City Council to pass this resolution in support of

         10  the EPA's Proposed Plan and I urge you to do it

         11  before April 17th, EPA's deadline for accepting

         12  public comments.  If passed, this resolution would

         13  demonstrate that PCB contamination is an issue that

         14  affects the entire Hudson River Valley, including

         15  New York City, whose harbor continues to be

         16  threatened by unsafe levels of PCBs in fish and

         17  sediment.

         18                 Fifty municipalities up and down the

         19  Hudson River have signed similar resolutions, and

         20  with the addition of New York City representing nine

         21  million people, we could send a strong message to

         22  the EPA that despite an aggressive and dishonest, I

         23  might add, public relations campaign by General

         24  Electric, there is strong public and political

         25  support for employing sound science and effective
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          2  environmental technologies to free the Hudson River

          3  ecosystem of the scourge of PCBs once and for all.

          4                 Thank you very much for giving me

          5  this opportunity.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Thank you very

          7  much and we wish you well as the Riverkeeper.  I was

          8  at your reception when you were introduced, when you

          9  had your debut.

         10                 MR. MATTIESSEN:  And I'm very

         11  grateful to you for coming to that reception.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I was very glad

         13  to hear your testimony, please, our best.

         14                 Also, by the way, Mr. Mankiewicz,

         15  would you please give our best to Eugenia Flatow,

         16  who is our Manhattan representative and is a very

         17  good and dear friend of this Committee and has been

         18  here often and testified.

         19                 Anyone else?  Who is next.

         20                 MR. SULLIVAN:  Yes, the next person

         21  that we have is Andre Mele of Hudson River

         22  Clearwater.

         23                 MR. MELE:  Thank you very much.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Andre, I was

         25  very glad to see you here.  I was hoping that Pete
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          2  Seeger would come sing us a song.

          3                 MR. MELE:  Thank you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Please tell him

          5  we're very disappointed, but we're very glad to hear

          6  from you.

          7                 MR. MELE:  I'm not going to give you

          8  a long song and dance about who we are, but we take

          9  about 5,000 of your kids out on the River every

         10  year, most of them from disadvantaged communities,

         11  many of them at no cost at all, and it's a pleasure

         12  to be here, for me, for the first time.  We're also

         13  involved in the Westway issue, so we too revere the

         14  striped bass.

         15                 I was at a legislative hearing not

         16  long ago in Albany, actually a couple of years ago,

         17  at which General Electric was called on the carpet

         18  by the Assembly's Environmental Committee, and at

         19  that hearing they offered up a graph proporting to

         20  show dramatic drop offs or very low levels of PCBs

         21  in fish.

         22                 Upon closer examination by the

         23  legislative members, it was discovered that this

         24  fish data was coming from upstream of the GE plant

         25  sites.  Also, at that hearing, yes, this is on the
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          2  record, you can go up there and get, also at that

          3  some hearing we had a tobacco industry moment, when

          4  Assembly Member Brodski interviewed the GE

          5  representatives at the table lined up, some of whom

          6  are here today, and asked each one in turn, is it

          7  your belief that dredging technology has not changed

          8  since 1984, and each one of them said, yes, that is

          9  correct, it has not changed since 1984.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Please

         11  identify, Brodski, for the record, is the Chair of

         12  the Environmental Committee of the Assembly.

         13                 MR. MELE:  So we believe the time for

         14  action is, indeed, now.  This is an unprecedented

         15  opportunity to move forward on this issue.  The

         16  River has been studied, it has been studied

         17  endlessly, it has been studied by DEC, General

         18  Electric, EPA, a variety of private institutions,

         19  it's been studied by EPA alone for over 10 years.

         20  EPA has folded General Electric's data into its own

         21  conclusions, so GE cannot claim that the conclusions

         22  have come out of nowhere.  It has gone through five

         23  layers of Peer Review, as you heard before.

         24                 The conclusions are inescapable, the

         25  River is not healing itself.  I have submitted to
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          2  you today some graphic material, you will see that

          3  despite what GE just showed you, the lines from

          4  about the time source control began in 1994 of PCBs

          5  in fish and water remain statistically flat.  The

          6  River is not healing itself.

          7                 They're also very proud to cite a 90

          8  percent decline in levels of PCBs in fish.  But if

          9  you look at the graph, which they will say, you note

         10  that the timeline goes back to the point where the

         11  tap got closed.  We respectfully submit that that is

         12  no particular victory, that is just simply an

         13  artifact of the fact that they were forced, at the

         14  point of a gun, to stop using PCBs in their

         15  products.  It's not a victory for anybody.

         16                 In fact, if there are 90 percent

         17  lower PCBs in fish, it is due to the fact that they

         18  have just moved downstream into our bodies.  I have

         19  my own blood tested, I have 200 parts per billion in

         20  my body, right here.  In fact, that makes me unsafe

         21  to eat in most states now that are currently looking

         22  at new safety thresholds.

         23                 You will hear about source control,

         24  you will hear about natural attenuation.  But make

         25  no mistake, natural attenuation and source control
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          2  is nothing more than saying let's let the stuff go

          3  downstream.  And guess who is downstream?  You guys,

          4  New York Harbor, our communities, our subsistence

          5  fishers.

          6                 The stuff that is up in the Thompson

          7  Island Pool and the other smaller hotspots in the

          8  Upper Hudson will recontaminate the Hudson River for

          9  generations to come, if they're not removed. Now GE

         10  can run their models, they can run EPA's models,

         11  they can run anybody's models, I don't care, I don't

         12  trust them anymore.  I have seen them with my own

         13  two eyes and I have read these ads one after the

         14  other, after the other, I know how absolutely

         15  skilled and brilliant they are at distorting facts

         16  and making themselves appear to be soft, fuzzy and

         17  environmental.  It's outrageous.

         18                 I have here, I'm going to submit to

         19  you folks today, one week's output just in print

         20  alone from General Electric.  This is about a half

         21  million bucks worth of advertising and it is just

         22  print, that is just Capital Region, that is right.

         23  It's good reading.  It's better than many novels I

         24  have read, it's largely fiction, I'm afraid.

         25                 Down here in New York Harbor, if
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          2  nothing is done up River, regardless of the models,

          3  regardless of, with all due respect, with Mr.

          4  Haggard and Mr. Ramsey say, the only way to stop

          5  this stuff is to remove it, otherwise, you face

          6  continuing, escalating high costs of dredging to

          7  keep your port navigatable and to keep your

          8  residents, thousands of whom eat fish for food from

          9  getting afflicted.

         10                 Contrary to what, again with all due

         11  respect, General Electric says, there are health

         12  impacts associated with eating contaminated fish,

         13  fish contaminated with PCBs.  The renowned and often

         14  cited Kimbro Study, the largest toxicological study

         15  or mortality study or whatever of capacitor workers

         16  ever done, first of all, it only looked at

         17  mortality.  I mean, it was not done with test tubes

         18  and needles and blood samples, it was done with

         19  private detectives, they just went out and tried to

         20  find everybody and identify them to see if they were

         21  alive or not, that was the substance of it.  Dr.

         22  Kimbro, who is firmly associated with the chemical

         23  industry at this point and does not enjoy the sort

         24  of widely held reputation that was alleged here

         25  today.  Overlooked incidence of cancer in her study,
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          2  in fact, every single one of those capacitor workers

          3  could have been battling with cancer all of their

          4  lives and it would have not been recorded.

          5                 In addition, the pool, the sample

          6  pool of that capacitor study was so large that

          7  everybody who did work up close and personal with

          8  PCBs could have died and would not have been

          9  statistically significant.  Furthermore, we have

         10  learned through the various Sunshine Laws of our

         11  good State that GE has sequestered many of the

         12  medical records of the people who worked up close

         13  and personal with PCBs under lock and key in their

         14  corporate headquarters and these are not available

         15  for public examination under any circumstances.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  They have been

         17  requested?

         18                 MR. MELE:  They have been requested.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  In writing?

         20                 MR. MELE:  I believe it was the town

         21  of Moreau.  GE, the minute that the court ordered

         22  that actual names, they provided the documents with

         23  the names scratched out, I'm not a lawyer, so

         24  something like they were redoctored documents, the

         25  minute the judge ordered that the names on the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            205

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  documents be provided so those people could be

          3  brought in as witnesses, GE settled with the town,

          4  end of case, end of examination.

          5                 Clearwater sponsored an impact, you

          6  know, there has been no study of human beings on the

          7  Hudson River.  We have studied fish, birds, bugs,

          8  mud, air, water, we have studied everything but

          9  people.  And for a quarter of a century to avoid

         10  studying people on the Hudson River, in my opinion,

         11  the New York State Department of Health, itself, is

         12  derelict, but that is another subject for another

         13  day.  The fact is we called together some scientists

         14  who have done work on people who eat Lake Ontario

         15  fish, attempting to see if there was some

         16  correlation that could be drawn, to see if, indeed,

         17  people are being afflicted on the Hudson River.  And

         18  we saw a parade of health impacts, many of them

         19  subtle.  We saw the biochemical mechanisms up on the

         20  screen by which PCBs begin to cause cancer by which

         21  they initiate the process of cancer in creating DNA

         22  add- ups.  We saw absolutely irrefutable evidence of

         23  a diminished IQ and other behavioral issues.  And

         24  when we examined the difference in toxicity between

         25  Lake Ontario fish and Hudson River fish, Hudson
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          2  River fish are 10 times more toxic on average than

          3  Lake Ontario fish.

          4                 As our citizens are continuing to eat

          5  this fish for a variety of reasons whether its

          6  social, poverty, language, cultural, whatever, the

          7  cycle of disadvantages being continued in which

          8  those populations are less able to move into the

          9  American mainstream they way immigrant communities

         10  before them were able to. They're more dependent

         11  upon welfare, they're more dependent on other social

         12  services, and we're continuing the cycle of

         13  disadvantage in this country in this area.

         14                 And we submit the only way to begin

         15  to alleviate that is to just simply remove them,

         16  they have to be removed.

         17                 That stack of advertisements I gave

         18  you is evidence of a public policy crisis in this

         19  state.  Nobody has the sort of resources that GE

         20  has, nobody else has been able to match blow for

         21  blow the 50, 60, 80, 100 million dollars, I have no

         22  idea how money they have spent to date, my best

         23  guess is between 50 and 60. Nobody, GE has a rather

         24  than a sort of humble statement that they made

         25  about, oh, how there need to be another voice heard,
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          2  they are the only voice that is being heard, and the

          3  advertisements are so brilliantly crafted that

          4  people come to us and think that they're put out by

          5  environmental groups.  The fact is that public

          6  policy needs to come out of this arena, the arena of

          7  paid advertising and special interests and brought

          8  back to the public, it needs to be brought back to

          9  where it belongs, it needs to be brought back to the

         10  people, and you folks as the elected officials in

         11  this City, I'm asking you, I'm hoping that you will

         12  support this resolution or some variant of it,

         13  because we have a public policy crisis and that is

         14  really going to be the only way we can address it.

         15                 Dredging isn't perfect but it is the

         16  only way, the only way to stop this problem is to

         17  remove the PCBs from the Upper Hudson.  Dredging

         18  isn't perfect, but it will work for us.

         19                 And I thank you very much.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Thank you.

         21                 MR. MAIR:  The next person we have is

         22  Catherine Kennedy, Head of DEC.

         23                 MS. KENNEDY:  Good afternoon.  I'm

         24  Kit Kennedy.  I'm a Senior Attorney with the Natural

         25  Resources Defense Council. We're a national - -
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  We're not

          3  unfamiliar to it.

          4                 MS. KENNEDY:  Absolutely.  And as you

          5  know, we're a national group, but we have our roots

          6  here in New York City and in the Hudson Valley and

          7  we have been very proud to work with the City

          8  Council on a number of important environmental

          9  initiatives, including recycling.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Harry Goldstein

         11  has been here innumerable times, so much so that

         12  some people wonder if he is not a member of the

         13  Committee.

         14                 MS. KENNEDY:  This issue is important

         15  to us on many levels.  Nationally, whether EPA moves

         16  forward with its proposed plan, it is going to be an

         17  important indication of whether the Bush

         18  Administration is ever going to take Environmental

         19  Law seriously, and it is going to set an important

         20  national precedent for whether big companies have to

         21  comply with our environmental laws or whether they

         22  only apply to small companies that don't have

         23  tremendous resources.

         24                 On a regional level this issue is

         25  terribly important to the Hudson Valley for all the
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          2  reasons that you have heard, and here in New York

          3  City, as you have heard, our own harbor has PCB

          4  contamination that has traveled all the way down the

          5  River from GE's plants.  So it is a very important

          6  issue on all three levels and we strongly support

          7  the City Council's resolution to support EPA's

          8  cleanup plan.

          9                 I just want to react to one point

         10  that the GE panel made, they stressed over and over

         11  again that GE obeys the law. They have always been

         12  in compliance with the law, they stand by the

         13  Federal Superfund Law, and they tell other people to

         14  obey the law. And as you have heard there is just a

         15  tremendous amount of evidence to the contrary.

         16  First, I would like to echo what Gordon Johnson of

         17  the Attorney General's Office said to you earlier

         18  this morning. Twenty- five years ago the State

         19  Department of Environmental Conservation found that

         20  GE's discharges of PCBs from these plants were in

         21  violation of the Federal Clean Water Act and of

         22  State Water Pollution Laws.  This was a case in

         23  which NRDC had intervened on behalf of Riverkeeper

         24  and other Hudson Valley groups, so it is a decision

         25  that is important to us.  And the DECNLJ, in 1976,
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          2  said, "the record in this case overwhelmingly

          3  demonstrates violations of State Water Pollution

          4  Laws.  PCBs are toxic substances capable in

          5  sufficient quantities of causing skin lesions,

          6  destroying cells in vital body organs, adversely

          7  affecting reproduction and inducing cancer and

          8  death.  GE has discharged PCBs in quantities that

          9  have reached applicable standards of water quality.

         10  GE is responsible for its conduct and must be

         11  compelled to abide by the law."

         12                 It is truly shocking that 25 years

         13  later GE had still not been compelled to abide by

         14  the law and is fighting tooth and nail to, with all

         15  its tremendous resources to avoid being forced to

         16  comply with the law.

         17                 GE also referred to the Federal

         18  Superfund Law, CERCLA, said it stood by that law and

         19  would obey that law.  What GE didn't tell you is

         20  that GE has filed a lawsuit in Federal District

         21  Court in Washington, D.C. Challenging the very

         22  constitutionality of the Federal Superfund Law.  So

         23  while GE is appearing here today, saying that they

         24  stand by the Superfund Law, they are in court trying

         25  to strike it down.  And next week, NRDC, Scenic
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          2  Hudson, Riverkeeper, Clearwater, and New York Rivers

          3  united will be filing an amicus brief with the court

          4  to help defend this important law. We need it in the

          5  Hudson Valley, we need it in New York City, we need

          6  it nationally, and I urge the City Council to do its

          7  part by passing this resolution.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  This lawsuit

          9  that you talk about, which is news to me, and maybe

         10  I should have known about it, but I don't.  It was

         11  filed when?

         12                 MS. KENNEDY:  It was filed, I believe

         13  in November of 2000.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  And they're

         15  trying to set aside the entire Superfund Law or just

         16  parts of it?

         17                 MS. KENNEDY:  The important

         18  enforcement mechanisms of the Superfund Law, and

         19  ironically they are arguing that GE hasn't been

         20  afforded due process under the Superfund Law.  That

         21  after a decade of consideration and scientific

         22  studies - -

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  That is a

         24  standard allegation of the law, you always allege

         25  lack of due process.
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          2                 MS. KENNEDY:  No, that is their

          3  claim, they have hired a team of high priced lawyers

          4  and probably a PR move, but we're going to help

          5  fight it.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Let me ask you

          7  this, if the allegations and the complaint is

          8  granted, what effect would that have on the cleanup

          9  of the Hudson?

         10                 MS. KENNEDY:  It would be, it would

         11  slow it down by or for another 25 years, minimum.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Can we get

         13  somebody from NRDC to give us an analysis of that as

         14  to the effect this lawsuit will have on the cleanup?

         15                 MS. KENNEDY:  Certainly.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Had I known

         17  about it, I would have gone into more detail on it.

         18  Thank you very much.  Anything else?

         19                 MS. KENNEDY:  That is it, but you

         20  have other panelists.

         21                 MR. MAIR:  Yes, I saved mine because

         22  I was left with the video and I did not want to do

         23  it, the video and break everybody up.  But, again,

         24  my name is Aaron Mair.  I am the Environmental

         25  Justice Chair for the New York State Sierra Club.  I
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          2  am also the Vice- Chair for the New York State

          3  Sierra Club.  As mentioned, we have over 40,000

          4  members in this State, and in particular, in the

          5  Metropolitan Area we have 15,000 members.  I also

          6  served as past member of the former White House

          7  Commission on Environmental Quality when it came to

          8  EJ matters and EJ issues.  I also have served in

          9  numerous capacities with regards to advising and

         10  testifying on Superfund brownfields within the State

         11  of New York.  I also serve as part of the

         12  Northeastern Environmental Justice Network, which

         13  includes members from the Metropolitan Areas like

         14  West Harlem Environmental Action, Citizens' Watch,

         15  people like Samara Swanson, El Pointe, and Bronx

         16  Clean Air Coalition.  I also sit as a member of the

         17  National Black Environmental Justice Network, as

         18  well.

         19                 And in particular, what is very, very

         20  unique about this particular situation and what has

         21  been left relatively until recently not discussed is

         22  this impact on people of color in communities of

         23  color.  When you look at the Metropolitan Area and

         24  the New York City Area, in fact I hail from

         25  Peekskill, New York, and I will tell you a little

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            214

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  bit about my story, and as they say my orientation

          3  to the River.  But the Metropolitan Area you have

          4  basically a community of immigrants, and

          5  predominantly people whose cultures, customs and

          6  habits are water- based.  You have the Italians, you

          7  have the Caribbeans, the Hispanic, the Chinese,

          8  people in which their diet, Jewish, fish is a very

          9  significant part of their culture, custom and habit,

         10  and so therefore, what is totally missed from the

         11  paradigm is that people's own cultures and customs

         12  now are a risk factor that may put their health at

         13  risk. And when we talk about suspending any cleanup

         14  or act of dredging of the River, we're asking, as

         15  already that has been clearly demonstrated by

         16  Riverkeeper a clear break in teaching traditions of

         17  culture, custom of water- base and river- base

         18  culture.

         19                 In fact many people, my people came

         20  up as part of the WPA from the South, again, fleeing

         21  because of economic and racial tensions, but they

         22  were Southern Baptist, and part of Southern Baptist

         23  culture is not only just the fish consumption and

         24  their diet, but the river part.  A lot of Blacks

         25  settling along the, as I said the inner cities
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          2  ranging from the New York Harbor going all the way

          3  up to Troy.  Again, it is not an accident that their

          4  communities are right on the River.  And the river

          5  has always served as a core communal gathering

          6  point, it is a point where people were initiated

          7  even into their faith.  So the river holds a very

          8  unique special place.  We did not necessarily need

          9  Congress to designate it as a Heritage River, New

         10  York and the Hudson River Valley have always known

         11  historically its significance culturally, as well

         12  as, as they say, as a source of food.

         13                 And as we start to look at issues of

         14  politics and as we start to say ending welfare as we

         15  know it, as we start to put limitations as to when

         16  people are eligible for welfare or food stamps, we

         17  want to put the five- year cap, many people, again,

         18  turn to the Hudson River and its bounty.  You have a

         19  new wave of immigrants coming in from Eastern

         20  Europe, again, are river- based people, river- based

         21  culture depending upon the Hudson's bounty.

         22                 I have seen, I have witnessed and I

         23  have also been an active participant in the Hudson

         24  River Valley culture.  I have fished, to this day,

         25  many members of my family have fished and continue
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          2  to fish the Hudson River.  Because of the

          3  unfortunate disinformation (sic) campaign, meaning

          4  that the River is cleaning itself, and depending

          5  upon your level or state of understanding that

          6  campaign, there has been an unfortunately and

          7  unwittingly GE has triggered actually a bigger, a

          8  larger number of people fishing because people

          9  actually believe the River is clean or is cleaning

         10  itself.  And since fish and the River is a food

         11  source a) for water for some municipalities and fish

         12  for food, we should, really, I think, we should

         13  challenge, and I encourage the City to challenge

         14  that an FDA warning should be part of their ads,

         15  just like we have a disclaimer on the cigarette

         16  packets, they can poster ads.

         17                 But since they're talking about a

         18  food stuff and a food source and a potential portal

         19  water source for some municipalities, a disclaimer

         20  noting and citing the New York State Public Health's

         21  warning, number one, as well as the National FDA

         22  Guidelines, and then they can absolutely begin their

         23  message.  And that would truly be an honest

         24  presentation.  They would, at least, present, at

         25  least the science as we know it, and then their
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          2  spin. But unfortunately that is not the case.

          3                 We have talked about the

          4  methodologies by which they have manipulated the

          5  issues with regards to the Hudson River. Well, let's

          6  talk about the methodologies, 1984 was the Reagan

          7  era, and as they say, it was the attack on the

          8  Liberal Environmental agenda.  So it is not

          9  surprising that Gerald Solomon, the Congressman from

         10  my Capital Region area, basically initiated, let's

         11  study it to death.  It's not an accident, these

         12  things did not occur in a vacuum, the EPA did not

         13  just take actions, its an Executive Branch agency

         14  meaning that.  They are susceptible to implementing

         15  the policies that are influenced by campaign

         16  donations to that Executive Branch leader, then

         17  President Reagan.

         18                 Follow that we have the breath of

         19  fresh air to the extent I can call it, breath of

         20  fresh air, where you have the Clinton Administration

         21  and two terms whereby we actively pick up, again, a

         22  little bit more accelerated on the Hudson in trying

         23  to move toward the progress of now the study coming

         24  in and taking an active stance.  Unfortunately, and

         25  much to my chagrin, the Clinton Administration, in
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          2  my opinion, did not move aggressively enough. And in

          3  fact, as part of the current strategy that was

          4  really the impetus behind pushing for our current

          5  President- select Bush, the issue about the Hudson

          6  was very, very much on the minds of corporate

          7  leaders when they made their big donations,

          8  everything from the Coal Industry with regards to

          9  air, GE with regards to Superfund sites and CERCLA,

         10  again, there was a tremendous impetus, and what we

         11  see right now, immediately it starts, a delay, as

         12  they say, with regards to the public comment period.

         13                 And let us talk about the public

         14  comment period. You want to talk about a significant

         15  EJ issue then you should do, in fact I ask City

         16  Council Member Michels to commission a study, an

         17  analysis as to where these comment periods were

         18  held, and more importantly the ability of inner city

         19  populations to participate, were they held in areas

         20  with regards to mass transportation that allowed

         21  inner- city populations to participate?  Let me say

         22  this, this whole process has been implemented in a

         23  discriminatory way and in a discriminatory matter.

         24  With the unintended consequence of minorities and

         25  low- income populations being almost excluded, in
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          2  fact, when Jerry Solomon helped initiate and got the

          3  so- called Community Involvement Plan that went

          4  almost exclusively to Upstate rural communities

          5  which are predominantly white.  No such community

          6  involvement plans or monies included any of the

          7  waterfront municipalities of Poughkeepsie,

          8  Peekskill, Yonkers, White Plains, New York City or

          9  any of the Metropolitan Area, anybody in Rockland

         10  County, they unfortunately were not a part of the

         11  process.

         12                 And let us talk about the $25 million

         13  that the federal government had to pay.  That was

         14  taxpayer monies for the so- called extended study,

         15  that did not come out of GE's pocket.  So not only

         16  did they get the delay, but they even had the

         17  taxpayers foot the bill for the delay.  And when you

         18  talk about a brass pair and a scary pair, they went

         19  as far as to threaten absolutely, continually the

         20  entire duration of the past 30 years, the capital

         21  region with job loss.  Political leaders were under

         22  economic blackmail and economic extortion.  People

         23  were literally being forced to make the negative

         24  choice of life or jobs, health or jobs, prosperity

         25  or jobs, and I would even submit, you know, many of
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          2  these people are good people.  You know, and in fact

          3  some of the people here from GE, I think are very

          4  decent individuals and persons individually, but

          5  they have a job to do.  These men have to make

          6  unfortunately a pay check to bring it home to their

          7  family, and unfortunately some of their kids are

          8  aware of what they do, and others that may not be.

          9  But the fact of the matter remains, there are other

         10  people whose lives are affected by them doing their

         11  jobs.

         12                 And as you start to look at the

         13  impact on inner- city communities and their lack of

         14  voice, and their lack of input or connection to this

         15  process, it is borderline criminal.  And what I'm

         16  suggesting is that, yes, we do the studies, yes,

         17  that we start to look at the special populations

         18  that are affected.  And I would even ask that we,

         19  through this august body here in the Metropolitan

         20  Area begin to put the pressure on through its State

         21  Senate and Assembly delegation, the pressure on

         22  having GE foot the bill for the advisories and the

         23  outreach to the various multilingual populations

         24  that are impacted by this River downstate.  And I

         25  think that this is a very important step.
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          2                 And let me give you another important

          3  piece why they have won, because basically 90

          4  percent of the River will not be dredged.  Let me

          5  say this, 90 percent, see we have now been reduced

          6  to just dealing with hotspots, 90 percent of the

          7  River will not be dredged.  So in other words, where

          8  majority of the minority population and low- income

          9  population reside.  Their reality relative to the

         10  River is actually going to be held constant.  In

         11  essence in these communities it will be a no action,

         12  and all the more reason why New York City must stand

         13  up for these populations that have disenfranchised

         14  and who have truly had no voice in this process.

         15                 And with that I would like to close

         16  with this 10 minute video, and that will conclude -

         17   -

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Unfortunately,

         19  we --

         20                 MR. MAIR:  Two minute video, its two

         21  minutes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Let's make it,

         23  we will have copies, I guarantee we will watch it.

         24                 MR. MAIR:  Okay, with that I thank

         25  you for your time.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Thank you very

          3  much.  By the way, one of your representatives

          4  further north of you who is excellent on this issue,

          5  who is not intimidated by - -

          6                 MR. MAIR:  I could not hear you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  One of the

          8  representatives that you have who is not here, could

          9  not be here today, but who has been magnificent on

         10  this issue is Congressman Maurice Hinchey.

         11                 MR. MAIR:  That is true.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Who is the

         13  former Chairman of the Assembly Environmental

         14  Commission.

         15                 MR. MAIR:  Another little caveat,

         16  when you asked them about had they ever dredged

         17  before, the place that they talked about was, what

         18  they talk about in the Capital Region is Duck Pond.

         19  And please note that the Duck Pond that was dredged

         20  in the Capital Region happened to be right near the

         21  parcels and property owned by Congressman Jerry

         22  Solomon.  A little bit of interesting fact when they

         23  talk about where they did clean, it happened to be

         24  near one of the champions who said, leave it alone.

         25  So he made sure the property near him was cleaned
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          2  and dredged.  But when it comes to the rest of New

          3  York, so it is a very interesting piece of irony and

          4  caveat.  So I was glad that you asked had they ever

          5  dredged before.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Right.  By the

          7  way, that I personally know Peekskill very well, I

          8  spent four years in Peekskill.

          9                 MR. MAIR:  Well, thank you very much.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I went to

         11  school there.  Thank you very much, both of you.  I

         12  really appreciate your being here.

         13                 Next we have Tom McMahon I think we

         14  pronounce it.

         15                 MR. MCMAHON:  Thank you, Mr.

         16  Chairman.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  McMahon from

         18  the New York City Partnership.

         19                 MR. MCMAHON:  For the record, it is

         20  Thomas McMahon, the New York City Partnership,

         21  Chamber of Commerce, and I have a statement, but I

         22  think I would rather just take a minute or so to

         23  summarize it.  And essentially the Partnership's

         24  position on this particular issue is essentially the

         25  proposed resolution is not in the interest of New
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          2  York City from a business perspective, but also from

          3  an environmental perspective.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  How about from

          5  a health perspective?

          6                 MR. MCMAHON:  From a health

          7  perspective, as well.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  All right.  I

          9  thought I would add that.

         10                 MR. MCMAHON:  And we're not here to

         11  say that the City Council should not be involved in

         12  this issue, because it is outside its jurisdiction,

         13  but we would like to say that we believe the Council

         14  should not take a public position on an issue that

         15  has not been resolved.

         16                 The massive undertaking that the EPA

         17  has proposed in the dredging of the Upper Hudson

         18  River could, in fact, have a negative impact on the

         19  environment of the Hudson River going south all the

         20  way to New York City.  As much as you could make the

         21  argument that you will dredge how many millions of

         22  tons of earth without triggering suspension, it is

         23  beyond us, that is really possible.  And I think a

         24  study of dredging projects that have been done

         25  across the country should be examined by the Council
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          2  to really ascertain as to whether or not what has

          3  been proposed by EPA is possible.

          4                 I think the history of the discussion

          5  of dredging over the past 20 years leads one to

          6  conclude that there has been no winner, there is no

          7  clear cut answer that this is the right solution for

          8  this particular problem.  And with all the millions

          9  of dollars that have been spent studying the issue,

         10  we really believe that there hasn't been a

         11  conclusive answer.  And in fact what may be

         12  undertaken will negatively impact the Hudson.

         13                 I don't think our comments should be

         14  misconstrued in anyway, we're as concerned as you

         15  are about the environment of the Hudson and the

         16  future of the Hudson, but we would caution you not

         17  to move forward with something which on the merits

         18  is questionable at best.

         19                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Thank you, Mr.

         21  McMahon, we appreciate your being here, and we have

         22  a lot of people who, unfortunately, are waiting a

         23  long time, otherwise, we would have some very

         24  pointed questions for you, but don't take our lack

         25  of questioning you as acquiescence to your remarks.
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          2                 MR. MCMAHON:  Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Thank you.

          4  Robert J. Kafin from an organization known as C- E-

          5  A- S- E, CEASE.  Are there some other people from

          6  your organization that would like to join you? In

          7  the interest of time, and that would be Sharon Ruggi

          8  and Merrilyn Pulver and these are people from the

          9  Town of Fort Edward, Merrilyn Pulver being the Town

         10  Supervisor, which is Merrilyn Pulver?  Welcome.

         11                 MS. PULVER:  Thank you.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  We appreciate

         13  your being here, and we appreciate you all being

         14  here, thank you.  I appreciate that you came down,

         15  and also that you waited around to testify.

         16                 MR. KAFIN:  Thank you, Mr. Chairman

         17  and Councilman Gifford, and I'm sorry that is all

         18  the members of the Committee that are here, but I'm

         19  glad to supply written testimony so that the others

         20  can read it.

         21                 My name is Robert J. Kafin, and I am

         22  here what is now the afternoon to present the views

         23  of Washington County CEASE, Inc.  Cease urges the

         24  Committee not to approve Resolution 1721, because

         25  the resolution calls for an action of the federal
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          2  government, which would be very damaging to New York

          3  City.  As I will explain the dredging of the Upper

          4  Hudson River as proposed by the United States

          5  Environmental Protection Agency will have two very

          6  serious negative impacts on New York City.

          7                 First, it will result in the movement

          8  of contamination from the Upper River to New York

          9  Harbor.

         10                 Second, it will harm the ability of

         11  New York City to exercise its rights of Home Rule

         12  and participate in decision- making by the federal

         13  government that effects the lands and people of New

         14  York City.

         15                 I would like to start about telling

         16  you a little bit about Washington County CEASE,

         17  which we call CEASE.  CEASE is a neighborhood

         18  organization, which was formed over 20 years ago by

         19  ordinary people, working men and women, teachers,

         20  homemakers, shopkeepers, farmers and students.

         21  These ordinary people are very concerned that their

         22  neighborhoods in Upstate New York would be damaged

         23  by an ill advised major dredging and construction

         24  project in the Upper Hudson River, first proposed in

         25  the late 1970s by both the federal and state
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          2  government.

          3                 The people who formed CEASE were

          4  worried about protecting the property values of

          5  their homes, the quality of their neighborhoods and

          6  the safety of their children.  They have put up a

          7  valiant 20- year struggle against the idea of moving

          8  contaminated mud from the Hudson River into and

          9  through their communities.  They have been

         10  successful four times over these 20 years, and the

         11  dredging proposal has been rejected by the New York

         12  State Court of Appeals, by the New York State

         13  Industrial Hazardous Waste Siting Board, and twice

         14  by the USEPA, once in 1982 under the Clean Water Act

         15  and again in 1984 under the Superfund statute.

         16                 Now while CEASE is not a New York

         17  City based organization, CEASE appears before you

         18  today as many New York City neighborhood

         19  organizations have appeared in the past, and ask you

         20  to respect the interest of its members in the

         21  quality and tranquility of their neighborhoods.

         22                 Next, let me tell you why the

         23  proposed Hudson River dredging and construction

         24  project, which is bad for CEASE's members, is also

         25  bad for New York City and your constituents.
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          2                 First, EPA is going to make

          3  something, which is now our problem, your problem

          4  also.  No one wants PCBs or other chemicals out and

          5  around in their neighborhoods.  Today we have the

          6  situation where there are PCBs and other chemicals

          7  residing in the sediments at the bottom of the

          8  Hudson River about 180 miles from New York City.

          9  We're not happy that those chemicals are there, but

         10  they are there.  The issue is not whether the

         11  chemicals should be there or not, but what to do

         12  about them.  CEASE has lived with this situation for

         13  a long time.  Right now the chemicals rest quietly

         14  on the bottom of the River trapped in sediments.

         15  CEASE believes that the applicable principal in this

         16  situation should be one of the basic rules of

         17  medicine when confronting a sick patient, first do

         18  no harm.  Unfortunately, what the EPA proposes to do

         19  is to conduct a 10- to 20- year program of stirring

         20  up the sediments at the bottom of the River.  This

         21  we fear will result in the release to the

         22  environment of chemicals that are now sequestered.

         23  This is bad for CEASE and its members because they

         24  live the place here the stirring and releases will

         25  occur.  But, this is also bad for New York City
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          2  because New York City is the downstream recipient of

          3  anything that gets stirred up in the Upper Hudson

          4  River.

          5                 We have looked at other dredging

          6  project in other rivers.  You should look at these

          7  dredging projects, because one of the things that we

          8  have learned is that dredging mobilizes

          9  contamination in rivers, and we believe that the EPA

         10  project will mobilize a lot of PCBs and send them

         11  into the Lower River in the direction of New York

         12  City.  We think that a ton or more of PCBs will be

         13  put into motion and transported in the direction of

         14  Riverdale, Innwood, West Harlem, Riverside Park,

         15  Clinton, Chelsea, the West Village, Battery Park

         16  City and New York Harbor.  This cannot be good for

         17  New York City.  EPA has spent so much time and so

         18  much money studying the mud in the Upper Hudson

         19  River that it has lost its perspective and seems to

         20  believe that it must perform surgery on the patient

         21  regardless of the harm that this may cause both in

         22  CEASE region as well as in the Lower River adjacent

         23  to New York City.  To encourage EPA in this harmful

         24  project by passing Resolution 1721, would be a

         25  mistake for the City.
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          2                 The second major reason why the EPA

          3  project will be bad for New York City deals with

          4  issues of Home Rule and intergovernmental relations.

          5    You do not need to tell me how badly New York City

          6  sometimes fares at the hands of the federal and

          7  state governments when they undertake actions

          8  without meaningfully consulting with Community

          9  Boards, the City Council, the Mayor and interested

         10  citizens of the City, and without seeking community

         11  acceptance of a federal government project.

         12  Encouraging EPA to ride roughshod over the wishes of

         13  local governments and without paying any attention

         14  to local zoning, or without conducting a proper

         15  environmental impact statement is also a very bad

         16  thing. While today it may only be to the detriment

         17  of people who live 200 miles from here, tomorrow it

         18  may be your constituents and this City that will be

         19  the victim of high- handed federal action, which

         20  ignores the wishes of neighborhoods.  Every town,

         21  village and county near where the dredging is

         22  proposed is in opposition.  Every one of those local

         23  governments has complained that it has not been

         24  adequately consulted in the process.  The National

         25  Academy of Science earlier this year took a specific
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          2  look at how EPA has dealt with communities where

          3  CEASE's members live.  You should read the report

          4  yourself because it has many lessons for New York

          5  City, which must be absorbed before the City Council

          6  endorses what EPA proposes to do to the Hudson

          7  River.

          8                 As I reach the end of my remarks, let

          9  me just read some of the quotes from the independent

         10  and highly respected National Academy of Sciences.

         11                  "Community involvement was

         12  unsuccessful."

         13                  "The communities along the Hudson

         14  River are not a part of any active decision- making

         15  processes."

         16                  "The Hudson River community

         17  involvement process used by EPA does not appear to

         18  allow community involvement in any decision- making

         19  or even problem- formulation phases and does not

         20  appear to be responsive to community needs and

         21  frustrations."

         22                 CEASE knows that New York City itself

         23  has been the victim of high- handed EPA and other

         24  federal government decisions, made without

         25  meaningful local involvement, be it requirements for
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          2  the City to spend billions of dollars on water

          3  filtration facilities or the imposition of other

          4  unfunded mandates.

          5                 The City Council cannot sign on to an

          6  expensive and disruptive EPA scheme foisted on

          7  someone else's community without increasing the risk

          8  that the next time EPA will ignore the City Council

          9  and the people of the City of New York when it wants

         10  to impose some burdensome project or responsibility

         11  on the City without considering local government and

         12  neighborhood concerns in the balance, and involving

         13  in the decision- making processes the communities to

         14  be most immediately affected.

         15                 For the reasons I have stated CEASE

         16  urges the Committee not to approve Resolution 1721

         17  or do anything else that supports dredging, which

         18  will move contamination in the direction of the

         19  City, and we urge you not to endorse an EPA

         20  decision- making process which ignores the rights of

         21  local governments to a meaningful role in federal

         22  government decision- making impacting their

         23  communities.

         24                 I'm now going to turn the mic over to

         25  my colleagues.
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          2                 MS. PULVER:  I would like to thank

          3  you for welcoming me, and I too, would like to

          4  welcome you to my community.  It is a much smaller

          5  community than New York City.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Most places

          7  are.

          8                 MS. PULVER:  But it is beautiful, and

          9  we would very much like to have you come and see

         10  just exactly what we are talking about, and why we

         11  want to protect our community.  And we came because

         12  we wanted to put a face on those Upper River

         13  communities that will be dramatically impacted by

         14  what happens with EPA's decision.

         15                 I am also a member of CEASE, the

         16  grassroots group of hundreds of citizens who have

         17  been opposed to dredging in the Upper Hudson since

         18  1980.  And because I have been opposed to dredging

         19  since 1980, you have to wonder why, and I will tell

         20  you that Site 10, the original site that DEC

         21  attempted to put a pilot project of PCBs from the

         22  Hudson River was adjacent to my dairy farm.  That is

         23  the reason why I became involved in this battle.  I

         24  was a young mother, I had three small children, we

         25  had a dairy farm, it was our home, it was our way of
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          2  life that was being threatened.  And that is why I

          3  stood up and fought.  And we won, we won at all

          4  levels of the State Court system.  And that was a

          5  mighty fine thing for us to do.  It was quite

          6  amazing when you think about it, those things don't

          7  happen very often.

          8                 In 1984, EPA did make the decision of

          9  no action to leave the river alone, and consequently

         10  to that DEC looked at another site and that happened

         11  to be Mrs. Ruggi's farm.  And this is not part of

         12  your comments here, but I think it is important for

         13  you to understand why Mrs. Ruggi and I are here, and

         14  why we are now the leaders of our community, it is

         15  because of this long fought battle.

         16                 I will proceed with the rest of my

         17  comments.  First, allow me to offer some historical

         18  perspective to this issue.  We, as residents of the

         19  Upper Hudson had developed an intense distrust of

         20  EPA.  And, I think as I explain this to you, it is

         21  for a good reason.

         22                 We have been lied to by EPA on more

         23  than one occasion.  In 1997, Congressman Gerald

         24  Solomon uncovered a secret landfill siting study

         25  that EPA conducted.  It turns out that EPA
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          2  representatives secretly traveled around Washington

          3  County identifying ideal sites to dump the hazardous

          4  waste they planned to dredge from the Hudson.

          5                 There are some problems with that as

          6  I see it:

          7                 First, EPA insisted all along that

          8  they had no plans to dredge the Hudson.

          9                 Secondly, until they were finally

         10  forced to fess up, EPA insisted that the study never

         11  took place.

         12                 When they finally admitted they were

         13  lying, they promised to never let that kind of thing

         14  happen again.  I sat there and listened as the EPA

         15  assured us they would be extremely open in the

         16  future.

         17                 Now, let's fast forward to February

         18  of this year, just a month and a half ago, through a

         19  Freedom of Information Request, we found that EPA

         20  had secretly targeted 12 or 13 communities for ideal

         21  locations to build 15 to 30 acres sludge processing

         22  plants.

         23                 EPA's response when confronted about

         24  their most recent lie:  "It wasn't secret and there

         25  could be 12 or 13 communities we're looking at."
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          2  Now that is a really reassuring to us people on the

          3  Upper River.

          4                 If it wasn't a secret, why didn't

          5  they include it in their 4,000 page feasibility

          6  study?  Come on EPA, level with us. Don't just pay

          7  us lip service by saying you will be extremely open,

          8  but let us take a look at what you have gathered

          9  related to this project.

         10                 Despite our continual requests to be

         11  heard and included, EPA has turned a deaf ear to the

         12  citizens.  The recent NAS report criticizes EPA's

         13  Community Involvement Process as unsuccessful

         14  reaffirming what we have known all along.

         15                 And there is the issue of what this

         16  EPA proposal means to the residents of the Upper

         17  Hudson, it means non- stop, noisy, smelly,

         18  dangerous, destructive dredging, six days a week. It

         19  means the destruction of 17 miles of Upper Hudson

         20  shoreline.  It means gouging out 80,000 pounds of

         21  river bottom for every one pound of PCBs collected.

         22  It means a fleet of 25 to 30 barges clogging the

         23  River, virtually shutting it down to tourist and

         24  other traffic. It means ten miles of underwater

         25  pipeline to pump contaminated mud to shore, and no
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          2  plan to deal with a possible rupture of that

          3  pipeline.

          4                 And there are other very serious

          5  issues that EPA fails to address.  For example, how

          6  do they plan to restore the more than 500 acres of

          7  living, thriving river bottom that dredging will

          8  destroy?  How about how will EPA accomplish this

          9  project in five years, when they have never been

         10  able to do anything near this size before?  And some

         11  experts say it may take much longer.

         12                 It means dropping property values and

         13  a very serious, negative impact.  In his official

         14  comments to EPA, Don Cummings, the Chairman of the

         15  Washington County Board of Supervisors, and my

         16  colleague, said, "This project could destroy the

         17  River at a time when it is a site of tremendous

         18  economic growth and a strong environmental asset to

         19  the communities along its banks."

         20                 EPA claims this goal is to lower PCB

         21  levels in fish so a half- pound serving can be eaten

         22  once a month.  Even with their dredging project, EPA

         23  estimates it will take more than 67 years to do

         24  that.  Why disrupt our lives and our livelihoods if

         25  it is going to accomplish the same thing as not
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          2  dredging?

          3                 Then there is the issue of risk.

          4  They say if we voluntarily eat an extraordinary

          5  amount of Hudson River fish, 1,000 pounds over 40

          6  years we are at a slightly greater risk of cancer.

          7  But, according to the National Cancer Institute,

          8  there is no evidence of a link between PCBs and

          9  cancer in humans.  Also, EPA fails to mention that

         10  it is illegal to eat fish caught in the Upper

         11  Hudson.  So, the entire EPA dredging proposal is

         12  predicated on protecting people from something that

         13  is illegal to do.

         14                 EPA tried lamelessly to appease us by

         15  saying final disposal would take place elsewhere.

         16  But, they haven't said where elsewhere is. How would

         17  you feel if elsewhere was New York City? We oppose

         18  dredging and dumping anywhere, it's not necessary,

         19  it's destructive to our environment and communities.

         20    It's the wrong way to continue the cleanup.

         21                 EPA's whole plan belies the notion

         22  that the government is here to help.

         23                 I urge you, the members of the New

         24  York City Council Committee on Environmental

         25  Protection to please consider the citizens of the

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            240

          1  COMMITTEE ON ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

          2  Upper Hudson.

          3                 And I thank you for allowing me to

          4  speak.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Thank you very

          6  much, Ms. Pulver, I appreciate your being here.  Do

          7  you want to testify?

          8                 MS. RUGGI:  Yes, please.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Okay, please

         10  identify, we don't have a statement from you, do we?

         11                 MS. RUGGI:  Excuse me?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Do we have a

         13  statement from her?

         14                 MS. RUGGI:  I have not submitted my

         15  statement.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Okay.

         17                 MS. RUGGI:  I failed to bring it with

         18  me, I will make sure that you get it.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  You can always

         20  send it to us, we appreciate it.  We would like to

         21  make it part of the record. But continue to testify.

         22                 MS. RUGGI:  That is all right.  My

         23  name is Sharon Ruggi, and I am the Deputy Town

         24  Supervisor in the Town of Fort Edward, Washington

         25  County, and I have spent the better part of the last
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          2  20 years fighting for a cleaner Hudson, but without

          3  dredging. For the last 10 years I have been a member

          4  of EPA's Environmental Liaison Committee, and I do

          5  thank you for giving me the opportunity to speak

          6  with you and thank you for understanding that the

          7  issue of dredging the Hudson is not just about EPA

          8  and General Electric. There is another often

          9  forgotten group in this battle, the people of the

         10  Upper Hudson who stand to lose the most if EPA's

         11  proposal is allowed to move forward.

         12                 I urge you to please consider a very

         13  few important points before taking a stand on EPA's

         14  proposal to dredge the Hudson River.  More than

         15  sixty communities of the Upper Hudson have

         16  resoundedly rejected EPA's proposal to dredge the

         17  Hudson.  These are communities that have followed

         18  this issue very closely and evaluated every aspect

         19  of the EPA proposal.  I ask you to please consider

         20  us, your neighbors to the north before endorsing a

         21  proposal that could have very serious, negative

         22  impacts on all of us, including the residents of

         23  this fine city.

         24                 Please allow me to spell out how this

         25  EPA project would hurt all of us.  The first issue
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          2  that I have discussed here is the resuspension, and

          3  I think that you have probably heard about it and

          4  now grasp what will result with suspension if this

          5  dredge project goes forward.

          6                 Dredging the Upper Hudson will

          7  destroy nearly 100 acres of underwater plant life,

          8  which now serves as a natural filter that cleans the

          9  water.  This may degrade the water quality of the

         10  Lower Hudson by releasing chemicals and micro-

         11  organisms lodged in river sediments.  For example,

         12  the release of nitrogen and phosphorous during

         13  dredging will promote the growth of algae and

         14  nuisance species downstream.

         15                 Most of the PCBs found in the fish in

         16  the estuary originate from sources in the Lower

         17  Hudson River, not the Upper Hudson.  Independent

         18  scientist conclude that these sources are

         19  responsible for as much as 80 percent of the PCBs in

         20  the Lower River.  That statistic comes from Chill

         21  Road in his Transport and Fate of Particle

         22  Associated Contaminants in the Hudson River Basin.

         23                 EPA's plan will result in only a

         24  small reduction in PCBs that flow from the Upper

         25  River to the Lower River over the Troy Dam.  This
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          2  reduction becomes truly insignificant considering

          3  unchecked sources of PCBs in the Lower Hudson will

          4  continue to contaminate the River and the fish.

          5  EPA's plan fails to detail how it intends to assure

          6  that the water supply will be kept safe for

          7  communities, such as Poughkeepsie or Waterford,

          8  which take their drinking water from the Hudson.

          9                 To significantly reduce PCBs in fish

         10  in the Lower Hudson River it will be necessary to

         11  identify and control the source of those PCBs in the

         12  Lower Hudson River.  Dredging the River more than

         13  200 miles to the north will provide little benefit

         14  to the Lower Hudson River.

         15                 I urge you to consider all these

         16  things and consider that the opposition to the EPA

         17  plan is overwhelming.  I have provided packets of

         18  information to you and included in there is a list

         19  of all the communities who have passed by resolution

         20  their opposition to a dredged project.

         21                 I have also provided to you the

         22  resuspension fact sheet put together by us in the

         23  Town of Fort Edward.

         24                 I have also included from the

         25  feasibility study, that is EPA's feasibility study,
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          2  the information that tells you that what is proposed

          3  here is the use of mechanical dredge.  I know that

          4  there are those groups who want to have you believe

          5  that there is some new clean dredging technology out

          6  there and that is what will be used in the Hudson

          7  River.  Not so.  What is proposed to be used here is

          8  the mechanical dredge, no different from the dredge

          9  that has been in use for years and years.

         10                 I have also provided to you, again,

         11  from the feasibility study a comparison of the

         12  recent dredged sites, and the reason that I included

         13  that is because I think you will quickly see there

         14  have been major problems at all of these sites.  The

         15  use of this mechanical dredge when the bucket grabs

         16  onto large items, such as logs or stones, that

         17  closed bucket cannot close, so when it comes up,

         18  guess what happens to the sediments that have just

         19  been ripped from the river bottom?  They go into the

         20  water column, and you will be seeing those PCBs here

         21  in New York City.

         22                 I have also included for you an

         23  article from the Baltimore Sun, they are looking at

         24  the issue of whether or not to dredge the Elizabeth

         25  River.  And in there, there is a quote from Robert
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          2  M. Summers, who is a toxin expert with the Maryland

          3  Department of the Environment, and he says that

          4  often it is better to cover the sediment with thick

          5  layers of clean sand or do nothing and let new

          6  sediments coming into the River cover the old.  He

          7  goes onto say that assuming the source of

          8  contamination has been stopped, the natural

          9  sediments over time cover the contamination. This is

         10  a toxin expert dealing with exactly the same issue

         11  that we are dealing with here in the Hudson River.

         12                 I also included for you an article

         13  from the Wall Street Journal where the National

         14  Cancer Institute says that there is absolutely no

         15  cancer link to those people who consume Hudson River

         16  fish and their risk of developing cancer.

         17                 I guess finally I want to say that

         18  for the very first time ever, Andy, Merrilyn and I

         19  agree on something.  When he said that it is the

         20  health of the people living along the Hudson that

         21  must be paramount here.  I call on EPA to do that

         22  health study and do it now during the reassessment.

         23  We have nothing to hide, I feel confident that there

         24  would be no ill health affects found, but I am

         25  willing to have that study done and to abide by the
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          2  results of that study.  We need to look at reality

          3  in this situation, and the reality of the situation

          4  is that I live in the community that has been the

          5  most exposed to PCBs, the very most of any community

          6  in the United States, and what has happened,

          7  nothing, absolutely nothing.  We have a community

          8  that is as healthy as any other.

          9                 I will just quickly finish up by

         10  pointing out that I just recently read of a

         11  situation in the Bay of Biscane, Florida, and the

         12  reason that I bring this to your attention is that

         13  there was sediment, contaminated sediment being, it

         14  was actually untreated sewer matter that was being

         15  piped when a barge ripped the pipeline apart.  What

         16  is proposed for the Hudson River is 10 miles of

         17  piping.  It is not a figment of our imagination that

         18  that underwater piping could very well be ruptured

         19  at some point during this project.  Guess where that

         20  sediment would go?

         21                 I do call upon you to please consider

         22  all of this information when you consider the

         23  resolution before you, and I thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I want to thank

         25  all of you, and I hope you have a pleasant trip
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          2  back, we appreciate it.  I think your testimony was

          3  excellent, we listened to every word you said, we're

          4  going to read your documents, and if you could send

          5  us a copy of your statement, we would appreciate it.

          6                 MS. RUGGI:  I certainly shall.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Once again,

          8  thank you, and I hope we have an opportunity to get

          9  up to Fort Edward.

         10                 MR. KAFIN:  Come visit us, thank you

         11  very much for the opportunity.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I would love to

         13  and I understand it is a lovely community, and we're

         14  always glad to have you come down.  And it's nice to

         15  have people who care about Downstate.  Some of us

         16  really care about Upstate as well.  I'm a member of

         17  the Watershed Partnership Council and we have been

         18  very much involved in the watershed issues in

         19  Upstate New York.  And having gone to school

         20  Upstate, even further up than you, well, actually to

         21  the west of you, in Geneva, New York, and in Ethica,

         22  so I know the area.  So thank you very much, I

         23  appreciate you're being here, and have a very

         24  pleasant trip home.

         25                 MS. PULVER:  Thank you.
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          2                 Ms. Ruggi:  Thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I enjoyed your

          4  testimony. Next we have Rich Schiafo from Scenic

          5  Hudson.  Samara Swanson, Carlos Perdia, Maria

          6  Trieste,  Trieste, I guess.

          7                 MS. TRIESTE:  Yes, it's close enough.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Trieste, right,

          9  like City of Trieste, I can't figure it out, is it

         10  in Italy or Yugoslavia now?

         11                 MS. TRIESTE:  Italy.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Back and forth.

         13  And representatives of the Local Movement, and Ernie

         14  Whaler.

         15                 MS. TRIESTE:  Samara Swanson and

         16  Carlos Perdia were unable to join us today.  So it

         17  is just going to be a smaller group.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Okay, thank you

         19  very much, we appreciate it.  But tell them we know

         20  them well and we appreciate them.

         21                 While you're sitting down you know

         22  the history of Trieste is one that goes back and

         23  forth, but you know the Mayor of the City of New

         24  York spent some time there.  As a matter of fact his

         25  mother was born in Trieste, LaGuardia.  Mayor
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          2  LaGuardia's mother was born in Trieste, - -

          3                 MS. TRIESTE:  I hear it's beautiful.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS: - -  and his

          5  father who is Italian, LaGuardia was born in New

          6  York, moved back to Trieste where he died, he was in

          7  Trieste.  And he died of, I hate to tell you, these

          8  are little history lessons, he died of food

          9  poisoning from eating, during the Spanish American

         10  War of eating contaminated meat.

         11                 MS. TRIESTE:  Contaminated meat?

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Meat.  He was a

         13  musician in the United States Army and he came over,

         14  and he got sick and he eventually died in Trieste.

         15                 MS. TRIESTE: That is sad.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  What?

         17                 MS. TRIESTE:  He was from Trieste,

         18  right?

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  No, he was not

         20  from Trieste.

         21                 MS. TRIESTE:  Oh.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  LaGuardia's

         23  mother.

         24                 MS. TRIESTE:  His mother.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Who happened to
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          2  be Jewish, from a common Jewish family in Trieste.

          3  It's a little history of LaGuardia.

          4                 MS. TRIESTE:  I'm confused.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  One of our most

          6  favorite Mayors, so we really enjoy the history of

          7  it.  But that is what I think of whenever I think of

          8  Trieste.  But I think it is now Yugoslavia, isn't

          9  it?

         10                 MS. TRIESTE:  No, I think Trieste is

         11  in Italy now.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  It's still

         13  there?

         14                 MS. TRIESTE:  Oh, yeah.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  It goes back

         16  and forth all the time.

         17                 MS. TRIESTE:  But it is in Italy.

         18  Yes, it goes back and forth.  I like to claim it is

         19  in Italy because I hear it so beautiful and it's my

         20  name sake, so.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  All right,

         22  thank you very much.  Welcome and let you yourselves

         23  choose who is going to go first, and we welcome your

         24  testimony.  And just all that we ask you is whoever

         25  speaks, identify themselves first?
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          2                 MR. WHALE:  Thank you very much.  My

          3  name is Ernie Whale, and I'm the Business Manager

          4  and President of Local 25 Operating Engineers and

          5  also Vice- President of Maritime Trades Department,

          6  and I'm here to speak on behalf of organized labor

          7  and the Dredging Association.  And I would just like

          8  to address and thank you for the invitation to

          9  attend.  We don't often get invitations to attend

         10  these meetings, and it is an opportunity for us to

         11  express our views about current dredging practices.

         12                 There are a couple of subjects that

         13  we would like to cover today.  I'm sorry.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Do you have a

         15  written statement?

         16                 MR. WHALE:  No, I do not.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Well will you

         18  submit one to us, we would appreciate it?

         19                 MR. WHALE:  Absolutely, I sure will.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  But

         21  nevertheless we will listen to you even without a

         22  written statement.

         23                 MR. WHALE:  I appreciate that, my

         24  remarks are very brief, but I think you will find

         25  them interesting.
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          2                 As I said we have 85 percent of our

          3  present membership are experienced dredge personnel,

          4  the other 15 percent we handle tugboat work and also

          5  shore work and we have an active apprentice program

          6  through Local 25.  This I'm presenting also on

          7  behalf of Local 106 out of Albany, New York, after

          8  speaking with our Business Manager yesterday, we

          9  felt that it was necessary to show a presence at

         10  this meeting.

         11                 There is a few things that I would

         12  like to clear up in regards to some of the comments

         13  made earlier today.  We have been involved with

         14  dredging for 45 years.  As I said, Local 25 is the

         15  only Marine Division.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  You don't look

         17  that old.

         18                 MR. WHALE:  No, Sir.  I'm only 46,

         19  but I have been 21 years with this industry and very

         20  proud of it.  Local 25 covers the entire Eastern

         21  Seaboard.  We cover 22 states, we actually have

         22  dredging projects going on in the following areas:

         23                 Up in the Boston area we have several

         24  projects ongoing.  BIW, which is a Bath Iron Works,

         25  KBK, as you're all familiar with, 2, 3, and 4; Port
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          2  Elizabeth, New Jersey; Cart Mill Island, Popa

          3  Island, Maryland, and Whaton's Creek; Horoton

          4  (phonetic), North Carolina; Wilmington, North

          5  Carolina; Baldhead, North Carolina; Charleston,

          6  South Carolina; Cape Canaveral, and ongoing projects

          7  in Long Island, all of these are dear to our heart,

          8  and they're all are being done and they're being

          9  done extremely environmentally conscious and

         10  environmentally sound.

         11                 The reason I want to stress that is

         12  that I sense from this meeting that people doubt the

         13  ability of the dredging industry to do what they

         14  have to do, and that is not the case.  We have

         15  qualified personnel move this forward, we have been

         16  doing it for a long time.  And when they tell us

         17  they have not stepped up, it insults me, to know

         18  that what we can do with this industry, what has

         19  come up and what has come out of it.

         20                 In regards to hydraulic dredging,

         21  when I hear about pipes being ruptured and I hear

         22  about discharges and things, sure, it can happen,

         23  but that is why we have personnel on the field to

         24  take care of that, monitor that constantly, monitor

         25  the flow of the material, where it goes, how it is
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          2  handling, and that is very important to us and dear

          3  to our heart.

          4                 We're no, the biggest misnomer that I

          5  find with dredge personnel, is we never put it

          6  there, we're in charge of taking it out and we do it

          7  very well.  When we talked about silts and

          8  sedimentation and flow of material, the latest craze

          9  is tremidity (phonetic) curtains.  Everyone talks

         10  about silt containment, there is no better product

         11  than the tremidity curtain that is being used right

         12  now.  It will stop the most minuscule parts of

         13  material you could ever imagine.  And that is what

         14  we're trying to encourage.

         15                 In this particular project, which

         16  unfortunately I have to admit, has not come up and

         17  has not really bit us yet because we have not got a

         18  chance to see all the specs, but we understand that

         19  the conditions where the work will be performed will

         20  be ideal for containing the material both in its

         21  present form and in any movement down river.

         22                 We also have mechanical dredging,

         23  when they talk about mechanical dredging everyone

         24  seems to overlook the fact that in the last five

         25  years there has been the increased in use of an
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          2  environmental bucket, which guarantees full

          3  containment of the material being dredged.  If that

          4  bucket is used properly, when they talk about if you

          5  see videos of dredge material coming out of the

          6  water, you are always going to see water and spill

          7  off of it.  An environmental bucket comes up clean,

          8  the water coming out of it is clean material around

          9  the sediment that has been picked up in the bucket.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  There you go.

         11                 MR. WHALE:  One of the reasons I also

         12  would like to talk very briefly on is I'm sure there

         13  is a lot of folks in the room are aware of a recent

         14  PCB Program that has been in New Bedford,

         15  Massachusetts, Local 25 manned that project with the

         16  cooperative effort of Beam Environmental and Foster

         17  Wheeler.  That product was so successful that Foster

         18  Wheeler is calling for bids this summer for a full

         19  PCB Removal Project, and I would recommend if you

         20  would be interested, we could help you receive

         21  copies of those studies.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Yes, I would be

         23  interested.

         24                 MR. WHALE: Okay.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  This is a big
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          2  issue.

          3                 MR. WHALE:  Yes, Sir, very much so.

          4  In that particular project, Beam came up again

          5  talking about innovative work, they created a small

          6  backhoe dredge, similar to the ones that are being

          7  used on the KBK Project now in a much smaller scale.

          8  Specifically and especially outfit in design to take

          9  care of the particular PCB problem, again, with an

         10  environmental friendly and safe bucket.      They

         11  dewatered, they're planning to do a two- year

         12  process of dewatering, containing and possibly

         13  shipping out the material.

         14                 What I would like to finish with if

         15  the, our opinion, if the PCBs are left in the Hudson

         16  River the natural scaring of the River will cause

         17  the hotspots to migrate down river. There is no

         18  doubt in our opinion that if the materials are left

         19  in the current state, I have heard some different

         20  testimonies today about what will happen to that

         21  material, it will not go away on its own.  Don't let

         22  anybody fool you, it never has, it never will, it

         23  does need to be removed.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Upon what do

         25  you base that testimony?
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          2                 MR. WHALE:  On everything that we

          3  have seen in all studies.  I also have a Degree in

          4  Engineering, so I'm very comfortable with talking

          5  about where we are with PCBs remediation, and

          6  everything that we have seen, that there is no half-

          7  life, that there is no way that PCBs are going to

          8  migrate themselves out of soil.  In a borrowed pit,

          9  as we used in the HAR Resource Center in the Sandy

         10  Hook area, you are capping material that has been

         11  buried at a depth of well over 100 feet.  When we're

         12  talking about the Hudson River, it is impossible, it

         13  is literally impossible to cap a material in a title

         14  flow or in a stationary area that that is in. You

         15  are going to solve the problem, but all you're doing

         16  is going to be destroying the same beds, the same

         17  things that I have heard testimony about acting as a

         18  filtration process.  Either eliminate the product,

         19  as you talk about damage to the bottom and damaged

         20  to these beds, there is going to be incidental

         21  damage, it's unavoidable when you're dredging

         22  material out, we all know that. We know there is

         23  going to be problems with dewatering and also the

         24  removal and the remediation of this particular

         25  product.
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          2                 But from everything that we have seen

          3  and heard, it all points to the fact that it can be

          4  done, and I want to just stress again, that Local 25

          5  and the Operating Engineers through cooperative

          6  effort is prepared to guarantee that we will have

          7  the qualified personnel help you with that.  And I

          8  would like to close on that, and I do apologize, I

          9  do have to leave, I have a meeting at five o'clock

         10  in New Jersey, and I appreciate your time.

         11                 Thank you very much.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Thank you.  Any

         13  materials you can send us with respect to your

         14  operation, the way it is done and the scientific

         15  materials to show that the PCBs will go downstream.

         16                 MR. WHALE:  Absolutely.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Would be

         18  appreciated because that is a big issue here.  Thank

         19  you very much.

         20                 MR. WHALE:  Thank you.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Next, who is

         22  next, the young lady from Poughkeepsie, New York,

         23  living on Vassar Street.

         24                 MS. TRIESTE:  Well actually I'm here

         25  to talk about some up River issues.  My name is
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          2  Marion Trieste.  I live in Schuylerville, New York.

          3  I'm here representing Scenic Hudson.  I was hired as

          4  a public educator to run a public information effort

          5  along the Upper Hudson River communities.  And I

          6  think it is really critical, I'm here to talk about

          7  public involvement, since we're in the process here,

          8  which involves public input.  And I have had over 10

          9  years of experience working on Superfund sites

         10  nationwide, and I have never experienced anything

         11  like what we're experiencing in the up River

         12  communities.

         13                 We have seriously confused public and

         14  we owe that to an incredibly well organized public

         15  relations campaign set forth by GE in May of last

         16  year, no of this year, actually, last year.  It

         17  seems so long ago.  The point is that I'm deeply

         18  concerned that the up River residents that want the

         19  River cleaned are not being heard, they cannot be

         20  heard.  Most of the individuals that you see before

         21  you are in GE ads, Merrilyn Pulver and Sharon Ruggi

         22  are in most of General Electric's commercials.  We

         23  have commercials going on throughout the Upper

         24  Hudson continuously, every hour on the hour you will

         25  see a full sixty- minute commercial.
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          2                 I'm so glad Andre Mele brought in the

          3  samples of newspaper ads, we're getting double-

          4  sided, full page ads in all of our papers.  And what

          5  concerns me most is that the public is getting

          6  incredibly strong images of what dredging is in a

          7  perception of a corporation that is, not in

          8  actuality.  I was with a bunch of union people last

          9  night and dredging operators who were given me

         10  hands- on expertise on dredging technology, which I

         11  really wish I could share with the general public,

         12  the way the corporation in charge of supposedly

         13  responsible for the cleanup can do, but we can't, we

         14  don't have the ability to educate the public.  And

         15  public has an image of what dredging is and may be

         16  doing to our environment if we let it go forward,

         17  and that is not necessarily the true image.

         18                 I'm also here to tell you that to

         19  give you a very fine example of a community that is

         20  in favor of cleaning out the Hudson, it's

         21  particularly in the Champlain Canal, which is the

         22  River highway.  We have the Village of Fort Edward

         23  that voted unanimously to clean the canal from Lock

         24  7 up through the Fort Edward Yacht Basin.  They did

         25  this on December 4th, I submitted a copy of that
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          2  resolution.  Because of the economic concerns for up

          3  River community that if do not clean the PCB

          4  contaminated sediments from our canal, we will end

          5  up shutting down this canal.

          6                 Right now we have, by law, a 12- foot

          7  depth that should be maintained throughout the New

          8  York State Canal System, and it gets as low three to

          9  five feet in Fort Edward, because of the fact that

         10  we have not been able to dredge, navigationally

         11  dredge the canal since the mid- 1970s due to the PCB

         12  contamination. These communities up River, I'm

         13  sorry, they're suffering because the PCBs are

         14  devastating.  If you go to Schuylerville where I

         15  live, up north through Fort Edward, Hudson Falls,

         16  these communities are hurting communities, and we

         17  really need to consider what is at stake here, and

         18  if we do not clean the sediments that are

         19  contaminated in the Hudson River, we have an

         20  opportunity here with 10 years of study and Peer

         21  Review, independent scientists that are saying we

         22  can do this safely, and the economic gains that can

         23  be had by the dredging project in and of itself, and

         24  the long- term gains of property values increasing.

         25  And we have seen this happen in other wonderfully,
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          2  successful sites, like Cumberland Bay, for example,

          3  which is something the public isn't hearing about.

          4                 The general public doesn't know that

          5  there is such a thing as a hydraulic dredge either,

          6  which is one of the alternatives for removing these

          7  sediments from the Hudson River. So I'm just here to

          8  set the record straight, that there are many

          9  individuals, and many community groups that are not

         10  represented by the General Electric ads, that are

         11  certainly in favor of cleaning this River.  And the

         12  EPA process, by the way, I might add I'm Co Chair of

         13  their Environmental Liaison Group, and I think that

         14  the EPA process has taken enormous strides in trying

         15  to organize and educate communities up River.  They

         16  have met mostly up River to help and assist with the

         17  most affected residents.  But it just seems that

         18  there is a lot of tension, a lot of distrust, and a

         19  lot of the information that we now have is falling

         20  on deaf ears.

         21                 So it is unfortunate, but I'm here to

         22  just say that we have an opportunity, there are up

         23  River residents that agree. And the other thing, I

         24  want to make another point to just get away from

         25  community involvement for one minute, is the public
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          2  health aspect of this, we're talking about non-

          3  cancer health risks, because this is what I present

          4  to people, so they understand the implications of

          5  PCBs.  And I heard the Doctor from GE identify the

          6  toxicity is defined by dose, and we have really got

          7  to consider our children and our fetuses.  PCBs have

          8  been known to travel from a woman's uterus when she

          9  is pregnant directly to the fetus.  And also one of

         10  the major forms of excreting PCBs from our fatty

         11  tissues is through breast milk, so it goes directly

         12  to our infants who are having developing nervous

         13  system and brains, and this is why we have those

         14  other very dramatic affects, and I just wanted to

         15  make that point clear, and that is why women of

         16  childbearing age and children are not to eat any

         17  fish, and it's a big concern for our environmental

         18  justice communities.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  We have in

         20  front of us this resolution that you gave us.

         21                 MS. TRIESTE:  Yes.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Of Fort Edward,

         23  is that the same as the Town of Fort Edward?

         24                 MS. TRIESTE:  It's the village within

         25  the Town of Fort Edward.  Merrilyn Pulver is the
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          2  Town Supervisor, and the village within her Town

          3  they voted.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  So they are at

          5  odds with each other?

          6                 MS. TRIESTE:  Yes, I would say so.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Because she is

          8  against the dredging.

          9                 MS. TRIESTE:  Very much against

         10  dredging, and unfortunately, the economic value is

         11  something these people see as something has to be

         12  done in order to enhance the community's growth.

         13  Yet, the Town Supervisor is opposed.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I just wanted

         15  to clear that up.

         16                 MS. TRIESTE:  Yes.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Thank you very

         18  much.  I appreciate you being here.  Sir.

         19                 MR. SCHIAFO:  Hi, my name is Rich

         20  Schiafo.  I'm with Scenic Hudson as well, I'm the

         21  Environmental Project Manager.  And I have written,

         22  submitted testimony which is primarily talks about

         23  our research on dredging, but if you would indulge

         24  me for a minute, I do want to just respond to some

         25  other things that I have heard, particularly from
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          2  the panel from General Electric.  And I know this

          3  isn't a hearing about the health impacts, but since

          4  they're basically - -

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Well it

          6  certainly is.

          7                 MR. SCHIAFO:  Well, it is in part.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  It's a holistic

          9  view of this thing.

         10                 MR. SCHIAFO:  And there was a lot of

         11  reference and their study.  And the reading of their

         12  study, one of the definitive conclusions is how they

         13  substantiate the risks to human health and wildlife,

         14  particularly, as Marion just mentioned, prenatal

         15  exposure, the cancer risks.  It also points, the

         16  Kimbro Study that GE uses to tell the fact that

         17  there are no health risks, the NAS found to be weak.

         18    There has been a tremendous amount of other

         19  criticism, Mr. Ramsey cited one letter, there were

         20  several other letters that were highly critical.

         21  Andre Mele, very eloquently cited some of those

         22  problems with that study, so it sure is not the be

         23  all and end all in the definitiveness this Kimbro

         24  Study in terms of the health impacts of PCBs.

         25                 The fact is that it is not changing
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          2  how they're classified at all they're still

          3  classified as probably human carcinogen and known

          4  animal carcinogens.  And as Marion, again, mentioned

          5  some of the non- cancer health effects are even of

          6  greater concern.

          7                 Another aspect of the NAS Study,

          8  which Mr. Ramsey cited was this 3 percent decrease

          9  over the past decade in the Upper Hudson and 4

         10  percent in the Lower Hudson.  Well, it wasn't over

         11  the past decade, it was from the mid- eighties to

         12  the mid- nineties, and if we look at the data over

         13  the past five or six years, PCB levels have stayed

         14  constant and they are unacceptably high.  And the

         15  point is also a 3 percent decline, I mean, how many

         16  generations are we going to wait for a this 3

         17  percent decline every year in the upper and 4

         18  percent in the lower?  That is just, it's  a short

         19  sighted view and it is just going to take too many

         20  generations if we're going to take that approach.

         21                 What was smart about the NAS Study, I

         22  felt that it didn't make any site specific

         23  recommendations for what should be done at specific

         24  sites, and it basically is leaving that up to site

         25  specific conditions, and we have the 10 years of
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          2  science that have carefully outlined what the site

          3  specific problems are here, and we have the

          4  technology to safely move forward to remove it.

          5                 And another thing GE and Towning's

          6  plant site cleanup and your questioning of them that

          7  they have only used hydraulic diver- sisted

          8  dredging.  I have video footage and also written

          9  material that they have used clamshell dredging,

         10  they have used it as part of that pump house

         11  project.  I can get you that video footage, so I

         12  don't understand why they say.  They have used

         13  clamshells to remove large debris, which is

         14  something that EPA more than likely will have to do

         15  in their dredging project as well, is to use

         16  clamshell dredging to remove large debris.

         17                 Another project that was referenced

         18  to was the Chesapeake Bay Project that the Army

         19  Corps of Engineers did that Mr. Ramsey cited as not

         20  being done because of ecologically critical

         21  habitats.  That is not the case at all, cost benefit

         22  study was done on that project, which found that

         23  there just wasn't, it was a navigational judging

         24  project that is why is was a Corps project, and it

         25  was just not enough boat traffic.  Cost benefit
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          2  showed that it was just the navigational dredge was

          3  not justified by the amount of boat traffic, so it

          4  wasn't a critical aquatic habitat that stopped that,

          5  that navigational dredge from going forward.

          6                 In terms of public opinion, they

          7  mentioned a survey they did that was done three days

          8  after we released a survey that we commissioned the

          9  Marist Institute of Public Opinion to do, a well

         10  respected polling organization based at Marist

         11  College in Poughkeepsie, which found that 84 percent

         12  of people that live along the Hudson River from New

         13  York City all the way up to Washington County were

         14  in favor of getting the Hudson River cleaned up, 73

         15  percent which wanted the PCBs removed.  In New York

         16  City 92 percent want the Hudson River cleaned up and

         17  76 percent favored the removal of PCBs.

         18                 Another thing in terms of the NAS, if

         19  you look at some of the conclusions why they did,

         20  indeed, include that the community involvement

         21  process was unsuccessful, I'm not sure how exactly

         22  they drew that conclusion, but if you look at their

         23  conclusions in that same chapter in that report, you

         24  will find that they found that at most PCBs sites

         25  that the community involvement was unsuccessful.  So
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          2  not to say that that is okay if they found it

          3  unsuccessful on the Hudson, but we also look at the

          4  fact that next week we have the 9th, 10th and 11th

          5  public hearing coming up that EPA is doing, they're

          6  required by law to have one.  You know it's a 200-

          7  mile site, it presents a variety of challenges for

          8  community involvement.  Those conclusions also found

          9  that that process was dominated by the PRPs, the

         10  potentially responsible parties, and we can surely

         11  point to the fact that General Electric has surely

         12  dominated this community involvement process not

         13  only for the past several months with their ads but

         14  in terms with the past several years of how they

         15  have found every which way to try to attempt and

         16  delay this process.

         17                 And just a little bit of history

         18  about the NAS Study, it was originally commissioned

         19  by former Congressman Solomon back in 1997 whose is

         20  now a GE lobbyist, it's intentions from the get go,

         21  have been an attempt to delay and derail this

         22  process, and it is exactly how this study is going

         23  to be tried to be used.  And we're going to push

         24  that, that that is not the case.  The NAS Study has

         25  some very good recommendations in it, some very good
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          2  information in it, but it should be used that EPA

          3  for this site, for future sites to have the best

          4  process, but it should not in any way be used to

          5  delay the Hudson River decision.

          6                 Now you just had a dredging expert

          7  here, so I just don't want to spend too much time

          8  going over my whole presentation in terms of the

          9  dredging, but we did find - -

         10                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  You don't

         11  really have to tell us anymore about dredging than

         12  he told us.

         13                 MR. SCHIAFO:  Okay, well there is a

         14  lot of findings that are outlined in terms of that

         15  it reduces sediment mass, it reduces the PCBs in

         16  fish, it can be done - -

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  He did those

         18  points and he is the - -

         19                 MR. SCHIAFO:  Right.  Resuspension

         20  can be controlled.  So he was the expert before me,

         21  so I, in terms of what we found is all contained in

         22  the documentation here in terms of mechanical and

         23  hydraulic dredging and what those - -

         24                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I thank you

         25  very, very much.
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          2                 MR. SCHIAFO:  Okay, thank you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Both of you.

          4                 MS. TRIESTE:  Thank you.

          5                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  I appreciate

          6  your being here.

          7                 MS. TRIESTE:  Thank you for listening

          8  and thank you for joining us and your support.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Please come

         10  again.

         11                 Next we have Mastofa Majud, is he

         12  here?  Baytya Lewton, no, he is not here.  Bradford

         13  Cushing.  Here is a guy with a peculiar last name,

         14  Craig Michaels, oh, my God, my cousin is here.

         15                 MR. MICHAELS:  Actually I an "A" in

         16  mine, so it's, let's not be related.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  You don't think

         18  I missed that, did you?

         19                 MR. MICHAELS:  Yes, first I wanted to

         20  leave you with some - -  My name is Craig Michaels.

         21  I work with the Riverkeeper, as well.  These are

         22  also to be handed out.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  How many people

         24  did we have here from the Riverkeeper today?

         25                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  What is that?
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Yes, I just

          3  wanted to just brief comments.  I'm not going to

          4  bore you.

          5                 What strikes me is that GE says over

          6  and over and over again that the way to fix this

          7  problem is to clean up the source of the PCBs.  Now

          8  we have all been here for many hours, we have all

          9  heard that over and over again.  That is their

         10  solution, clean- up the source of the PCBs.  Well

         11  the decade of extensive Peer Review Scientific

         12  Research says the main source of the PCBs is the

         13  sediment, not the plant sites.  Now GE goes on and

         14  on about how they have reduced the leakage under

         15  their sites from five pounds to three ounces.  Well,

         16  bravo, the chemical was banned in 1977, the plants

         17  were closed in 1984, and there is still three ounces

         18  a day coming into the River?

         19                 If they actually cared about this

         20  they would not have buried it in bedrock that any

         21  geologist in the world could have told you was not

         22  stable.  So they put it there and it is continuing

         23  to leak, but the bottom line if they want to cleanup

         24  the source, the source is the sediment.  The EPA's

         25  science shows that there are three ounces a day from
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          2  the plant going into the Thompson Island Pool, which

          3  is an area of River directly downstream from the

          4  plants, and there are one and a half pounds leaving

          5  the Thompson Island Pool.

          6                 Okay, now if the three ounces was the

          7  only source, there would be 68 pounds coming over

          8  the dam each year.  But instead there is about 500

          9  pounds.  So if they want to clean up the source,

         10  then why don't they use their technology and figure

         11  out a way to clean up the sediment?

         12                 If they don't like dredging, then

         13  they should put something else on the table.

         14                 You know they have 80 Superfund sites

         15  nationwide, unfortunately, this is not an isolated

         16  incident, so I urge the Council to adopt this

         17  resolution and send a clear single to this

         18  corporation that is out of control, that is

         19  reckless, that they're not going to come and do what

         20  they have done across the nation, that their lies

         21  don't fly here in New York City.

         22                 So thanks for having us.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON MICHELS:  Thank you very

         24  much.  I appreciate your being here.

         25                 Is there anyone else who has not
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          2  registered who wants to testify?

          3                 If not, this hearing is adjourned.

          4                 (Hearing concluded at 3:10 p.m.)
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          4

          5     STATE OF NEW YORK   )

          6     COUNTY OF NEW YORK  )

          7

          8

          9                 I, PAT WTULICH, a Notary Public in

         10  and for the State of New York, do hereby certify

         11  that the foregoing is a true and accurate transcript

         12  of the within proceeding.

         13                 I further certify that I am not

         14  related to any of the parties to this action by

         15  blood or marriage, and that I am in no way

         16  interested in the outcome of this matter.

         17                 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto

         18  set my hand this 29th day of March 2001
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